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ABOUT US
E)iEi

Founded in Hong Kong in 1998, Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) is a global leader in the
intimate wear manufacturing industry. Adopting the innovative
design manufacturer (“IDM”) business model, Regina Miracle
offers its world-renowned brand partners diverse intimate wear
and functional sports products, including bras, sports bras,
panties, shapewear, bra pads, functional sports apparel and
footwear. The Group has two strategic strongholds - its research
and development (“R&D"”) and production base in Shenzhen,
China and, since the Group expanded production capacity in
2016, Vietnam has become its important production base.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
HBHE

The board of directors (the “Board”) of Regina Miracle BB (ZR) AR AR ([#HE R ][ &
International (Holdings) Limited (“Regina Miracle” or the AR NEZS([EEG)MAEMHALT R
“Company”) is pleased to announce the annual results of the HMtB AR (s &M ]) B ZE202143A
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the TELIEFE(20218E )M FEE - &R
year ended 31 March 2021 (“Fiscal 2021"), together with the 20204 ([ 202081 4F | ) ) LL B B0 Y ©
comparative figures for the corresponding year in 2020 (“Fiscal

2020").
COMPARISON OF KEY FINANCIAL FTEHKENEMBELE RN
INFORMATION AND FINANCIAL RATIOS EL 8}
Year ended 31 March
HZEIAMALFE
2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 % HK$'000
BETT Bk wETT
Revenue WA 5,974,290 1000 6,341,010 100.0 (5.8%)
Gross profit EF 1,237,953 20.7 1,440,731 22.7 (14.1%)
Profit attributable to owners AR A H AE(GHF
of the Company 125,515 21 289,953 4.6 (56.7%)
Earnings before interest, SR E RE TS
taxes, depreciation and (TEBITDA )¢
amortisation (“EBITDA")# 820,593 13.7 969,745 15.3 (15.4%)

Profit attributable to owners AR A B AE(LHF
of the Company (excluded (FRESEMAMAR)

restructuring costs)* 175,253 29 289,953 4.6 (39.6%)
Earnings before interest, SR E RS
taxes, depreciation and (FRIESHERA)
amortisation (excluded
restructuring costs)* 870,331 14.6 969,745 15.3 (10.3%)
HK cents HK cents
Bl Bl
Earnings per share BREF
- basic and diluted —EXREE 10.3 23.7
Dividend per share SRS 4.8 7.8
~ Interim dividend —HHRE - 38
— Proposed final dividend — A E 33 4.0
- Proposed special dividend  — 2z 45RI0% 8 15 -

# These are not measures of performance under Hong Kong Financial # WIEE B BIME LR ([ BBUMBREER )
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS"), but is widely used by management TERERROEZ  HEERENREEAEEEE
for monitoring business performance of a company from operational RAIEBREREZER - ERMATHEEMA
perspective. It may not be comparable to similar measures presented by A 25H LG EEITELE -

other companies.
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On behalf of the Board of the Company and the
Group, | hereby present to our shareholders the
annual report of the Group for Fiscal 2021.

AANERRARREZTEGRAKE  ARREZAKE
202V FHMBFRERS ©

YY Hung
AthEZE

Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TR BEWITERNTEE

The year under review was unusual as the sudden outbreak of
coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19" or the “Pandemic”)
brought unprecedented challenges to various industries around
the world, especially in the first half year when many markets
in Europe and the United States suffered from lockdowns and
the global textile and apparel retail chain was faltering. In the
second half year, as the Pandemic was controlled and the market
gradually adapted to the new normal of the late-pandemic era,
market conditions recovered and most retail brands had their
operations back on track since July. Through the concerted
efforts of all colleagues of Regina Miracle, the Group was able
to grasp the opportunities brought by the market recovery in the
second half year and achieved a sales level not only higher than
the first half year but also better than that of the same period in
previous years, with a slight decline in annual revenue of 5.8%
to approximately HK$5,974.3 million, and net profit amounting
to approximately HK$125.5 million. The Board has resolved
to propose a final dividend of HK3.3 cents per share for Fiscal
2021 in line with the Group’s policy of paying no less than 30%
of its net profit as dividends each year, and proposed a special
dividend of HK1.5 cents per share in appreciation of shareholders’
unwavering support during the challenging year.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ER®E
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QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

TAKING NOTE OF OUR SHORTCOMINGS
AND STAYING AGILE UNDER THE
UNPRECEDENTED TOUGH YEAR

Amid the tough market environment, the Group was committed
to maintaining stable business development. This was achieved
in part due to the Group's varied product portfolio, with sports-
related products in particular showing continuous and resilient
growth driven by the growing popularity of sporting activities
during the Pandemic. In addition, the “stay-at-home"” trend led to
the growth of comfortable loungewear products and consumer
electronics products in response to the cross-sector and cross-
product line business expansion in recent years. Furthermore, in
the face of sudden onset of the Pandemic, the Group's proactive
exploration of new income sources including the development
of fabric face masks business, and focus on the PRC market,
have helped it to expand revenue streams and alleviate market
risks. Even more encouraging, orders within the core business
witnessed a sharp rebound in the second half year as the Group's
brand partners had their operations back on track, allowing the
Group to achieve the primary goal of maintaining stable business
development during the review vyear.

We look at this remarkable period under the Pandemic as
an invaluable lesson. Most importantly, the significance
of diversifying our market presence has been recognized.
While we will remain committed to building closer and more
stable partnerships with international brands, we also see the
tremendous opportunities available in the PRC as it became
the locomotive of global economic growth thanks to its timely
containment of the Pandemic and the development of a national
dual circulation strategy. Hence, we have been increasingly
investing resources on developing new brand partners and new
marketing channels such as e-commerce in the PRC over the past
year and these efforts have begun to pay off. We believe that this
business will be one of the Group’s main growth drivers in future.

During the crisis, Regina Miracle has been examining its own
shortcomings, and actively reviewing its internal operations and
production processes, capital expenditures and cost controls. It
streamlined the structure for saving and reserving resources while
optimizing its production and management processes through
digital upgrades, with a view to lay a solid foundation for healthy
business development in the late-Pandemic era.
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COMMITTED TO A SUSTAINABLE BUSINESS
DEVELOPMENT MODEL WITH SOUND RISK
MANAGEMENT AND A SOLID FOUNDATION

The Pandemic has also brought about tremendous changes in the
whole supply chain, including the increased popularity of online
e-commerce sales, with a particular focus on fast order and short
production cycles in response to brand partners’ preference for
reduced inventories. Therefore, the Group has been actively
enhancing its production efficiency through production process
improvement, with the goal of maximizing profit, while ensuring
proper risk response management for the production process. In
addition, we also strengthened our interaction with brand partners
in order to continuously lead the market trend. We believe that
all of these efforts will help us consolidate our leading position
in the industry and realize a long-term and sustainable business
development model.

The Group will continue to improve the layout of its production
capacity in Vietnam to meet the strong order demand from our
existing international brand partners. Meanwhile, faced with the
volatility of the global Pandemic, and with the Group's largest
production base being located in Vietnam, we have also made
a reasonable assessment of the potential risks, including city
lockdown policies and social distancing measures implemented
by the local governments for the containment of the Pandemic,
etc. To this end, the Group also regularly communicates and
negotiates with our brand partners on the potential risks and
flexibility of lead time, as well as contingency plans with regards
to alternative production lines in Vietnam and Shenzhen.

As an innovative design manufacturer, we are also committed
to carrying out business digitization and informationization in a
carefully calculated manner, so as to lay a solid foundation for
the long-term development and growth of our enterprise. In
addition to improving production efficiency, digital technology
can also enable more refined production planning. The Group
is able to deal with orders and market changes at ease through
systematic production planning. Furthermore, we will ensure
careful monitoring of major trends through big data and innovate
products that will lead market trends accordingly. At the same
time, we are also committed to establishing a clearer practical line
in environmental protection and sustainable development, and
comprehensively advocate and implement the enterprise mission
and vision of “Creating first-class products, delivering industry
value and fulfilling social responsibilities”. We are also committed
to promoting the sustainable development of the industry and
encouraging our supply chain partners to develop green raw
materials.

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

ER®E

"
»In*
W
%

R E =
%%ﬁbgﬁﬂié¥ﬁ F&

RIS BEMHREEES T ERNEL
EH - EREHEURR 7&1%%#%"%%@
LEGRIRA BEFRRE - FAEEEH
452 o At - REEEREREB(CEERE
LARFHEERE - —HHENMEAFMBE AR
BiE - ANTALEREETEENRERE
HEIE - SO - WAPITRIN5E B G R SRR
B8 - BESIETHAN - BFURE - At
BT B E AR EATTENREMA - I
BRRE  AISENEBRERES -

REEGEETSWHENERGD  URME
REER GBS ERHRBRYNGIERE - [
B BEERENERsSEERERE  HE
ERASEBERAMEEREN  BMIPAEXE
ATREM R EH ARG - RREMBTA
3B | E 15 T B e A Sk T Y SE IR Mt AR BE AR
S Al AEBNEEEDE AR
R BT R MRS - A KRB
HERNBEEEGNERARS -

ERBIFTRATRER - RATBOBEERF
WETERFBEBLCMERL  SEEREN
HREIZREF RIFER - BRI E D)
Tiﬂiiiﬁl?% R EERE - K

REMEBERGNERSE - BNIRIE
&E%Tm BEAE o BAN BRI BEBABIR
ZRWRES  PESIEHREMR ° BULF
B RAITRBAHERR R AR A BRI ER
M EBHTA BB AR - i@%mfaﬂfﬁﬂa‘li_
SIEMREM  BERITXEE X BIHEER
EINARERMER - EAUETRARE
R UiHEPHEASIERFRABRREREY
£t o

FEE®HE2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 9



QHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
FERE

STRONG MARKET GROWTH: WITH SALES
ORDERS HITTING A RECORD HIGH, REGINA
MIRACLE IS IN FULL GEAR TO REACH NEW
HEIGHTS

In the late-Pandemic age, the launch of vaccines has brought a
glimmer of hope to global anti-pandemic efforts and has resulted
in a gradual recovery in economic activities. The Group was
pleased to note a continuously strong increase in sales orders
and even record highs as a result. The management thus remains
optimistic about the business in the coming year and will continue
to leverage our unigue advantages in innovative design and
manufacturing, as well as our industry-leading position in the field
of intimate wear and functional sports products, in a bid to seize
market opportunities and drive the stable business development
of Regina Miracle.

The Group is committed to catering to the development demand
of international brand partners. This includes developing business
in the fastest-recovered economy, Mainland China, alongside
our brand partners. Moreover, given the swift emergence of
fashionable and e-commerce-focused domestic brands, the Group
has been developing new brand partners and marketing channels,
such as e-commerce, in the PRC since last year and these
efforts have begun to pay off. Coupled with growing demand for
products that align with the “Made in China” ethos in the PRC,
the Group has begun to optimize the business and production
layout in the PRC by setting its eyes on the high-tech industrial
park, Zhaoging New District, Guangzhou Province, the Greater
Bay Area, targeting the vast potential of the Chinese market with
an aim to facilitate the Group’s long-term development in the
country.
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Based on the preliminary plan, the new facilities in Zhaoging
New District will focus on Mainland Chinese market while the
production base in Vietnam will continue to satisfy the overseas
order demands from outside the PRC for our international brand
partners. We are in the process of completing the development
details of the Zhaoging factory and will provide an update on the
latest progress in due course.

The challenges that we have encountered during the Pandemic
have proven to be a valuable learning experience. | would like
to take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt gratitude to the
Board, the management team, and our colleagues for their
dedication and hard work to ride out the various storms during the
Pandemic, especially the colleagues who stayed overseas due
to the travel restrictions and the quarantine measures imposed
during the Pandemic. | would also like to express my sincere
gratitude for the support and trust of our brand partners and
suppliers over the years, and thank our shareholders and business
partners for their long-term trust. Currently in the best position of
the Group's development history, the management team and | are
eagerly looking forward to and are fully confident that the Group
can maintain its strong growth momentum. Together, we will
elevate Regina Miracle to new heights and generate long-term
sustainable value for shareholders.

YY Hung
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MARKET REVIEW

During the year under review, the outbreak of coronavirus disease
2019 (“COVID-19" or the “"Pandemic”) brought tremendous
changes to various industries around the world, particularly during
the first half of the year when many markets in Europe and the
United States suffered from lockdowns. The global textile and
apparel retail chain was thrust into a precarious situation. In the
second half of the year, as the Pandemic was gradually brought
under control, market confidence was restored. In addition, the
public have gradually adapted to the new normal in the late-
Pandemic era, including changes in lifestyle and consumption
patterns. As a result, most retail brands have resumed normal
operations from July onwards.

In the face of the Pandemic, the Group’s core business was
inevitably affected in the first half of Fiscal 2021. In particular, the
traditional bra and intimate wear business saw a sudden drop
in orders. However, the Pandemic has also created a growing
demand for sports, home and consumer electronics products, and
accelerated the rise of online shopping. With its innovative design
manufacturing (IDM) capabilities and a diverse product portfolio
built over the years, Regina Miracle was able to capitalize on
strong growth in sports-related products under the Pandemic. In
addition, the Group’s aggressive efforts to explore new sources
of income, including the development of fabric face masks by
focusing on growing the Chinese market, which was the first
to bring the Pandemic under control, have enabled the Group
to partially offset the impact of the traditional bra and intimate
wear business during the initial phase of the Pandemic. With
the gradual resumption of operations and orders from some of
its closer brand partners from the second quarter onwards, the
Group was pleased to see orders for its overall business being
back on track, which led to sales in the second half of the year as
a whole surpassing the pre-Pandemic levels, and that this strong
growth momentum will continue.

Meanwhile, the outbreak of Pandemic has allowed the Group to
deeply reflect as well as take note of its own shortcomings. Under
such unexpected challenge, the Group has remained prudent
and taken a multi-pronged approach to internal control, including
streamlining manpower and surrendering part of the Shenzhen
factory, in order to optimize the allocation of human resources and
production capacity in both the PRC and Vietnam. Furthermore,
the Group has also optimized its production processes, enhanced
efficiency and controlled costs through inventory utilization
and workmanship improvements in order to create a flexible
production model as well as lay a solid foundation for maintaining
its edge in the industry going forward.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EERBTWR DM

BUSINESS REVIEW

Financial performance

During the year, the Group recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$5,974.3 million (Fiscal 2020: HK$6,341.0 million), which
was only 5.8% lower than that of Fiscal 2020, despite the tough
operating environment, thanks to the strong rebound in orders
from its core business in the second half of the year, resulting in
a significant increase of 37.3% in overall revenue as compared
with the first half of the year. Gross profit decreased by 14.1% to
approximately HK$1,238.0 million, with a gross profit margin of
20.7% (Fiscal 2020: HK$1,440.7 million and 22.7%, respectively),
due to the decline in revenue. Thanks to the concerted efforts of
all its colleagues and the efforts to increase revenue and control
costs, the Group's earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA) was approximately HK$820.6 million
and EBITDA margin was 13.7% (Fiscal 2020: HK$969.7 million
and 15.3%, respectively).

As a result of the deleveraging of operations and two one-off
expenses due to the streamlining of production capacity and
human resources, including severance payments to approximately
506 employees totaling approximately HK$40.1 million in
compliance with regulations in the PRC and Vietnam and write
off of fixed assets of approximately HK$9.6 million due to the
surrender of part of the Shenzhen factory, the Group recorded a
net profit of approximately HK$125.5 million for the year with a
net profit margin of 2.1% (Fiscal 2020: HK$290.0 million and 4.6%,
respectively). Basic earnings per share attributable to owners of
the Company amounted to HK10.3 cents (Fiscal 2020: HK23.7
cents). Excluding the above one-off expense items, net profit
decreased by 39.6% year-on-year to approximately HK$175.3
million with a net profit margin of 2.9%.

The Group is in a healthy financial position. In addition to stable
operating cash flows, it also holds sufficient cash in hand and total
undrawn trade and term loan facilities of approximately HK$828.0
million and HK$2,391.0 million, respectively, as at 31 March
2021 (31 March 2020: HK$587.6 million and HK$2,571.1 million,
respectively).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Board has resolved to propose a final dividend of HK3.3 cents
per share for Fiscal 2021 (Fiscal 2020: HK4.0 cents per share, plus
an interim dividend of HK3.8 cents per share, brought the total
dividend to HK7.8 cents per share) in line with the Group’s policy
of paying no less than 30% of its net profit as dividends for the
fiscal year, and proposed a special dividend of HK1.5 cents per
share in appreciation of shareholders’ unwavering support during
the challenging year. The proposed final and special dividends are
subject to approval by shareholders of the Company at the annual
general meeting to be held on Monday, 13 September 2021. The
final and special dividends are expected to be paid on or around
Tuesday, 5 October 2021 to shareholders whose name appears
on the register of members of the Company on Thursday, 23
September 2021.

Bras and intimate wear

Bras and intimate wear products remain the Group’s primary
source of revenue. During the year, this segment contributed
approximately HK$3,968.1 million (Fiscal 2020: HK$5,061.4
million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 21.6% and
accounting for 66.4% of the overall revenue. Gross profit of the
segment amounted to approximately HK$835.4 million with a
gross profit margin of 21.1% (Fiscal 2020: HK$1,183.8 million
and 23.4%). The decline in segment revenue was mainly due to
reduced or delayed orders from brand partners in Europe and the
United States in the first quarter of the fiscal year caused by anti-
pandemic measures, which dealt a major blow to the traditional
bra and intimate wear business.

However, sports bras proved to be a silver lining, delivering a
resilient performance driven by the growing popularity of sports
during the Pandemic and support from a few new internationally
renowned retail and sports brand partners, which ultimately
resulted in an increase in sales of more than 30% when
compared with last year. In addition, the “stay-at-home” trend
also led to increased demand for comfortable lounge bra tops
and bra products. In the domestic China market, the Group also
added several new e-commerce brand partners, resulting in a
more balanced customer portfolio. It was duly delighted with the
robust growth in orders from the segment and in associated rise
in revenue of 60.9% as compared with the first half of the year.

Bra pads and other molded products

Revenue from the bra pads and other molded products business
amounted to approximately HK$567.7 million (Fiscal 2020:
HK$677.1 million), representing a year-on-year decrease of 16.2%,
and accounting for 9.5% of the total revenue. Gross profit and
gross profit margin of the segment were approximately HK$128.3
million and 22.6% (Fiscal 2020: HK$144.2 million and 21.3%,
respectively).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Although the performance of bra pads was affected by the
Pandemic, along with bras and intimate wear, it showed a strong
rebound of 44.3% in the second half of the year compared with
the first half.

On another positive note, Regina Miracle’s efforts in promoting
cross-sector and cross-product line business development in
recent years have borne fruit. The increase in “stay-at-home” time
for the public under the Pandemic has led to a strong demand
for the entertaining consumer electronic products, benefiting
the Group’s sales of fabric processing and other accessories for
consumer electronics produced for its renowned multinational
technology partners, with sales having surged by nearly 60%
compared with last year.

Functional sports products

The functional sports products business contributed approximately
HK$788.8 million in revenue during the year (Fiscal 2020:
HK$602.5 million), representing a year-on-year increase of 30.9%,
and accounting for 13.2% of the Group's total revenue. The
segment also recorded a gross profit of approximately HK$136.8
million and a gross profit margin of 17.3% (Fiscal 2020: HK$112.7
million and 18.7%, respectively).

The increase in revenue in this segment was mainly due to
the strong growth of sports products in the market during the
Pandemic. In addition, the outbreak of the Pandemic led to
increased awareness of sports and the growing popularity of the
“work from home"” model, as well as travel restrictions in many
countries, which, in turn, led to strong demand for products that
are comfortable, suitable for lounging at home and light exercising
and fueled the growth of both the sports shoes and sportswear
businesses.

With regard to sports footwear, the American casual footwear
brand partner maintained double-digit growth during the year.
As for the sportswear business, Regina Miracle continued
to develop innovative products with superior craftsmanship
for its international brand partners, resulting in a satisfactory
performance. Furthermore, with the addition of new domestic
sports brands and emerging e-commerce partners, the customer
portfolio of this sub-segment has also been enriched.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Pandemic prevention products

Pandemic prevention products, a new business segment born out
of the Pandemic, has already contributed approximately HK$649.6
million to the Group's revenue in just one year of development,
accounting for 10.9% of the Group’s total revenue. Gross profit
of the segment was approximately HK$137.4 million, with a
gross profit margin of 21.2%. Pandemic prevention products,
predominantly fabric face masks, were supplied to its brand
partners in Europe and the US from its Vietnam factory. This
business contributed a remarkable revenue during the review
year, which demonstrated the Group's agility and adaptability
amid difficult operating environments, and was able to make best
use of its otherwise unutilized production capacity during the
challenging times.

Production capacity

During the year, the Group has largely completed its factory
layout at the Vietnam Singapore Industrial Park (“VSIP") in Hai
Phong City, Vietnam. In the face of reduced or delayed orders
from Europe and the United States in the first half of the year,
the Group responded swiftly by developing and producing fabric
face masks for customers, which enabled the production capacity
to be fully utilized and helped offset the impact of the Pandemic
on the traditional bra and intimate wear business. Fortunately,
the Group's core business has gradually returned to normal
thanks to the satisfactory growth of sports bras and lounge
bras, and therefore recruitment has been resumed since July
and production output has gradually returned to normal levels in
the second half of the year. As of 31 March 2021, production in
Vietnam accounted for 78% of the Group's total revenue, up from
73% in Fiscal 2020.

In order to enhance the operational effectiveness of its factories
in the PRC and Vietnam, the Group conducted a comprehensive
review of its internal structure and operation model and
streamlined its manpower resources during the year. It also
surrendered the lease part of the Shenzhen factory, which is
expected to save operating expenses and improve capacity
allocation in the long run. At the end of the year, the Group
had a total of approximately 37,000 employees in Vietnam and
approximately 6,500 employees at the Shenzhen factory in the
PRC, which serves as the research and development ("R&D")
centre and production base.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The overall production capacity in Vietnam will be further
increased as production in Vietnam becomes more sophisticated
and efficient, while the Group has increased production lines in
its existing factories to better utilize the factory scale in response
to the increasing demand in orders. As for footwear production,
the majority of production has been relocated from Shenzhen
to Vietnam Factory E, and is progressing on track. However, it
is worth noting that the Pandemic re-emerged in Vietnam prior
to the Lunar New Year this year. Consequently, the Vietnam
government imposed lockdown measures in the affected areas. As
a result, approximately one-third of the Group’s employees were
unable to commute to work from various districts which in turn
led once again to temporary interruption to production capacity
that lasted for approximately four weeks. Owing to the quick
response and the stringent Pandemic prevention measures taken
by the Vietnam government, the Group’s overall operations have
returned to normal at present.

THE GROUP’S OPERATING RESULTS

Revenue

We derive our revenue primarily from direct sales of our products.
Our total revenue decreased by 5.8% from approximately
HK$6,341.0 million in Fiscal 2020 to approximately HK$5,974.3
million in Fiscal 2021. A comparison of the Group's revenue for
Fiscal 2021 and Fiscal 2020 by product categories is as follows:
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ANBLEE

2021
20215
% of
Revenue
LT ON]
BT Aotk

HK$'000

2020

20204
% of
Revenue
fEU AR
Bt BT

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT

Bras and intimate wear E KB HRK 3,968,123 66.4 5,061,431 79.8  (1,093,308) (21.6)
Bra pads and other molded i RE ISR 567,711 95 677,093 107 (109,382) (16.2)

products Em
Functional sports products e MHESEEM 788,840 13.2 602,486 9.5 186,354 30.9
Pandemic prevention products [ @ 649,616 10.9 - - 649,616  N/A T
5,974,290 100.0 6,341,010 1000 (366,720) (5.8)

18 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # 2 {RER(IZR)ER QR



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Revenue generated from sales of bras and intimate wear
decreased by HK$1,093.3 million, or 21.6%, from approximately
HK$5,061.4 million in Fiscal 2020 to approximately HK$3,968.1
million in Fiscal 2021. The decrease was primarily attributable
to the outbreak of the Pandemic in the first half of Fiscal 2021.
The retail markets, especially in Europe and the United States
where the Group’s major markets are found, had been adversely
affected. Such impact was partially offset by the promising
sales improvement in the second half of Fiscal 2021. Revenue
generated from sales of bras and intimate wear as a percentage
of our total revenue decreased from 79.8% in Fiscal 2020 to
66.4% in Fiscal 2021.

Revenue generated from sales of bra pads and other molded
products amounted to approximately HK$567.7 million in Fiscal
2021, representing a decrease of HK$109.4 million, or 16.2%, as
compared to Fiscal 2020, which was due to the outbreak of the
Pandemic around the world in the first half of Fiscal 2021, leading
to a decreased demand from our customers on bra pads. Such
impact was partially offset by promising sales improvement in the
second half of Fiscal 2021, and resilient growth in molded parts of
consumer electronics product. Revenue generated from sales of
bra pads and other molded products as a percentage of our total
revenue decreased from 10.7% in Fiscal 2020 to 9.5% in Fiscal
2021.

Revenue generated from sales of functional sports products
increased by HK$186.4 million, or 30.9%, from approximately
HK$602.5 million in Fiscal 2020 to approximately HK$788.8 million
in Fiscal 2021. The increase was primarily due to the increased
demand from our customers. Revenue generated from sales of
functional sports products as a percentage of our total revenue
increased from 9.5% in Fiscal 2020 to 13.2% in Fiscal 2021.

Given the Pandemic has caused a surge in demand for pandemic
prevention products, the Group quickly seized the opportunity
to develop and produce face mask products for its customers.
Revenue generated from sales of pandemic prevention products
amounted to approximately HK$649.6 million in Fiscal 2021,
representing 10.9% as a percentage of our total revenue in Fiscal
2021.
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Cost of sales

Cost of sales primarily consists of costs of raw materials, employee
benefit expenses for personnel directly involved in our production
activities, depreciation of our production equipment and others.
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ANALEE

2021
20214
% of
Revenue
10N ]
Aotk

HK$'000

BETT

2020

20204
% of
Revenue
EIAR
BAL

HK$'000 HK$'000

BETR AL

Costs of raw materials JRITRRA 2,140,905 359 2,166,269 34.2 (25,364) (1.2)
Employee benefit expenses  EEEHFHS 1,812,967 30.3 1,952,693 30.8 (139,726) (7.2)
Depreciation e 389,903 6.5 349,402 5.5 40,501 11.6
Others Hith 392,562 6.6 431915 6.8 (39,353) 9.1)
4,736,337 793 4,900,279 77.3 (163,942) (3.3)

Cost of sales (excluded HEMA(TRE
depreciation) E) 4,346,434 728 4,550,877 7.8 (204,443) (4.5)

Cost of sales as a percentage of total revenue increased from
77.3% in Fiscal 2020 to 79.3% in Fiscal 2021. This was primarily
attributable to 1) decrease in revenue, leading to a drop in capacity
utilization and operating deleverage in the first half of Fiscal 2021;
2) increase in depreciation as a percentage of revenue by 1.0%
as a result of decrease in revenue; and 3) increase in cost of raw
materials as a percentage of revenue by 1.7% due to rising raw
materials unit price. The above impact was partially offset by
the improvement in the cost of sales in the second half of Fiscal
2021.

Cost of sales decreased from approximately HK$4,900.3 million
in Fiscal 2020 to approximately HK$4,736.3 million in Fiscal 2021
primarily due to decrease in costs of raw materials and employee
benefit expenses as a result of the decrease in revenue.

Cost of sales (excluded depreciation) as a percentage of total
revenue were 72.8% and 71.8% in Fiscal 2021 and Fiscal 2020
respectively.

SHE R AT IR A LBFBEY B 5 B 202087 FF Y
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Gross profit and gross profit margin
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For the year ended 31 March
BZE3ANBLEE

2021
202145

Gross

Gross Profit
Profit margin

E EfE
HK$'000 %
BT T Bt

2020
20205

Gross

Gross Profit

Profit margin

7

HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT o BETT

Bras and intimate wear & KBk FRK 835,405 211 1,183,845 234 (348,440) (29.4)
Bra pads and other molded TR R E A AR R

products Em 128,315 22,6 144,221 213 (15,906) (11.0

Functional sports products aElrEeEE R 136,829 17.3 112,665 18.7 24,164 21.4

Pandemic prevention products By 137,404 212 - - 137,404 N/A

TEA

Gross profit ER 1,237,953 20.7 1,440,731 22.7 (202,778) (14.1)

Our overall gross profit decreased from approximately HK$1,440.7
million in Fiscal 2020 to approximately HK$1,238.0 million in
Fiscal 2021. The gross profit margin in Fiscal 2021 was 20.7%,
as compared to 22.7% in Fiscal 2020. Such decrease was mainly
due to the drop in capacity utilization and operating deleverage as
a result of the decrease in revenue caused by the Pandemic in the
first half of Fiscal 2021.

Gross profit margin of bras and intimate wear decreased from
23.4% in Fiscal 2020 to 21.1% in Fiscal 2021, primarily due to the
reduced utilization and operating deleverage as a result of lower
sales in the first half of Fiscal 2021. Such impact was partially
offset by the gradual improvement of gross profit margin in
second of Fiscal 2021, as compared to that in first of Fiscal 2021.

Gross profit margin of bra pads and other molded products
increased from 21.3% in Fiscal 2020 to 22.6% in Fiscal 2021,
primarily due to resilient growth in molded parts of other moulded
products with relatively higher margin.

Gross profit margin of functional sports products decreased from
18.7% in Fiscal 2020 to 17.3% in Fiscal 2021, primarily due to the
reduced utilization and operating deleverage as a result of lower
sales in the first half of Fiscal 2021, Such impact was partially
offset by the gradual improvement of gross profit margin in
second of Fiscal 2021, as compared to that in first of Fiscal 2021.

Gross profit margin of pandemic prevention products was 21.2%,
reflecting a gross profit margin improvement in second half of
Fiscal 2021 as compared to first half of Fiscal 2021, which was
under ramp up stage.
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Other income and other gains

Our other income consists primarily of government grants and
scrap sales income. It decreased from approximately HK$65.9
million in Fiscal 2020 to approximately HK$48.1 million in Fiscal
2021, primarily attributable to decrease in government grants
subsidies, which depend on the government grant policies and
criteria during different time periods.

Distribution and selling expenses

Distribution and selling expenses primarily consist of freight and
transportation expenses, employee benefit expenses for our sales
personnel, travelling expenses, declaration charges, marketing
and promotion expenses and others.

The Group's distribution and selling expenses as a percentage of
sales decreased from 2.6% in Fiscal 2020 to 2.3% in Fiscal 2021,
primarily due to streamlining of operation.

Distribution and selling expenses decreased from approximately
HK$164.5 million in Fiscal 2020 to approximately HK$139.5
million in Fiscal 2021, primarily due to streamlining of operation
and decrease in freight and transportation expenses as a result of
decrease in revenue in the first half of Fiscal 2021.

General and administrative expenses

General and administrative expenses primarily consist of
employee benefit expenses for our administrative personnel,
depreciation and amortisation, other taxes and surcharges,
building management fee, insurance, office and administrative
expenses, bank charges and others.

For Fiscal 2021 and Fiscal 2020, the Group’'s general and
administrative expenses as a percentage of total revenue have
remained relatively stable at 10.6% and 10.5% respectively.

General and administrative expenses decreased from
approximately HK$664.5 million in Fiscal 2020 to approximately
HK$630.9 million in Fiscal 2021, mainly due to decrease in
employee benefit expenses.

Research and development costs

Research and development costs consist of employee benefit
expenses for our research and development personnel, raw
materials and consumables used and others.

The Group's research and development costs have remained
relatively stable in terms of absolute amount and percentage of
total revenue respectively for both Fiscal 2020 and Fiscal 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other operating expenses

Facing the Pandemic and with an aim to achieve a better human
resources and production capacity allocation between the PRC
and Vietnam in the long run:

1) the Group decided to implement human resources
restructuring to streamline its manpower deployment during
the Period. As such, severance payment in compliance
with applicable PRC and Vietnamese rules and regulations
of approximately HK$40.1 million was distributed to
approximately 506 staff; and

2)  the Group surrendered parts of the leased factory in
Shenzhen to better utilize its production capacity and
improve operational efficiency, and the write-off of fixed
assets of approximately HK$9.6 million was recognised
during first half of Fiscal 2021.

Due to streamlining the production capacity and human resources,
these two one-off restructuring costs totalling approximately
HK$49.7 million were recognised during Fiscal 2021.

Finance income
Finance income represents interest income on bank deposits.

Finance costs

Finance costs represent interest expense on borrowings, net of
interest expenses capitalised. Our finance costs as a percentage
of total revenue decreased from 2.6% in Fiscal 2020 to 2.1% in
Fiscal 2021, primarily due to global trend of declining interest rate
during Fiscal 2021.

Finance costs decreased from approximately HK$162.8 million in
Fiscal 2020 to approximately HK$123.6 million in Fiscal 2021 was
primarily attributable to the reasons mentioned above.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense represents our total current and deferred
tax expenses under the relevant Hong Kong and PRC income tax
rules and regulations.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau of the
PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises engaged in
research and development activities are entitled to claim ranging
from 150% to 175% of the research and development expenses
so incurred in a period as tax deductible expenses in determining
its tax assessable profits for that period (“Super Deduction”).
Certain PRC subsidiaries have applied such Super Deduction
during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietham were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% (2020: 20%). In
accordance with the applicable tax regulations, preferential tax
rates and tax holidays will be granted to new investment projects
based on regulated encouraged sectors, encouraged locations,
and size of the projects.

Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. is subject to a
lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen consecutive years, commencing
from the first year of making revenue. In addition, the subsidiary
is entitled to full exemption from corporate income tax for the first
four years from the earlier of (i) the year when profit is generated
for the first time or (ii) the fourth year of making revenue; and a
50% reduction in corporate income tax for the next nine years,
which is offered by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated
in the subsidiary’s investment license. The first year of this tax
reduction period of this subsidiary commenced in the financial
year ended 31 March 2018.

Regina Miracle International Hung Yen Co., Ltd. is entitled to full
exemption from corporate income tax for the first two years from
the earlier of (i) the year when profit is generated for the first time
or (i) the fourth year of making revenue; and a 50% reduction
in corporate income tax for the next four years, which is offered
by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the subsidiary’s
investment license. The first year of this tax reduction period
of this subsidiary will commence in the financial year ended 31
March 2022.

The Group’s income tax expense was approximately HK$21.2
million in Fiscal 2021 (Fiscal 2020: HK$23.1 million). Excluding the
positive effect of Super Deduction in the amount of approximately
HK$21.2 million (Fiscal 2020: HK$22.2 million), income tax
expense was approximately HK$42.4 million in Fiscal 2021 (Fiscal
2020: HK$45.3 million).

Net profit

As a result of the cumulative effect of the above factors, our net
profit decreased from approximately HK$290.0 million in Fiscal
2020 to approximately HK$125.5 million in Fiscal 2021. Our net
profit margin decreased from 4.6% in Fiscal 2020 to a net profit
margin of 2.1% in Fiscal 2021.

Excluding the one-off restructuring costs (included in other
operating expenses), our net profit was approximately HK$175.3
million in Fiscal 2021, with a net profit margin of 2.9%.

Liquidity, financial resources and bank borrowings
The Group's current ratios (calculated as current assets over
current liabilities) were 1.4 times and 1.3 times as at 31 March
2021 and 31 March 2020, respectively.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Net debt (represented by bank borrowings less the cash and
cash equivalents) was approximately HK$3,540.9 million (31
March 2020: HK$3,002.4 million). The increase of net debt was
mainly due to increase in working capital and capital expenditure
of our Vietnam factories. Net gearing ratio as at 31 March 2021
was 115.3% (30 September 2020: 118.8%; 31 March 2020:
102.9%), which was calculated as net debt divided by total equity.
Excluding the currencies depreciation impact on the net assets
denominated in RMB and VND, the adjusted net gearing as at 31
March 2021 was 107.1% (30 September 2020: 109.0%; 31 March
2020: 93.2%).

Working capital management
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Receivables turnover days
Payables turnover days

The receivables turnover days was for Fiscal 2021 was 55 days.
The increase was mainly attributed to longer credit terms offered
temporarily to certain brand partners, in responding to impacts
brought by the Pandemic in the first half of Fiscal 2021. Most of
the credit terms have resumed to normal level approaching end
of Fiscal 2021. The payables turnover days for Fiscal 2021 was 31
days.

Capital expenditures

For Fiscal 2021, the total addition to property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and intangible assets amounted to
approximately HK$604.8 million (Fiscal 2020: HK$1,084.6 million),
which was mainly attributed to additions of production lines and
construction of our Vietnam facilities to cope with the Group’s
overall business expansion.

Pledged assets

As at 31 March 2021 and 31 March 2020, insurance policy
investments in the amount of approximately HK$66.7 million and
HK$30.9 million respectively was pledged for financing related
insurance premium.
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Foreign exchange risk

We mainly operate in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam. Most of
our operating expenses are denominated in RMB and VND, while
most of our sales are denominated and settled in U.S. dollar.
As the HK dollar is pegged to U.S. dollar, our foreign exchange
exposure in respect of the HK dollar is considered minimal. Our
management will continue to monitor foreign currency exchange
exposure and will take prudent measures to minimize the
currency translation risk.

Contingent liabilities
As at 31 March 2021, the Group did not have any significant
contingent liabilities.

Material acquisitions and future plans for major
investment

Save for the investment in the construction of the production
facilities in Vietnam, during Fiscal 2021, the Group did not
conduct any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. In
addition, save for the expansion plans as disclosed in the sections
headed “Business” and "“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in
the prospectus of the Company dated 24 September 2015 (the
“Prospectus”), and the framework construction agreements
disclosed in the announcements dated 24 July 2017 and 24
April 2018 respectively, the Group has no specific plan for
major investment or acquisition for major capital assets or other
businesses. However, the Group will continue to identify new
opportunities for business development.

Employees and remuneration policies

As at 31 March 2021, the Group employed a total of approximately
43,710 full-time staff (31 March 2020: 42,917). The total staff
cost of the Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances,
provident funds and share incentive schemes) amounted to
approximately HK$2,323.3 million, representing 38.9% of the total
revenue of the Group.

We believe our success depends heavily upon our employees’
provision of consistent, quality and reliable services. In order to
attract, retain and develop the knowledge, skill level and quality
of our employees, we place a strong emphasis on training our
employees. We provide on-site training periodically and across
operational functions, including introductory training for new
employees, technical training, professional and management
training, team-building and communications training.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

We enter into individual employment contracts with our
employees to cover matters such as wages, employee benefits,
safety and sanitary conditions in the workplace, and grounds for
termination. We have designed an evaluation system to assess
the performance of our employees. This system forms the basis
of our determinations of whether an employee should receive
salary raises, bonuses or promotions. Most of our technical
personnel are trained and promoted internally, leading to greater
employee stability and loyalty.

Events after the balance sheet date
The Group has no significant events after the reporting period and
up to the date of this report.

FUTURE PROSPECTS AND STRATEGIES:
OPTIMIZING LAYOUT AND EXPANDING
CHANNELS TO FULLY CAPTURE
OPPORTUNITIES ARISING FROM STRONG
MARKET GROWTH

As vaccination rates rise, the Pandemic is expected to gradually be
brought under control globally, boosting confidence in economic
recovery. COVID-19 has had a profound impact on the industry,
with the public's everyday lives and lifestyles having been
completely transformed, with trends such as working from home,
home exercising and shopping online becoming irreversible. On
the other hand, China has become the leader in the recovery of
the world economy, with domestic consumption upgrades gaining
steam. Despite the Pandemic, Regina Miracle, with its multi-
regional production capacity and strong IDM capabilities, was able
to build closer and stronger partnerships with international brands.
Management is confident that the challenges of the Pandemic are
largely behind us and that the growth momentum will continue
into Fiscal 2022, thus taking the Group’s business to the next
level.

In respect of products, the Group’s core bra and intimate wear
products saw a rapid rebound in orders; performing even better
than in previous years, as brand partners adapted to the new
normal of the late-Pandemic era. The growth momentum of
sports products has remained strong, especially for sports bras.
Since consumers have grown accustomed to life at home, the
comfort-driven products have consequently enjoyed high take-
up. However, once the Pandemic is kept under control and the
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working public returns to the work place, there will be greater
demand for innovative products that offer both comfort and
aesthetic. As regards the fabric processing and other accessories
for consumer electronics segment, its satisfactory growth is
set to continue in the coming year as it benefits from changing
lifestyles arising from the late-Pandemic era. The Group will
maintain efforts to bolster this high value-added business through
innovation. With reference to the pandemic prevention products
business, the Group began developing and producing functional
and fashionable fabric face masks at the early stages of the
Pandemic. Such efforts were in response to demand from the
market and its partners, and which consequently enabled the
Group's production capacity to be effectively utilized during the
period. Nonetheless, the Group expects the demand for these
products will significantly decrease with the rollout of vaccines
that will help curb the effects of the Pandemic. In the meantime, as
orders for bras and sports bras have resumed growth, the Group
has readjusted its production lines to support development of
these products, which constitute its core businesses. The Group is
confident that the growth momentum will continue.

Another huge change brought by the Pandemic is the shift in sales
channels, making e-commerce a key word for the future market.
The Group will intensify its exploration and cooperation with
emerging online brands and channels to prepare for future growth.
Due to the need to simplify the size range of the bras as they are
being purchased online so that consumers can conveniently pick
a product that easily fits, comfortable loungewear-type products
which tend to sell better online, and represents what Regina
Miracle is particularly adept in, and therefore is able to quickly
meet the needs of its brand partners.

In order to meet the strong order demand from its existing
international brand partners, the Group will continue to improve
the layout of its production capacity in Vietnam, including
enhancing the efficiency and effectiveness of its factories at VSIP
Hai Phong and adding production lines in the existing factories
to increase production capacity. The first phase of the facility in
Hung Yen Province, Vietnam, which operates principally using
seamless knitting technology, officially commenced operation
in April 2021 and is expected to be able to meet the increasing
business demand through the increase in production capacity.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The management also noted that one of the biggest changes
brought by the Pandemic was the reshaping of the global market
landscape, and it also recognized the importance of diversifying
markets and revenue streams. As the first country to have
effectively controlled the Pandemic and thus the first economy to
have recovered from its impact, China is not only the locomotive
of global economic growth, but also a key battleground for major
brands. Due to the strong demand from existing international
brand partners to develop their business in Mainland China and
the emergence of the many fashion and e-commerce brands
in the PRC, as well as growing demand based on the “Made
in China" ethos in the PRC, the management is targeting the
vast prospects within the Chinese market. This has included the
development of new brand partners and new sales channels,
such as e-commerce, in Mainland China over the past year.
Capitalizing on its established reputation in the industry in terms of
perseverance and achievement in product innovation and quality
over the years, the Group has developed the business domestic
China with impressive results, having built a solid foundation in
less than a year. Going forward, the Group will further strengthen
its business deployment in the PRC, including team building and
production support.

In recent years, the Group's Shenzhen factory has faced constant
difficulties in recruitment and rising costs. However, in line
with the strategy of the Group’s international brand partners
regarding their vigorous development in China and its own recent
business development in the PRC, the Group recognises the
need to optimize its production layout in China. After careful
examination, the Group is considering to relocate its production
facilities and has set its eyes on the High-Tech Industrial Park in
Zhaoging New District, Guangdong Province in the Greater Bay
Area, which is intended to satisfy the huge demand of innovative
intimate wear and sportswear products, etc. from the Mainland
Chinese market. The production base in Vietnam will continue to
cater for the demand from outside the PRC for its international
brand partners. Details planning for the development of the new
facilities in Zhaoqing is underway and updates on its progress will
be announced in due course.

Since the Pandemic, the Group greatly recognizes the importance
of optimizing the internal risk control. It will therefore pursue
more precise and prudent deployment of human resources, raw
materials and operations. In the face of the rising trend of raw
materials in the coming year, the Group will approximately expand
its supply channels, optimize its production processes, further
implement automation and enhance the effectiveness of its
craftsmanship, etc. in order to maintain its profitability through a
multi-pronged approach to the control of overall costs.
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The management also understands that the volatility of the
global novel coronavirus pandemic will introduce certain risks and
uncertainties to the manufacturing supply chain. The Group must
therefore actively devise contigencies to deal with such concerns.
To facilitate greater agility production planning and ensure that
the orders can be satisfied even if new lockdown measures
are implemented due to the resurgence of the Pandemic in
Vietnam or Shenzhen, the Group will proactively improve its
production processes as well as implement digital upgrades to
unlock and analyse end-to-end business process information,
compress production cycles, improve product quality and enhance
operational efficiency on the manufacturing side. Furthermore,
it will seek to gain greater insights into business demand and
expedite response to market needs on the management side, so
as to ensure stable operations.

While the Pandemic has not yet subsided, Regina Miracle's
determination to invest in resources to preserve our environment
remains unchanged, especially in terms of strengthening energy
management and carbon emission management in order to
promote the long-term sustainable development of its business
and that of the industry. In addition to continuing to deepen
energy consumption control and carbon emission management
measures in the PRC and Vietnam, the Group has installed solar
panels at its Factory E in Hai Phong, Vietnam and plans to install
solar panels at other factories in the region to enhance energy
saving and emission reduction for better overall energy efficiency.
On the product side, the management is aware of the trend
of eco-friendly products and the potential for development as
evidenced by the recent enthusiastic response from its brand
partners. Regina Miracle is also committed to working with
strategic suppliers to promote the development of eco-friendly
raw materials in the industry, so as to develop and manufacture
more products with eco-friendly concepts, which will not only
enrich its product portfolio and create demand, but also contribute
to environmental protection, is in line with the concept of
sustainable development, and drive the sustainable development
of the industry.

Regina Miracle has been progressing forward thanks to its
strengths in innovation and shrewd business acumen. By working
together with its brand partners, Regina Miracle has ridden
out various economic cycles and challenges. Looking ahead,
the Group is confident that it can maintain its strong growth
momentum and continue to leverage its leading position in
intimate wear and functional sports products to seize new market
opportunities and create long-term value for its brand partners and
shareholders.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (£# ) (also known as YY Hung (#t/5725)),
aged 58, is the founder of the Group and has been a Director of
the Company since its incorporation on 21 September 2010. He
is also the Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, the chairman
of the nomination committee and a member of the remuneration
committee of the Company. He is primarily responsible for
formulating the overall development strategies and business
plans and overseeing the operation of the Group. With over 21
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry,
Mr. Hung has been the key driver of our business strategies and
achievements to date and continues to oversee the management
of our operations and business. Mr. Hung is also a director of
each of the BVI, PRC and Hong Kong subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr. Hung is currently the executive vice president of Shenzhen
Underwear Association (OFIITTARKITERE) since 2012,
the president of Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity
Association (RIITTHXAAFIEZEZE) since January 2015 and
council member of South China Athletic Association (FIZEREE 2).
Mr. Hung received the Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong

2007 from Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

Mr. Hung is the uncle of Ms. Sze Shui Ling, senior management
and executive Director of the Company. Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior
management of the Company, is a cousin of Mrs. Hung.

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (k% 5%), aged 45, was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. Mr. Yiu
joined the Group as a financial controller on 17 June 2002 and
was promoted to the Chief Financial Officer of the Group in 2005.
Mr. Yiu is primarily responsible for overseeing the overall financial
management, internal control, legal and compliance matters of the
Group. He also serves as a director in a number of the Company’s
subsidiaries. Mr. Yiu has over 22 years of experience in financial
management. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Yiu worked at
PricewaterhouseCoopers Hong Kong in the tax department
from August 1998 to June 2002 and held the position of senior
consultant from July 2000 to June 2002. Mr. Yiu graduated from
the Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a first class honors
degree of bachelor of arts in accountancy in November 1998.
He is a fellow of Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
a fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Directors. Mr. Yiu is a
cousin of Mr. Yiu Ka So, senior management of the Company.
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Mr. LIU Zhengiang (2|Z78), aged 46, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015 and has
been the chief research and development and design officer of
Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd since April
2008. He is primarily responsible for product design, research
and development management of the Group. He also serves as
a director in a number of the Company’s subsidiaries. Mr. Liu
joined the previous bra processing facilities in February 1999 and
held the positions as manager of the research and development
department from February 1999 to September 2003 and chief
research and development and design officer from September
2003 to April 2008. From August 1998 to February 1999, Mr. Liu
served as a supervisor of quality assurance department at Shun
Cheong Factory for shoulder pads manufacturing. He has over
21 years of experience in intimate wear design and research and
development management and contributed in a number of utility
model patents and invention patents on intimate wear design.
Mr. Liu graduated from Wuxi College of Light Industry (58 T
KE) (later renamed as Jiangnan University (T X&) majoring
in textile design in June 1998 and a degree of executive master
of business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business (KT 2%) in September 2013.

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (Bf& ), aged 44, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company and the Chief Operating
Officer of the Group on 22 June 2015 and 30 November 2015
respectively, and has been the general manager of Regina Miracle
Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd (“"RMIA Shenzhen”) since
April 2008. He is primarily responsible for production management
of the Group. He is also a director of both RMIA Shenzhen and
Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Ltd. Mr. Chen joined the previous
bra processing facilities in October 2000 and held the following
positions: production supervisor from October 2000 to June 2001,
production manager from June 2001 to September 2003, senior
production manager from September 2003 to June 2006 and
general manager from June 2006 to April 2008. He has over 19
years of experience in intimate wear manufacture management.
Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor degree in shipbuilding engineering
from East China Shipbuilding Institute (EE5E A T2 £67) (later
renamed as Jiangsu University of Science and Technology (T
ERRHEKE)) in July 1999 and a degree of executive master of
business administration from Cheung Kong Graduate School
of Business (KT E %) in September 2013. Mr. Chen is the
Committee Member of the 11th Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Zhaoqing.
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Ms. SZE Shui Ling (#E5&1%), aged 49, was appointed as an
executive Director of the Company on 22 June 2015. She
has been the sales and marketing director of Regina Miracle
International Limited since 24 June 1999 and Regina Miracle
International (Group) Limited since 18 September 2006. She
is responsible for the sales and marketing affairs of the Group.
Ms. Sze has over 22 years of experience in the sales and
marketing of intimate wear. She is also a director of a number
of the Company’s subsidiaries. Ms. Sze holds a certificate in
tourism management program in Camosun College in Canada in
December 1996. Ms. Sze is the niece of Mr. Hung.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. OR Ching Fai (f;5#), aged 71, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is the chairman of the audit committee.
Dr. Or is primarily responsible for providing strategic advice and
guidance on the business development of the Group.

Dr. Or received a bachelor of social sciences degree in economics
and psychology from the University of Hong Kong in July 1972
before joining The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation
Limited as a management trainee. Dr. Or worked in a variety of
positions in personnel, securities, retail and corporate banking
divisions. Dr. Or was appointed as general manager and group
general manager in 2000 and became an executive director in
2005. Dr. Or was then appointed as vice-chairman and chief
executive of Hang Seng Bank Limited (B4 R1TEBRAF), a
banking company listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited ("Hong Kong Stock Exchange”), in 2005 and retired in
May 2009.

Dr. Or holds the following positions in companies listed on the
Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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Company and its Principal Business

Stock Exchange Position

REARETEEK "EX 5 LA

Chow Tai Fook Jewellery Group Limited Hong Kong Stock Independent non-executive
(AXBHREEBEAGR AT, ajewellery company Exchange director
AAEHREEEBERAT - A—HIKEAR] E N BN IEITEE

China Strategic Holdings Limited (F 285 E B2 5]), Hong Kong Stock Chairman and non-executive

an investment and metal trading company Exchange director
PREEERAT A RHRELEBEELA BB AP FRFIENITES

Playmates Holdings Limited (# 2% B AR A 7)), Hong Kong Stock Independent non-executive

a property investment and toy marketing company Exchange director
(effective date: 21 May 2021)
FEEBBRAR  R—EMERENR BB AP BUIIEHITES

MATISHEAT (A B : 202145H218)

Dr. Or has been appointed as independent non-executive director
of Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited in
December 2018. He ceased to act as non-executive chairman and
non-executive director of Esprit Holdings Limited on 1 January
2021, ceased to act as independent non-executive director of
Television Broadcasts Limited on 1 January 2020 and ceased
to act as independent non-executive director of Industrial and
Commercial Bank of China Limited on 31 October 2018. He was
the vice-chairman and independent non-executive director of
G-Resources Group Limited until his retirement on 30 June 2017.
He was also an independent non-executive director of Hutchison
Whampoa Limited (fz20 & 1H AR A 7)) and Cathay Pacific Airways
Limited (BZ=M = AR A A]), from February 2000 to May 2009
respectively. All these companies are listed on The Hong Kong
Stock Exchange. Dr. Or was the deputy chairman and non-
executive director of Aquis Entertainment Limited, a company
listed on the Australian Securities Exchange, until his retirement
on 31 December 2017.
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Dr. Or is a vice patron of the board of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong. He was also the chairman of the Hong Kong
Association of Banks in 2000 and 2003 and was vice chairman
of the Hong Kong Association of Banks in 2001, 2002, 2004 and
2005. He was also the chairman of the Financial Services Advisory
Committee and a member of the Services Promotion Programme
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council. He
was a member of the Risk Management Committee of the Hong
Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited, vice president and a
council member of the Hong Kong Institute of Bankers, a member
of the Aviation Development Advisory Committee, the chairman
of Executive and Campaign Committee of the Community Chest
of Hong Kong, the deputy council chairman of the Council of City
University of Hong Kong, a council member of the University of
Hong Kong, an adviser of the Employers’ Federation of Hong
Kong and a member of the Planning Committee of the 5th East
Asian Games.

Dr. Or was awarded a Silver Bauhinia Star from the Hong Kong
Special Administrative Region and Honorary University Fellow
from the University of Hong Kong in 2009. He was conferred an
Honorary Doctor of Social Science by the City University of Hong
Kong and an Honorary Fellowship by Hang Seng Management
College in November 2014 and May 2017 respectively. Dr. Oris a
Justice of the Peace.

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie (E k1), aged 65, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director of the
Company on 11 September 2015 and is primarily responsible
for providing strategic advice and guidance on the business
development of our Group. She is also a member of the audit
committee, the nomination committee and the chairman of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Mrs. To has extensive
experience in the garments trading industry. Prior to joining the
Group, Mrs. To was employed by Mast Industries (Far East)
Limited, the sourcing arm of LBrands, as the president from
January 2007 to May 2013 and the executive vice president from
September 1996 to December 2006. From April 1995 to August
1996, she served as a director of Li & Fung (Trading) Ltd., a
Hong Kong based global sourcing company. From January 1991
to February 1995, Mrs. To was the executive vice-president of
Bonaventure Textiles Limited, a garment manufacturing company.
From June 1979 to December 1990, Mrs. To held various
positions from executive trainee to assistant managing director of
Swire and MacLaine Limited, the trading division of John Swire &
Sons Limited. Mrs. To obtained a bachelor degree of arts from the
University of Hong Kong in November 1979.
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Ms. TAM Laiman (EBEX), aged 67, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company on 11
September 2015 and is primarily responsible for providing
strategic advice and guidance on the business development of
our Group. She is also a member of the audit committee, the
remuneration committee and the nomination committee of the
Company. Ms. Tam has extensive management experience
in the consumer products marketing, distribution and retailing
industry. Ms. Tam retired from the office either as a manager
or an executive director of the following six group companies in
Swire Pacific Limited on 1 October 2018: SRM Holdings, Inc., a
holding company of brands investment; United Sheen Limited,
a holding company of brands investment; Columbia Sportswear
Commercial (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. (Sfatt B EBRERZ (H8) 4
fR/A 7)), a sales and distribution company of branded outdoor and
sports clothing and footwear; SCCH Limited, a holding company
of brands investment; Swire Brands Limited, a holding company
of consumer brands investment, and Swire Industrial Limited, an
investment holding company in cold storage, waste management,
environmental services, painting and sugar businesses, and
distribution and sales of motor vehicles in PRC and Hong Kong.

From January 1990 to July 2013, Ms. Tam served the positions
as managing director, director and general manager of Swire
Resources Limited, a marketing, distribution and retail company of
branded clothing and footwear product, where she was primarily
responsible for the company’s overall development and operation.
From October 1987 to December 1989, Ms. Tam was the general
manager in charge of the overall operation of Reebok Hong
Kong Ltd., a sports brand company of clothing and footwear.
From December 1983 to May 1987, Ms. Tam worked at Plough
Consumer Products (Asia) Ltd., a consumer products marketing
and distribution company, as the regional marketing manager
responsible for the Southeast Asia market. From May 1978 to
November 1983, Ms. Tam worked at the group companies of
Fung Ping Fan Group, a diversified company involving in consumer
brands distribution and real estate businesses.

Ms. Tam obtained a bachelor degree in administration from
University of Ottawa in May 1976. Ms. Tam has been an
executive committee member of Benji's Centre (EE R EH
[») and the vice chairman of the supervisory board of Macao
International Brand Enterprise Commercial Association (J8F9 B[R
mEE ¥R E) since 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUANG Guoxian (EE| &), aged 56, has been the general
manager of technology development of RMIA Shenzhen since
April 2008. He is responsible for technology, research and
development and machinery improvement of the Group, and
contributed in several utility model patents and invention patents
on intimate wear design, including one-piece bra. Mr. Huang is
also the vice chairman of RMIA Shenzhen and a Director of RM
Shenzhen. He joined the previous bra processing facilities in
February 1999 and held the positions as manager of the research
and development department from February 1999 to March 2003
and chief technology officer from March 2003 to April 2008. From
June 1988 to February 1999, Mr. Huang worked as supervisor
of the research and development department at Shun Cheong
Factory for shoulder pads manufacturing. Mr. Huang has over 21
years of experience in the intimate wear manufacturing industry.
Mr. Huang obtained a high school diploma from Fuging Jiangdou
Huagiao Middle School (1g/& /T ZEFEF E2) in July 1982.

Mr. YIU Ka So (Zkin#t), aged 47, has been the general manager
of operation of the Group since he joined the Group on 3 March
2004. He is primarily responsible for operations management of
the Group. Mr. Yiu is also the vice chairman of RMIA Shenzhen,
a director of RM Shenzhen, the legal representative and general
director of Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd and of
Regina Miracle International Hung Yen Co., Ltd. Mr. Yiu has over
16 years of experience in enterprise and operations management.
Mr. Yiu served at Panda Green Energy Group Limited (formerly
known as Goldpoly New Energy Holdings Limited), a solar
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, as an
executive director from October 2010 to December 2013. Mr. Yiu
obtained a bachelor degree in engineering and a master degree
of science in civil engineering, both from the University of Hong
Kong, in December 1997 and November 2001, respectively. Mr.
Yiu is a cousin of Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony and Mrs. Hung.
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Ms. LEUNG, Mai Ling Connie ($%%), aged 55, has been the
general manager of business division of the Group since she
joined the Group on 3 September 2003. She is responsible for
sales management of the Group. Ms. Leung has over 29 years of
experience in the clothing industry, of which over 17 years in the
intimate wear manufacturing industry. Prior to joining the Group,
Ms. Leung worked at PLH Fashion Group, a trading company,
as a divisional manager primarily responsible for merchandising
and management from November 2002 to September 2003.
From 1995 to 2002, Ms. Leung worked at Mast Industries (Far
East) Limited, a garments and accessories trading company, as
a merchandising manager and regional merchandising manager,
where she was primarily responsible for the regional market
management. From October 1993 to June 1995, she served as a
sourcing manager in charge of material sourcing, purchasing and
development in Lion-Redcliffe & Company Limited, an embroidery
manufacturer. In addition, Ms. Leung served as an assistant
merchandiser overseeing sample development, production and
shipment in Texunion Garment Co., Ltd., a garment manufacturer,
from July 1985 to June 1986.

Ms. Leung obtained a diploma in clothing in Hong Kong Vocational
Training Council in July 1985, a national diploma in clothing in
Hong Kong Business and Technical Education Council in March
1986, a diploma in clothing design and production management
from the Clothing and Footwear Institute in 1993. Ms. Leung
completed the modular post-graduate diplomas in textile and
clothing and clothing studies in October 1995 and November
1996, respectively, and obtained a master of arts degree in
clothing studies from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
December 1999.

Mr. LIANG Changming (R #H), aged 41, has been the sample
development deputy general manager of shoe division of RMIA
Shenzhen since February 2012. He is responsible for research
and development of shoe products of the Group. He was also
the senior manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen from April 2008 to February 2012. Mr. Liang
joined the previous bra processing facilities in June 2003 and held
the positions in the research and development department as
supervisor from June 2003 to May 2006 and manager from May
2006 to April 2008. Mr. Liang has over 17 years of experience in
intimate wear manufacturing industry, specializing in bra pads,
bras and sports bras. Mr. Liang obtained a bachelor degree in
textile examination and commerce from Donghua University (82
AE) in July 2003.
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Mr. ZHANG Wenbo (RX{#), aged 41, has been the deputy
general manager of the research and development department
of RMIA Shenzhen since December 2017. He is responsible
for coordinating and promoting intimate wear and product
development of the Group. He was also the senior manager of the
research and development department of RMIA Shenzhen from
April 2008 to February 2012 and the sample development deputy
general manager of the intimate wear division of RMIA Shenzhen
from February 2012 to December 2016. He was the sample
development deputy general manager of the sportswear division
of RMIA Shenzhen from December 2016 to November 2017. Mr.
Zhang joined the previous bra processing facilities in September
2002 and held the positions in the research and development
department as supervisor from September 2002 to May 2004 and
manager from May 2004 to April 2008. Mr. Zhang has over 17
years of experience in the research and development of intimate
wear products. Mr. Zhang obtained a bachelor degree in thermal
engineering from Jiamusi University ((E/RETAZ) in June 2002.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. LAW Kwan Chuen (##52), aged 42, joined the Group on
15 December 2011 as our group financial controller and was
appointed as company secretary of the Company on 22 June
2015. He is primarily responsible for financial reporting, corporate
finance and company secretarial matters of the Group. Mr. Law
has approximately 20 years of experience in auditing, financial
reporting and corporate finance. Prior to joining the Group, Mr.
Law worked at PricewaterhouseCoopers from October 2004 to
December 2011 with the last position as manager. From July 2001
to October 2004, he worked at Moore Stephens as an auditor.
Mr. Law obtained a bachelor degree of business administration
majoring in professional accountancy from The Chinese University
of Hong Kong (F/#&H XX KXE) in November 2001. He has been an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom since February 2004 and
the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since September
2004. Mr. Law has also been a Chartered Financial Analyst (“CFA")
charter holder of the CFA Institute since September 2006, a
fellow member of ACCA since July 2009 and a fellow member of
HKICPA since September 2014.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Company and
its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31
March 2021.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2021 are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 165 to
166 of this annual report.

The Board has recommended to pay to the shareholders of the
Company a final dividend of HK3.3 cents per share and a special
dividend of HK1.5 cents per share for the year ended 31 March
2021. Subject to the approval of the proposed final dividend
and special dividend by the shareholders of the Company at
the forthcoming annual general meeting to be held on Monday,
13 September 2021, the final dividend and special dividend are
expected to be paid on or about Tuesday, 5 October 2021.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

For the purpose of determining the shareholders’ eligibility to
attend and vote at the annual general meeting, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from Tuesday, 7
September 2021 to Monday, 13 September 2021, both days
inclusive. In order to qualify for attending and voting at the annual
general meeting, shareholders should ensure that all properly
completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong no later
than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Monday, 6 September 2021.
The annual general meeting of the Company will be held on
Monday, 13 September 2021.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR
ENTITLEMENT TO FINAL DIVIDEND AND
SPECIAL DIVIDEND

For the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement for the
final dividend and special dividend, the register of members of
the Company will be closed from Monday, 20 September 2021
to Thursday, 23 September 2021, both days inclusive. To qualify
for the final dividend and special dividend, shareholders should
ensure that all properly completed transfer forms accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration with
the Company's Hong Kong branch share registrar, Computershare
Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong
no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong time) on Friday, 17 September
2021.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year and a
discussion on the Group's future business development are set
out in the Chairman’s Statement as well as the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 6 to 11 and pages 12 to 30
of this annual report respectively. Discussions on the Group's
relationships with its key stakeholders are also set out in the
Chairman’s Statement on pages 6 to 11 of this annual report.
An analysis of the Group's performance during the year using
financial key performance indicators is set out in the Group's
Financial Information Summary on page 252 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and
liabilities of the Group for the last five years ended 31 March 2021
are set on page 252 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company are
set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and
the Company during the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2021, the reserves of the Company available for
distribution to the shareholders of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$1,772.0 million (2020: HK$1,760.6 million).

DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended 31
March 2021 amounted to HK$0.7 million (2020: HK$1.8 million).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis
to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company's listed securities for the
year ended 31 March 2021.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The shareholders of the Company approved and adopted a share
option scheme on 11 September 2015 (the “Share Option
Scheme”) to enable the Company to grant options to eligible
participants as incentives and rewards for their contribution to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme took effect on 8 October 2015
(the listing date of the Company), and no option has been granted
up to the date of this report.
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The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Share
Option Scheme:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Who may participate

Subject to the terms of Share Option Scheme, the Board
(including any committee or delegate of the Board appointed
by the Board to perform any of its functions pursuant to
the rules of the Share Option Scheme) may, at its absolute
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe for such
number of shares of the Company (“Shares”) as the
Board may determine to an employee (whether full time
or parttime) or a director of a member of the Group (the
“Eligible Person”).

Maximum number of Shares in respect of which
options maybe granted

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any options granted under any other share
option scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the
shares of the Company in issue as at the listing date of the
Company unless the Company obtains a fresh approval.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Person
Unless approved by the shareholders of the Company in
the general meeting in the manner prescribed in the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”), the maximum
number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted to each Eligible
Person under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option scheme of the Company (including exercised,
cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month period
shall not at the time of grant exceed 1% of the shares in
issue.

Acceptance of an offer of options

An offer of options under the Share Option Scheme shall
be open for acceptance for such period (not exceeding 30
days inclusive of, and from, the date of offer) as the Board
may determine and notify to the Eligible Persons concerned
provided that no such offer shall be open for acceptance
after the expiry of the duration of the Share Option Scheme.
An offer of options not accepted within this period shall
lapse. An amount of HK$1.00 is payable upon acceptance
of the grant of an option and such payment shall not be
refundable and shall not be deemed to be a part payment of
the exercise price.
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(e)

(f)

(9)

Exercise Price

The exercise price shall be such price as determined by the
Board and notified to an option-holder and which shall not be
less than the higher of: (i) the closing price of the Shares on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange as stated in the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on the date of offer
of the option; (i) the average closing price of the Shares as
stated in the Hong Kong Stock Exchange's daily quotation
sheets for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of offer of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of the
Shares.

Time for Exercise of options

An option may be exercised at any time during the period
which is notified by the Board at the offer date when making
an offer to an Eligible Person but such period not to exceed
the period of 10 years from the offer date of such option.

Duration of Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective for
a period of ten years commencing on the listing date of
the Company, after which period no further options will be
granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme
shall remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary
to give effect to the exercise of any options granted prior
thereto which are at that time or become thereafter capable
of exercise under the rules of the Share Option Scheme, or
otherwise to the extent as may be required in accordance
with the provisions of the Share Option Scheme.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31 March
2021 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 March 2021, sales to the Group's
five largest customers accounted for approximately 50.6%
of the Group's total sales for the year (of which sales to the
Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately 16.3%).
Purchases from the Group's five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 38.9% of the Group's total purchases for the year
(of which purchases attributable to the largest supplier accounted
for approximately 20.4%).

None of the Directors or any of their respective associates or
any shareholder which to the best knowledge of the Directors,
who own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital,
had any interest in any of the Group’s five largest customers or
suppliers during the year ended 31 March 2021.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

The Group participated in various retirement benefit schemes in
accordance with the relevant rules and regulations in PRC and
Hong Kong. Particulars of the retirement benefit schemes are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. HUNG Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. YIU Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. LIU Zhengiang

Mr. CHEN Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. SZE Shui Ling

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. OR Ching Fai

Mrs. TO WONG Wing Yue Annie

Ms. TAM Laiman

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony
and Ms. Tam Laiman will retire as Directors in accordance with
Article 84 of the Articles of Association of the Company (“Articles
of Association”) and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election.
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DIRECTORS’, SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S AND
COMPANY SECRETARY’S PROFILE

Profile details of the Directors of the Company, the senior
management and company secretary of the Group are set out on
pages 31 to 39 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial term of three years commencing
from 11 September 2015 and the service contracts have been
renewed for a further term of three years commencing from 11
September 2018.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has signed a
letter of appointment with the Company for an initial term of three
years commencing from 11 September 2015 and these letters of
appointment have been renewed for a further term of three years
commencing from 11 September 2018.

These service contracts and letters of appointment are subject
to termination in accordance with their respective terms. The
terms of service contracts and the letters of appointment may be
renewed in accordance with the Articles of Association and the
applicable rules of the Listing Rules.

Save as disclosed above, no Director proposed for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract
with the Company which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation other than
statutory compensation.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group remunerates its employees, including the Directors,
on the basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. Our
employees are subject to regular job performance reviews
which determine their promotion prospects and compensation.
Subject to the Group's profitability, the Group may also provide
discretionary bonuses to its employees as an incentive for their
contribution to the Group.

The Company has adopted share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend
Policy”), pursuant to which the Company may distribute
dividends to its shareholders by way of cash or by other means
that the Company considers appropriate. The recommendation of
the payment of any dividend is subject to the absolute discretion
of the Board, and any declaration of final dividend will be subject
to the approval of the shareholders.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time in
light of the following factors in determining whether dividends are
to be declared and paid:

o Results of operations of the Company;

° Cash flows of the Company;

° Financial condition of the Company;

° Shareholders’ interests of the Company;

° General business conditions and strategies of the Company;

° Capital requirements of the Company;

o The payment by subsidiaries of the Company of cash
dividends to the Company; and

o Other factors the Board may deem relevant.
MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March
2021.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every Director shall be
entitled to be indemnified out of assets of the Company against
all losses or liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution of the duties of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.
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DIRECTORS’ MATERIAL INTEREST IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN
RELATION TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in note 31 to
the consolidated financial statements, no Director and/or any of
his/her connected entity had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, in any transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company, its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party subsisted at the end of the year or at
anytime during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

(1) Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited (“Le Ying"”, together
with its subsidiaries collectively, the “Le Ying Group”) is
a company wholly-owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), a controlling shareholder and an executive
Director of the Company, and is therefore a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Company entered into a new agreement with Le Ying
on 9 May 2018 to regulate the sales of intimate wear and
sport wear products of the Company to Le Ying Group (the
“New Le Ying Sales Agreement”) in place of the previous
agreement entered on 11 September 2015. Pursuant to the
New Le Ying Sales Agreement, price of the sales of intimate
wear and sport wear products by the Company to Le Ying
Group shall be determined on an arm’s length basis with
reference to (1) the cost of production and the expected
gross profit margin, (2) the average selling price of the
products of comparable nature and scale and accepted by an
independent third party in the twelve-month period prior to
the relevant transaction, (3) where there is no such average
selling price available, any most recent available sale price
of products of comparable nature and scale offered by the
Group and accepted by an independent third party, the latest
available market data, and (4) the prevailing market price for
the sale of products of comparable nature and scale, which
should be in any event no less favorable to the Group than is
available to independent third parties.
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The New Le Ying Sales Agreement became effective on 1
April 2021 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a term on
31 March 2024 or (ii) the date on which Le Ying ceases to
be the connected person of the Company, whichever comes
earlier. The parties to the New Le Ying Sales Agreement
may negotiate to extend the agreement for a further term
of three years within two months before the expiry of the
three-year term of the agreement unless the agreement
is terminated due to Le Ying ceasing to be the connected
person of the Company.

On 31 March 2021, the Company entered into a new
sales agreement with Le Ying (the “2021 Le Ying Sales
Agreement”) with effective date on 1 April 2021, pursuant
to which the Company agreed to supply and procure its
subsidiaries to supply to Le Ying Group intimate wear
products, sport wear products and pandemic prevention
products for a term of three years expiring on 31 March
2024. The price determination terms are the same as the
New Le Ying Sales Agreement and was determined on an
arm’s length basis.

The proposed annual cap for aggregate annual purchase
amount payable by the Group for the years ending 31 March
2022, 2023 and 2024 will be HK$60.0 million, HK$80.0
million, and HK$100.0 million, respectively. Details of
the 2021 Le Ying Sales Agreement were set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 31 March 2021.

During the year, the annual cap for revenue from sales to
Le Ying for Fiscal 2021 was HK$100.0 million, the actual
transaction amount for Fiscal 2021 with Le Ying was
HK$27.0 million and the annual cap has been kept.

The transactions contemplated under the New Le Ying Sales
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.

FEwE2020/21

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

EEEHE

T REEREDN2021F4R184E
Mo R—EBME() 2024F3A31H
BB T B AARRRMEEA
TEAALE(AERREERE) « STER
HEWRITOA IR BE =FFHE
A R AE A P T T 7 A 5 1 e F B8
E—SER=F  HHZALETH
BN RRIRGEA T MR EBIBRIN o

R2021F3A31H » NARIEERET
UHHEERE([2021FELBEER
HE) o R2021F4 A1 BER Bt
RAARIRBLREELNBARIMELR
SEHERSNKRER BBREE
mEEER  BH=F  BEXE2024
FIANAER o EEEHEFTLER
EataR - WIRAFRAERE -

REEEZE2022F ~ 20234F 2 20244F
SANALFERNFEREBENE
EFELRSR AB¥60.08E T
75#80.08 &L R ABHE100.0BE T °
2021 FEBEERBBOFHBINER
AIBHA2021F3 A31HEAE -

FA - BL2021 A FRILERIEL HER
WAFE LR ABE10008E T
202 FHERNER TS 2BAE
27088 DETEELR -

MERHEEBHR N EETHRIR
BEBVBREENTERARADN
METRS  BRFEHINGEEY
TEMARIFEST

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 49



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

50

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory (Shenzhen)
Limited (“Shun Cheong”) is indirectly wholly-owned by
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), a controlling
shareholder and an executive Director of the Company, and
is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules.

On 27 March 2020, Shun Cheong entered into a property
leasing agreement (the “Property Leasing Agreement”)
with Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
(BREZRARCEY) BB 2 7)) ("RMIA Shenzhen”),
a company incorporated under the laws of the People's
Republic of China and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company, pursuant to which Shun Cheong agreed
to lease RMIA Shenzhen the Building located at Redstar
Community, Gongming Subdistrict Office of Shenzhen
Guangming District, Shenzhen, People’s Republic of China
(the “Premises”) for a term of three years. Pursuant to the
Property Leasing Agreement, the rent was determined on
an arm'’s length basis with reference to (i) the market rent
of the Premises according to a fair rent letter issued by an
independent property valuer (the “Valuer”); and (ii) various
conditions of the Premises, including but not limited to
the location of the Premises as well as the management
services associated with the Premises. The Valuer assessed
the market rent of the Premises, based on the prevailing
market conditions and the rental level of similar properties in
the vicinity.

The Property Leasing Agreement became effective on 1
April 2020 and is valid until either (i) the expiry of a period
of three years or (i) RMIA Shenzhen may terminate the
agreement before the expiry of its term by giving a six
months’ notice to Shun Cheong. RMIA Shenzhen may by
giving Shun Cheong a three months’ notice before the
expiry of the agreement, request for the renewal of the
lease.

The maximum annual aggregate amounts payable by RMIA
Shenzhen to Shun Cheong under the Property Leasing
Agreement for each of the years ending 31 March 2023
is RMB15.1 million (equivalent to approximately HK$17.3
million). The actual amount paid in Fiscal 2021 was HK$17.3
million.

The transactions contemplated under the Property Leasing
Agreement also constitute related party transaction of the
Company under HKFRS, details of which are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Float Limited (“Float”) is a limited company incorporated
in Hong Kong, wholly-owned by Ms. Hung Cheuk Man,
daughter of Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), a
controlling shareholder and an executive Director of the
Company, and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.

On 27 March 2020, the Company entered into an agreement
(the "Float Sales Agreement”) with Float, pursuant to
which the Company agreed to supply and procure its
subsidiaries to supply to Float intimate wear and sportswear
products for a term of three years. Pursuant to the Float
Sales Agreement, the price of the sales of intimate wear
and sportswear products by the Company to Float shall be
determined on an arm’s length basis with reference to (1)
the cost of production and the expected gross profit margin,
(2) the average selling price of the products of comparable
nature and scale and accepted by an independent third
party in the twelve-month period prior to the relevant
transaction, (3) where there is no such average selling price
available, any most recent available selling price of products
of comparable nature and scale offered by the Group and
accepted by an independent third party with reference to
the latest available market data, and (4) the prevailing market
price for the sale of products of comparable nature and
scale, which should be in any event no less favorable to the
Group than is available to independent third parties.

The Float Sales Agreement became effective on 1 April
2020 and is valid until 31 March 2023. The parties to Float
Sales Agreement may negotiate to extend the agreement
for a further term of three years within two months before
the expiry of the three-year term of the agreement.

The proposed annual cap of the sales to Float is HK$10.0
million and the actual aggregate sales amount for the year
ended 31 March 2021 was HK$0.5 million.
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Annual Review of the Continuing Connected
Transactions

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above continuing connected transactions and confirmed that the
transactions have been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better; and

(c) according to the agreements governing them on terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company's
auditor was engaged to perform certain procedures in respect
of the continuing connected transactions set out above in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements
3000 “Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the
continuing connected transactions.

Save as disclosed in this report, there were no connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions which are required
to be disclosed by the Company for the year ended 31 March 2021
in accordance with the provisions concerning the disclosure of
connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the material related party transactions undertaken by
the Group in its normal course of business are set out in note
31 to the consolidated financial statements. Those related party
transactions/continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules, which are set out in the paragraph headed “Connected
Transactions and Continuing Connected Transactions” on pages
48 to 52, have complied with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at 31 March 2021, none of the Directors is interested in any
business, apart from the Group's businesses, which competes
or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
businesses of the Group.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES AND EQUITY-LINKED
AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” above, at no time during the year was the Company, or
any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow
subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors or
chief executive of the Company or their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to subscribe for
securities of the Company or any of its associated corporations
as defined in the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO")
or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, nor did
the Company enter into any equity-linked agreement.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ANY
ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

As at 31 March 2021, the Directors and the chief executives of
the Company had the following interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules were as follows:

Name of Director Nature of Interest

EEpE ERME

Hung Yau Lit Beneficial owner; Interest in
(also known as YY Hung) controlled corporation

P9 dii EREAA
(RBHEHZE) REGDEEE R

Yiu Kar Chun Antony Beneficial owner

S BEmBEAA

Liu Zhengiang Beneficial owner

2IER BERERAA

Chen Zhiping Beneficial owner

PR A& E=AA

Sze Shui Ling Beneficial owner

i S BEmBEAA

M2021F3A31H - EZRARAHERITH
ABRARE REMEEEE(EELESRE
ERBIEXVER) A REES K HAEEDIE
32{ERHEN AR RIATEFENELMA
SARE E R B S10FTH LB ITAES
EITEFRHHIZETAESITHNERAA
KREBHZFORG - RN RERE
R AR T

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of the Company
Shares (%)
hZA A B IR AE
BRBE DT
RGEE (BoL)
896,023,000 73.19%
(Long position)
(Note)
(5F7)
(PEE)
305,000 0.02%
(Long position)
(F&)
200,000 0.02%
(Long position)
(418)
200,000 0.02%
(Long position)
(4F7)
200,000 0.02%
(Long position)
(FR)

Note: Amongst these 896,023,000 shares, 708,000,000 shares are beneficially
owned by Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited which is wholly
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited. Mr. Hung is also the beneficial
owner of 188,023,000 shares.

P5E © 7E 7% 896,023,000 % B 19 R + 708,000,000 A%
f% 17 B Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
Limited (Rt B (R BB Z) -2 EH
BIEREE  BEIFHFRAEKRE - HEE
18 B Regent Marvel Investment Holdings
Limited T HIRR (R A iR o A EM A
188,023,000/ KIE A A ©
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE
COMPANY

As at 31 March 2021, according to the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO and so far as
is known to the Directors, the following persons or corporations
(other than the Directors or the chief executives of the Company)
had interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO:
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Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in

Number of the Company

Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares (%)

(ERANGIL T

BHNBE DL

BRES BB sty RGEE (AZL)

Regent Marvel Investment Beneficial Owner 708,000,000 (L) 57.83%
Holdings Limited BEmEA A (Note 1)
(B=ET)

Choy King Ngor Interest of spouse 896,023,000 (L) 73.19%
IR [ty ey (Note 2)
(BF=E2)

Hui Ching Lau Interest in controlled 98,419,000 (L) 8.04%
B M corporation (Note 3)
SR EE R (MI7E3)

King Terrace Limited Beneficial Owner 98,419,000 (L) 8.04%
BEnfEAA (Note 3)
(BI=E3)

Yiheng Capital, LLC Beneficial Owner 99,056,280 (L) 8.10%

BEmEA A
L - Long Position L—F&
S — Short Position S—%KRE
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Notes:

1. Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited is beneficially and wholly
owned by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung). By virtue of the
SFO, Mr. Hung is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Regent
Marvel Investment Holdings Limited.

2. Ms. Choy King Ngor is the wife of Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and is deemed to be interested in the shares which are interested
by Mr. Hung under Part XV of the SFO.

& King Terrace Limited is beneficially and wholly owned by Mr. Hui Ching
Lau. By virtue of the SFO, Mr. Hui is deemed to be interested in the
shares held by King Terrace Limited.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2021, the Directors
were not aware that there is any other party (not being a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who, as at the date of this
annual report, had an interest or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company, which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and
3 of Part XV of the SFO or recorded in the register required to be
kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, there has been
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company's issued
shares up to the date of this report as required under the Listing
Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company
are set out in the “Corporate Governance Report” section on
pages 58 to 74 of this annual report.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER BALANCE
SHEET DATE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, there were no other
significant events affecting the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries after the balance sheet as at 31 March 2021 requiring
disclosure in this annual report.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2021 have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers, who
will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. A
resolution for re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as
the independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
SRERRS

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report
(the “Corporate Governance Report”) in the Group’'s annual
report for the year ended 31 March 2021.

COMMITMENT TO CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Board and the management of the Group are committed
to the maintenance of good corporate governance practices
and procedures. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective
management, a healthy corporate culture, successful business
growth and enhancing shareholders’ value. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasize a quality Board,
sound internal controls, and transparency and accountability to all
shareholders.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Board has reviewed the Company’s corporate governance
practices and is satisfied that save as disclosed below, the
Company has complied with all code provisions and, where
applicable, the recommended best practices of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report (“CG Code"”)
contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended
31 March 2021.

According to code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The Company has appointed Mr. Hung
Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) as both the Chairman and the
Chief Executive Officer of the Company. The Board believes that
vesting the roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer in
the same individual would enable the Company to achieve higher
responsiveness, efficiency and effectiveness when formulating
business strategies and executing business plans. The Board
believes that the balance of power and authority is sufficiently
maintained by the operation of the senior management and the
Board, which comprises experienced and high-calibre individuals.
The Board currently comprises five executive Directors
(including Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)) and three
independent non-executive Directors and therefore has a fairly
strong independence element in its composition. The Board will
nevertheless review the structure and composition of the Board
from time to time in light of prevailing circumstances, in order to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance practices of the
Company.

EESMRARAEBEZ2021F3A318 1
FENFRIEEACEEARE([DEER
H|eE]) o

W RERRAE

EXehAEEERERNBIRANEE
BABHALER - ARFMEE - RFNEE
BAREREE - BELEIUL - KIER
BRLEARREERE BT RROE
R ARANEEERRAZESERNE
2 REOABEEANEZRERAE
BHENEEMN -

TEERER
EECOBEHARRANCEETARER  WE
MR T XTSI - NABREE2021F3
A3MAIEFE—EET EmRAM 45T
BT ST AHESUA R (nE B ) e ¥ BIATRI R
TEEARS ([CEERTDNEEHE
WA o

RBEFRMBRXA21 TR REFRNITEN
ABEAEMED » A TEHFE—ARE - K
RADEERBE(XBHHE) RERER
AEEREFNTE - EFEMHE TR
BEATENACHR - ABEHERRT
PRBIRT R R B RTT RS 80 E g -
BREREANS -  EFGRE - EAKR
LERBFATHRNEREEERESS
MEETRABRHHEENEERYE -EF
EHRFHARRNTES(BIEARE(XEH
W) FE) R =R BIIERTEEER
HHAKAGHRERNELIE - AT - EF
SNBRERAR TSRS EETSORE LA
B MR AR BN RKFEEERER

538 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED # % iREIB (2R AR AT



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code")
as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions. Upon specific
enquiries being made with all Directors, each of them confirmed
that they have complied with the required standards set out in the
Model Code for the year ended 31 March 2021.

THE BOARD

Roles and Responsibilities

The Board, led by the Chairman, Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known
as YY Hung), determines and monitors the overall strategy
and policies, annual budgets and business plans, evaluates the
performance of the Group, and supervises the management of
the Company.

The Board is accountable to shareholders for the activities and
performance of the Group and its primary functions cover, among
other things, the formulation of overall strategy, the review of
the corporate and financial policies, review and assessment
of the Company's financial reporting, internal control and risk
management systems and the oversight of the management of
the Group’s business and affairs. In addition, the Board has also
established four Board committees, namely the audit committee,
the nomination committee, the remuneration committee and
the executive committee, and has delegated to these Board
committees various responsibilities set out in their respective
terms of reference.

Composition

The Board currently has eight Directors comprising five executive
Directors and three independent non-executive Directors (the
“INEDs"). The Directors for the year ended 31 March 2021 and
up to the date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung)
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony (Chief Financial Officer)

Mr. Liu Zhengiang

Mr. Chen Zhiping (Chief Operating Officer)

Ms. Sze Shui Ling

Independent non-executive Directors
Dr. Or Ching Fai

Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie

Ms. Tam Laiman
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The members of the Board represent a wide background and rich
industry experience with appropriate professional qualifications.
Please refer to the section headed "Profile of Directors, Senior
Management and Company Secretary” of this annual report for
the profiles of the Directors. Save as disclosed in the section
headed "Profile of Directors, Senior Management and Company
Secretary”, the Directors have no other financial, family or other
material/relevant relationships with one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company are served by Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY
Hung) and have not been segregated as required under code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board is of the view that
such arrangement provided the Group with strong and consistent
leadership to the Company and allowed for more effective and
efficient business planning and decisions as well as execution of
long term business strategies.

Independence of INEDs

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Board had three
INEDs, representing more than one-third of the Board, and at
least one of them has the appropriate professional qualification of
accounting or related financial management expertise as required
by Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
of the three INEDs in respect of his/her independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers that
all the INEDs are independent parties in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules and free of
any relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independence judgements.
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Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Code provision A.4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive
Directors shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-
election. Each of the executive Directors has renewed the service
contract with the Company for a further term of three years
commencing on 11 September 2018. Each of the INEDs has
renewed the letter of appointment with the Company for a further
term of three years commencing from 11 September 2018.

In accordance with Article 84 of the Articles of Association, at
each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if their number is not a multiple of three, then the
number nearest to but not less than one-third) shall retire from
office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three
years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election. Further,
any Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall
hold office until the first general meeting of the Members after his
appointment and shall be subject to re-election at such meeting
and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following annual
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-
election.

In the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company, Mr.
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony
and Ms. Tam Laiman will retire as Directors in accordance with
Article 84 of the Articles of Association and, being eligible, will
offer themselves for re-election. Their biographical details will be
set out in the circular to be dispatched to the Shareholders with
the notice of annual general meeting.
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Meetings

The Board meets on a regular basis, and on an ad hoc basis,
as required by the business needs. During the year ended 31
March 2021, the Board convened 4 board meetings and one
annual general meeting (the “2020 AGM") to approve the final
and interim results announcements and financial reports, and to
discuss the overall strategy and monitor financial and operation
performance of the Company.

Attendance of each individual Director at the Board meetings and
the 2020 AGM during the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out in
the following table:

23
EESTHRBERMETRETEE RN
HZE2021F3A31ALFE  EE2AMAN
REEGGZEUR—RREEFAE (2020
ERFBAERE]) - ABERP R ERRELS
NERVHRE - Wil ISR RERA
NEIMI R EERSE -

TR EEREENEE202193HA31H
EEHFEEEERHAN2020FRRBF KR
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Number of
Board
meetings
attended
HEEEE
Name of Director =6 PN
Executive Director HITEE
Mr. Hung Yau Lit i 414
(also known as YY Hung) (RBHEHE)EE
(Chairman and Chief Executive Officer) (TEREFHTE)
Mr. Yiu Kar Chun Antony kst 4/4
(Chief Financial Officer) (BETEE)
Mr. Liu Zhengiang AEBEE 3/4
Mr. Chen Zhiping BRETEE 414
(Chief Operating Officer) (BEZER)
Ms. Sze Shui Ling Mgl Z T 414
Independent non-executive Director BUHHATEE
Dr. Or Ching Fai TEEEL 414
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie BE KT 4/4
Ms. Tam Laiman BEXRT 414

Attendance

Attendance in the 2020 Attendance

rate AGM rate
=—AE HiE2020F

HEE RREEXE HE=R

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z

75 No 0
&

100 Yes 100
%

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z

100 Yes 100
z
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Board Diversity Policy

The Company has adopted a Board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) setting out the approach to achieve diversity
on the Board in order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board
and to maintain the highest standards of corporate governance.
The Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
at Board level and has commitment to diversity at all levels,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or profession experience.

All Board appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective criteria, having
due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, profession experience, skills and
knowledge. The ultimate decision will be made upon the merits
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the
Board.

Having reviewed the Board Diversity Policy and the Board's
composition, the nomination committee of the Company is
satisfied that the requirement set out in the Board Diversity Policy
has been met.

Nomination Policy

The Company has adopted a nomination policy on 26 November
2018 which sets out the selection criteria and nomination
procedures adopted to guide the nomination committee of the
Company to select and recommend candidates for directorship so
as to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business.

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the
nomination committee of the Company in assessing the suitability
of a proposed candidate:

° reputation for integrity;

o qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company's
business and corporate strategy;
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. (in case of independent non-executive Directors)
requirement for the Board to have independent non-
executive Directors in accordance with the Listing Rules and
whether the candidate would be considered independent
with reference to the independence guidelines set out in the
Listing Rules;

° any potential contributions that the candidate can bring to
the Board,;

o commitment for responsibilities of the Board in respect of
available time and relevant interest; and

° any other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company’s business operation and environment as well as
the industry in which the Company operates.

The nomination committee may consult any source it considers
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from the
shareholders of the Company with due consideration given to the
criteria which include but are limited to the above-mentioned.

The nomination committee or the company secretary of
the Company shall convene a meeting upon receipt of any
nominations of candidates to evaluate such candidates based on
the selection criteria mentioned above to determine whether such
candidate is qualified for directorship. The nomination committee
should then recommend to the Board to appoint the appropriate
candidate for directorship. For any person that is nominated by
a shareholder of the Company for election as a Director at the
general meeting, the nomination committee and/or the Board
should make recommendation to the shareholders in respect of
the proposed election of Director at the general meeting. The
Board should have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

Directors’ Continuous Professional Development

All the Directors are encouraged by the Company to participate in
continuous professional development so as to equip themselves
with the latest developments of the Listing Rules and other
applicable legal and regulatory requirements, industry knowledge
and managerial skills in relation to the operation of the Group's
business.

All Directors have provided to the Company with their training
records and such records have been maintained by the Company
for accurate and comprehensive record keeping.

64 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED  # ¥ 1R BIRX(

o (BABIUEMTEEME)RBELTR
AEEeREEBIIRNTEFNR
E AR BRREAKSRETRA
PR B 55| R B WARABIL -

e BREAVAEZESSFLENEMELR
Bt s

s NEFEBEMNARARANEEL
HERE - &

o BEARREBERYGKEHRIARLER
E %mmﬁmﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁo

= AR EES B RE
HE TR - flnIRE
EENEN - Ei FEZHPNRRIHE
RARNRBRRES  WEEEE(PEETR
) LR o

ARARABZEERAAWE RN B RE
AWEH&%&”%Q% Rig B EE F
REHHRIE NETTRHE - NEERREAR
BEBREIEENER - ﬁ%%iA%&Kﬁ
%%ﬁﬁﬁiﬁ HREERREA o RN
RABRRBEERBRRASG LERREENE
MALHE  REZEGRHEFTSER
BRAE LEREFTNRRARRIEL
B ERFRAEERREAMERMBRAK
SL2ENEHMESRE  AAERKRERE -

EESREERER
ARRSBEREF2ERERXER

R AL T AR B % Eo At B DA D) B BE EE*%
BHBERANBLERAEERBEMOITE
R E IR AL o

BEFCAARRREHEFIIRE %%
LB AR ARTE - REARE EE R EHN
FAlRCE o

ZR)AERDE



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Directors’ Liability Insurance and Indemnity

The Company has arranged for appropriate directors and officers
liability insurance to indemnify its Directors against liabilities
arising out of legal action on corporate activities. During the year
ended 31 March 2021, no claim had been made against the
Directors of the Company.

Corporate Governance Functions

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out
in the code provision D.3.1 of the CG Code. These include: to
develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance; to review and monitor the training and
continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; to review and monitor the Company'’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to employees and Directors; and to
review the Company's compliance with the CG Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules and disclosure in the Corporate
Governance Report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established various committees, including the audit
committee, remuneration committee, nomination committee
and executive committee, each of which has the defined written
terms of reference that will be reviewed and updated, where
necessary. Copies of minutes of all meetings are kept by the
company secretary and open for inspection at any reasonable time
on reasonable notice by any Director. Each committee is required
to report to the Board on its decision and recommendations,
where appropriate.

Audit Committee

The audit committee comprises three INEDs, namely Dr. Or
Ching Fai, Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman.
The chairman of the audit committee is Dr. Or Ching Fai who has
appropriate professional qualifications.

The audit committee is established to, without limitation, assist
the Board in providing an independent review and supervision
of the Group’s financial and accounting policies, to review the
financial controls, risk management and internal control systems
of the Company, to oversee the audit process, and to perform
other duties and responsibilities as delegated by the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2021, the audit committee
members met two times with the Group’s senior management
and the external auditors to discuss and review, among other
things, the following matters:

o the interim results for the six months ended 30 September
2020 and the annual results for the year ended 31 March
2021 to ensure full, complete and accurate disclosure in the
aforesaid financial statements pursuant to the accounting
standards and other legal requirement for presenting the
same to the Board for approval,

° the terms and remuneration for the appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as external auditors to perform the
agreed-upon procedures on the interim results for the six
months ended 30 September 2020 and the audit of annual
results for the year ended 31 March 2021,

° the independence of the external auditors especially for
those non-audit services; and

° the overall effectiveness of the Company’s internal control
and risk management systems.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meetings
is set out in the following table:

Name of Director

REZE2021F3A31AILFE » EXERES
BRESEANERNSLEEE RINEZERANE
IMREE  UilmkBE(EFRRE)UAT
E=y=

o EZE2020%9A30H 1L/ AR FHEIZE
BEREZE2021F3A31AILFERNEF
B DR EMRB ST ER RE
MERRTEEY TFTESSUHEIER
MmEAELEE TR REHEER

o ZEBREBUKESIMEBEBAINE
ZERT R G B E - A E Z=2020
F9A30H EAE AP EZEEETTH
ERRF  UEREEZ=2021F3A3181E
FENDFEELTEZR

o MBS EEN CLEIEBRZRY) 1058
VA S

s ARAABEEFEAREZRGHE
PR o

B

il

ki

TREFIZEFIKELFZREEEHRNENR -
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee comprises three members, namely
Mrs. To Wong Wing Yue Annie (the chairman of the committee),
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung) and Ms. Tam Laiman.

The primary responsibilities of the remuneration committee
include (but not limited to) making recommendations and
proposals to the Board in respect of remuneration policies and
structure for Directors and senior management's remuneration.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the remuneration
committee held one meeting, in which it reviewed the existing
remuneration policies by reference with the market research
and gave recommendation of the remuneration packages and
performance-based bonus for executive Directors and senior
management to the Board for approval.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meeting
is set out in the following table:
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 34 to
the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to the
code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual remuneration of
other members of the senior management by bands for the year
ended 31 March 2021 is set out below:
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Remuneration to the senior management
by bands
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HE2021F3ANHBLEFEEMESRERE
B BIZEREI DN FEHMEINAT ¢

Number of
senior management
BREEBAY

HK$1,000,001 - HK$1,500,000 751,000,001 7024 % 1,500,000 1
HK$1,500,001 - HK$2,000,000 711,500,001 7024 %2,000,0007T 1
HK$2,000,001 - HK$2,500,000 712,000,001 702 %2,500,0007T 3
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Nomination Committee

The nomination committee comprises three members, namely,
Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY Hung), Mrs. To Wong Wing
Yue Annie and Ms. Tam Laiman. Mr. Hung Yau Lit (also known as
YY Hung) is the chairman of the nomination committee.

The primary responsibilities of the nomination committee include
(but not limited to) reviewing and making recommendations to
the Board on structure, size composition and diversity of the
Board, to oversee the identification and assessment of potential
board candidates, to provide oversight and direction in respect
of the succession planning for Directors and to determine the
composition of Board committees.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the nomination committee
held one meeting which dealt with the following matters:

° review of the Board composition and structure;
° review of independence of INEDs; and
° review of re-appointment of retiring Directors.

Attendance of each individual member at the committee meeting
is set out in the following table:
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Executive Committee

The Board has set up the executive committee on 30 November
2015. The executive committee comprises all executive Directors
of the Company and the chairman of the Board shall be the
chairman of the committee.

The primary responsibilities of the executive committee include,
but not limited to, advising and assisting the Board in formulating
policies, monitoring the performance of management in carrying
out and implementing the policies laid down by the Board for the
Group, and handling and dealing with the bank-related transactions
and matters.

HITEES
BEEMN2015F 11 AB0BKIHITEES -
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Company engages PricewaterhouseCoopers as external
auditor. PricewaterhouseCoopers is responsible for auditing
and forming an independent opinion on the Group's annual
consolidated financial statements.

The audit committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’'s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year a planning report from the external
auditor confirming its independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with representatives of the external auditor to consider
the scope of its fees, and the scope and appropriateness of non-
audit services, if any, to be provided by it. The audit committee
also makes recommendations to the Board on the appointment
and retention of the external auditor.

Auditor’'s Remuneration

During the year ended 31 March 2021, the total fees paid/payable
in respect of services provided by PricewaterhouseCoopers, the
external auditor of the Company, are set out below:

FriR AR %S

Services rendered

BRI
FEEIZIRES

Audit services
Non-audit services

ERERRE

SRR BEM

ARRIREERBKEEEEBARINE
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REENFREEMHERE LU IR EE L
BR -

ERZBeENRERINSZBE BT
REBME  URBZBEENERE - 28BS
BERERIMNS BB L ER LB
HEEBMENREIRE - WEINSZBEAR
REBTEH  UEREWERE - AKiSH
HAiR e SRR (B ) EE B E
% - BZZ BTN ZBE N R EER
BEEAEFSRIES

(3 GIE

HZE2021F3A31 B ILEFE - LA AFSNE
% B RN 28 Fo ok 3B 5T RT3 75 T2 4L A9 BR 7%
BAt N B AREHIIIT

Fees paid/payable
Bt/ BB

HK$°000
BT

3,015
1,145
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledged their responsibility to present
a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in the
consolidated financial statements of the annual and interim
reports, other price sensitive announcements and other financial
disclosures required under the Listing Rules, and to report to
regulators as well as to disclose information required pursuant
to statutory requirements. When the Directors become aware of
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, such uncertainties would be clearly and
prominently set out and discussed in detail in this Corporate
Governance Report.

The statement of the independent auditor of the Company about
their reporting responsibilities and opinion of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2021 is set out in the Independent Auditor’'s Report on pages 158
to 164 of this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL AUDIT

Risk Management and Internal Control

To manage and monitor the various risk factors which the
Company may be exposed, the Board is responsible for
establishing and overseeing the Company's risk management and
internal control systems on an ongoing basis, and ensuring the
review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems has been properly conducted. The main features
of this system, which continues to operate, were described in this
Corporate Governance Report.

The Company has already reviewed its risk management
framework and processes and has implemented relevant
measures resulting from this exercise that aim to enhance
its framework and processes. In particular, the Company has
developed, approved and implemented a risk management
system, which is defined and supported by its endorsed
risk management policy. The terms of reference of the audit
committee have included its responsibility for an effective system
of internal control and risk management.

GEYE2A
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WIEREB/AMNE
Risk Governance Structure R ERRE

The Company’s governance structure for its risk management RARRBRERRROERRBEHINMNT o

system is shown as below. Each party has well defined and EREAEPREFANACBREE -

detailed roles and responsibilities.
Board of Directors
EEg

Audit Committee

Oversight Body
EEKE

Internal Audit Department

i

Executive Committee
HITEER

Risk Management
Steering Committee
RREEHAZES
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Risk Assessment Methodology

The Company's methodology for its risk assessment comprises
of four core stages (i.e. risk identification, assessment, monitoring
and reporting). These processes are performed at least once a
year to address changes in the Company’s business environment.

Review on the Effectiveness of Risk Management and
Internal Control Systems

The Board conducted an annual review on the effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems, covering all material
controls such as financial, operational and compliance controls.
In addition, the Board has appointed an international accountancy
firm to review the internal control systems of the Company on an
on-going basis. The review covered the expenditure, production
management and fixed assets management of certain key
subsidiaries of the Company.

Our Responsibility

Our Board has the overall responsibility to ensure that effective
and sound risk management and internal control systems are
maintained, while management is responsible to design and
implement an internal controls system to manage risks. The
Board is also responsible for reviewing the effectiveness of the
Company’s risk management and internal controls system.

The risk management and internal control systems can provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss, and are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure in the process of attaining business
objectives. Based on the results of the annual review, the Board is
satisfied and confident with the effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems currently put in place for the
Company.

Communication of Risk Events

Where risk events arise, our communications, both within the
Company and to external parties, are an integral part of the risk
management system. To enable the Company to make the
appropriate decisions and responses to mitigate or address
any risk event, relevant information on the incident needs to
be communicated by and to the right functions and individuals,
completely and accurately, and in a timely manner.

To ensure inside information of the Company is to be disclosed to
the public in a timely manner in accordance with the Listing Rules,
applicable laws and regulatory requirement, a framework has
been established to set out the procedures and internal controls
for the handling and dissemination of inside information.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS g RAER
The Company aims to establish fair and transparent procedures ARAREERELANFERERANER - FHAE
to enable all shareholders an equal opportunity to exercise their BRSNS 15 R N T R
rights in an informed manner and communicates efficiently with BARNRBRER - RIBABEIZMAIAR
the Company. Under the Articles of Association and the relevant AARHERELETF  BREZH(HPa
policies and procedures of the Company, the shareholders enjoy, AR

among others, the following rights:

1.

Convene an extraordinary general meeting/put
forward proposals:

Any one or more shareholders holding, at the date of deposit
of the requisition, not less than one-tenth (10%) of the paid
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall at all times have the
right, by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of
the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held
with two months after the deposit of such requisition at the
Company’s Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower A, Regent
Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong Kong. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit, the Board fails
to proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s)
himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner, and
all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a
result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company. The Company would take
appropriate actions and make necessary arrangements in
accordance with the requirements under Article 58 of the
Articles of Association once a valid requisition is received.

Propose a person for election as a Director:

As regards to the procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director, please refer to “Procedures for
shareholders to propose a person other than a retiring
director for election as a director at a general meeting”
under the section headed “Shareholders’ rights” of the
Company’s website at www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

Put forth enquiries to the Company:

Specific enquiries by Shareholders requiring the Board's
attention can be sent in writing to the company secretary
at the Company's Hong Kong office at 10th Floor, Tower
A, Regent Centre, 63 Wo Yi Hop Road, Kwai Chung, Hong
Kong.

FEwE2020/21
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INVESTOR AND SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

In order to develop and maintain a continuing and constructive
relationship with the shareholders, the Company has compiled
a shareholders communication policy and established various
channels of communication with the shareholders, such as
publication of interim reports and annual reports, press releases
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in
a timely manner. The shareholders are also encouraged to attend
the Company’s annual general meetings where the Chairman and
members of different Board committees are available to answer
Shareholders’ questions and exchange views with them.

Financial and other information in relation to the Group
has been published on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s
website at www.hkexnews.hk and the Company’'s website at
www.reginamiracleholdings.com.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Kwan Chuen is the company secretary of the Company.
He is an employee of the Company and reports directly to the
Board and is responsible for, inter alia, providing updated and
timely information to all Directors from time to time.

During the year ended 31 March 2021, Mr. Law has complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules and taken no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The Group has also dedicated great effort towards protecting the
environment and supporting society. For details, please refer to
the “Management Discussion and Analysis” section of this annual
report under the “Corporate Social Responsibility” subsection.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2021 and up to the date of this
report, the Company has not made any changes to its Articles of
Association. An up-to-date version of the Articles of Association is
available on both the websites of the Hong Kong Stock Exchange
and the Company.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R A EREREE

ABOUT THE REPORT

Introduction

The Group is pleased to issue its fifth environmental, social and
governance report (the “Report”), with an aim to disclose the
Group's policy system and performance in respect of fulfilling its
environmental and social responsibilities for the Reporting Period
(as defined below). On the basis of the environmental, social
and governance report for last year, the Report has improved
the information visualization, in order to present the Group's
commitment, achievement and performance in respect of the
Group's environmental, social and governance (“ESG") in a more
vivid manner.

Scope of Reporting

The Report covers the manufacturing and office business of the
Group's Shenzhen and Vietnam factories in its general disclosures
and the key performance indicators for social subject area,
whereas the environmental KPIs encompass the manufacturing
and office business of the Shenzhen factories and Vietnam
factories A, B, C, D and E, to further align with the Group's
operating performance for the Reporting Period (as defined below).

The time frame of the Report lasts from 1 April 2020 to 31 March
2021 (the “Reporting Period”), with certain content dating back
to previous or extending to subsequent period, as appropriate.

Basis of the Report

The Report has been prepared strictly according to the
requirements of the Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide (the “"Guide") of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited, with disclosure priorities of the Report and the
Group's management objectives for sustainable development
identified based on the degree of concern on each topic of the
stakeholders.

BRAHRE
WEBN

TEBMABMGERANDRE LT RERR
H(Xx®E))  EEBBEASETREHRRH
(EENMT)ETRERLESETHEAMNK
KEFMEMERER - EAFRE gk
BRMEMEME - AWREMR T IEED
AIARAL - U E A4 SRR A EEHNER
# -« 1@ K& A (Environmental, Social and
Governance ' [ESG )8R « BEEMEKIR o

HEE
RBE—RPEAR LML S BREREDIE
020 2 7 S [ R 31 A e o LR [ P A
MM RER  REHRHARERUERAIRE
RYIBREMBEAR - BEBR - MECH -
HMEDR - BEEMMNEERMRNEY - E
BT AEEAEREHR(ERNT)NEER
BRE

IR IS E A20209F4 A1 A E202143
A3MB([HEHE ) - BORBEERFIE
JEAFR o

WMERE

R ERB2REBBHAZSMERARCGR
% e REamERD(GESDDMRE
e WIRBHESASSEBNEIRERE
EARENBBEEHARAEEHERR
EEMER -

76 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ B (GEIR)ER DT



Principles of the Report
The Report upholds the following principles of materiality,
quantitative, balance and consistency to report:

Principle

A

Materiality
BEM

Quantitative
21t

Balance

L™

Consistency

—E

Meaning
B

The threshold at which ESG issues
determined by the board are sufficiently
important to investors and other
stakeholders that they should be
reported.

EETEETAHERR HeREAEEHE
HREBEREMIBOHEELEELER - &
T ABLIEVEHIESR ©

KPIs in respect of historical data need
to be measurable. The issuer should set
targets (which may be actual numerical
figures or directional, forward-looking
statements) to reduce a particular impact.
In this way the effectiveness of ESG
policies an management systems can
be evaluated and validated. Quantitative
information should be accompanied
by a narrative, explaining its purpose,
impacts, and giving comparative data
where appropriate.

BHES BBRN AR ERIERAR Tt E -
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The ESG report should provide an
unbiased picture of the issuer’s
performance. The report should avoid
selections, omissions, or presentation
formats that may inappropriately
influence a decision or judgment by the
report reader.

RIE - g REBREEE MR TMEH 2 58
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The issuer should use consistent
methodologies to allow for meaningful
comparisons of ESG data over time.
BITABRER—BHWBREST L R
;E, CHERESHBHENIEEESROL
%X o

Source of Information
The information disclosed in the Report is derived from the
Group's official documents, statistical reports and relevant public

information.
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R dEREREE
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Responses of the Group
AL E G E

The Report identifies current major ESG
issues through communication with
stakeholders, taking into account the
nature of the Group’s business, operation
mode and locations of operation.
RipEimiBaER ABRAKHEMNENER
R @ REREE  WEE T AEED
EBME  SEHAREEME -

The Report provides KPIs with
quantitative measures where feasible,
and includes explanatory notes to allow
readers to assess and validate the ESG
policy of the Group and its performance.
RB|EFEATERT - LE R R
BRUEIE - WHITEREA - MEEE AR
BAREEIRE @ RESHERERNE
RERIR o

The Report comprehensively disclosed
the performance of the Group in terms
of ESG, and avoided the expression or
presentation format that may improperly
affect the decision-making or judgment of
readers based on objective facts.

AREURBEERER  2ERELRE
BAERE  HERELRTHEBURE - #
RAEE TREFEEERRIHEHORL
FEHER -

The Report has compared current KPlIs
and information on different aspects
with those in the past, in order to allow
readers to facilitate the comparisons of
the Group's performance year-on-year.
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SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT GOVERNANCE

Sustainable Development Philosophy

As an advocator and practitioner of sustainable development
philosophy, the Group actively manages the environmental and
social impact of its manufacturing and operational activities.
While striving to be a world-class enterprise, we bring values
to the environment, employees and society. We adhere to the
sustainable development guideline of “Promoting the sustainable
development of the Group with innovative, comfortable,
healthy and environment-friendly products”, and focus on
the supply chain, product responsibility, employees, research
and development (“R&D") and innovation, in order to achieve
the goal of coordinated development of society, economy
and ecological environment on the basis of ensuring that the
daily operation meets the needs of consumers. We strive for
excellent manufacturing to produce high-quality products; we
value collaboration to procure our supplier to honor obligations;
we comply with laws and regulations and observe business
ethics; we deploy our talents according to their abilities, advocate
diversity and integration, and protect their legitimate rights and
interests; we protect the environment, implement energy-saving
and consumption reduction measures, pay attention to climate
change and sustain a balanced ecological environment; we give
back to society and support community development. During the
Reporting Period, we continued to implement our sustainable
development philosophy. We endeavor to create long-term value
for stakeholders, shoulder responsibility, and achieve sustainable
development in a responsible fashion.
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Supply Chain
Management
frEEEE

Establish long-term
and stable cooperation
with suppliers, create
safe and high-quality
goods, and promote
mutual growth with
partners
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Product
Responsibility
EmEE

Actively consider
environmental
factors in the
process of raw
material
procurement and
production

TERM R A4
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Employment

&=

Pay attention to the
ability development
of employees, attach
importance to the
safety and health of
employees, and
safeguard the rights
and interests of
female employees
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Environment
B

Carry out energy
consumption and
carbon emissions
management, pay
attention to water
resources, sewage
and waste
treatment, protect
the environment and
natural resources
HEITRE RPN E
2 BEKERNT
K BEEMERE R
EIREARARER

Sustainable Development Fields of

the Group

SETFERRES

4

Vision

FA=

Promote sustainable
development of

the industry through
innovation and
technology,

becoming an outstanding

cross-sector global
enterprise
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Mission
Ed

Create first-class
products, delivering
industry value and
fulfilling social
responsibilities
BlE—RER BR
THREE  BITHEg
{as

Value

BESR

Integrity and
pragmatism,
people-oriented,
innovative
development,
cooperation
WIEHE - UABK -
AR - MEAE

Corporate Culture of the Group
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Research and
Development
and Innovation

WAl

Create products
and designs with
sustainable
philosophy, and
influence lifestyle
with products
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Belief
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Together We Soar
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Structure of Sustainable Development Governance
The Group has established a robust ESG management structure.
We have effectively carried out our sustainable development
strategies with well-specified responsibilities at each level,
to ensure that environmental and social responsibilities are
incorporated into our management decision-making, daily
operation and corporate culture.

The Board, as the highest decision-maker responsible for the
Group's ESG affairs, provides guidance and suggestions on
sustainable development management by timely reviewing and
assessing the Group's strategies. As the central department
on ESG affairs, the department for sustainable development
coordinates and oversees all the departments in fulfilling
sustainable development responsibilities, and organizes the
preparation of the annual ESG report; respective functional
departments, as the actual executors, are responsible for
implementing sustainable development strategies and providing
materials for information disclosure.

Under the robust support of our ESG management structure, our
sustainable development strategies that cover multiple subject
areas, such as social compliance, Customs-Trade Partnership
Against Terrorism, brand protection and environmental
governance and system establishment, are applied to Shenzhen
and Vietnam factories, as appropriate, with comprehensive
policies and systems in place to effectively guide the sustainable
operation of our own and our partners.
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ESG Leadership
The Board of Directors
R HEREAREERE

EET

ESG Coordination
Department for Sustainable Development
BiZ - HeRERGEREE
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ESG Execution
Respective Functional Departments
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Shenzhen Vietnam
Factories Factories
R E B E
Social Compliance/ Brand Protection/ Brand Protection/
Customs-Trade Partnership Environment/ Social Customs-Trade Partnership Environment/

Against Terrorism System Establishment Responsibility Against Terrorism System
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Sustainable Development Governance Structure
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COMMUNICATION WITH STAKEHOLDERS

Stakeholder Communication Mechanism

The Group maintains continuous communication with its
stakeholders in an open and prudent manner. Stakeholders’
concerns and advice are regarded as our key reference for
sustainable development. We have set up a normalized
stakeholder communication mechanism to ensure that
stakeholders are timely informed of the Group's operation status.
We regularly review our potential environmental and social
impact, and actively listen and respond to stakeholders’ appeal
and suggestions, all in an effort to safeguard and consolidate the
relations of mutual help and trust with our stakeholders and jointly
attain the sustainable development goal of the Group.

BEABE

B A EEKS
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MEFHEMAEENEZER - HIEHR
ARMAHRERHEELNARETE @ 55
ARSI O A S AR AR SR S adRg o DAL
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Communication and Response

BEEDE

Stakeholder Expectation and Demand

B A HEEER

Employees Remuneration and benefits assurance
8T Healthy working environment

Career development and promotion
Safeguard staff’s legitimate rights
and interests

I AR AR R
R TIERIR
BEBRESTT
RiEB TAERER

Customers Product quality
B Customer information protection
Business integrity
EmEE
BEPERRE
[SEEH

Shareholders and Financial results
investors Corporate sustainable profit
MR EE Corporate transparency
Rights protection
BITE 34
UNCIBIESS =0
NRBEAE
ERIRE

Offer competitive remuneration and
benefits

Pay attention to staff's occupational
health and safety

Attach importance to staff training and
development

Improve people-oriented protection
system

REERF N H AT
BIETREREEZS
BERBETHIIHEERE

2 ASURIERE R

Ensure product quality and safety
Protect privacy information
Reasonable promotion and marketing
REEREEMHL S

RERBLES

BIRHEEEE

Achieve profitability

Enhance corporate sustainable profitability
Disclose daily information

Convene general meetings

ERANBEZ

REABIFERNEN

HEAEER

BRKRERE
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Stakeholder

A

Government and
regulatory authorities

BT R E R

Suppliers and partners

HEREAER

Industrial associations

E1-

Local communities

EiitE

Expectation and Demand

HEEFER

Compliance with laws
Make legal tax payments
Job creation

BIESTE

BORA

fRsERL 2

Cooperation and win-win
Open and fair
Achieve common growth

BIERE
NGNS
ERARKE

Exchange industrial experience
Promote industrial advancement
TTEERRAMN

HEBITRES

Protect community environment
Devote to charitable activities
Create harmonious community
environment

Facilitate community development
IRAELRIRE

REHE N

EEMENRBERE

R R ER

R dEREREE

Communication and Response

BEEDE

Compliance operation

Make tax payments voluntarily
Create job opportunities
BRKE

FEAT

BlERm RS

Improve supplier assessment and
communication system

Standardize the bidding process of
suppliers

Establish communication platforms for
suppliers

FeE B R BB Rk b

RE R ERIERIE
BREHEmERYa

Participate in industrial forums
Enhance R&D capability
SHTEM

RAMEREND

Comprehensively practise green operation
Undertake charitable projects

Actively engage in joint community
construction

Actively engage in poverty alleviation
THEREEES

HEA@mIAR

TEfE 22 Bt @ 3

BHR2EKE

Stakeholder Communication Mechanism

R BB S
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Material Subjects

The Group believes that ongoing communication helps us
keep abreast of the latest perspectives, and quickly respond to
the risks and opportunities arising from the changing market.
Therefore, based on the materiality assessment results from
last financial year and taking into account the results from our
communication with stakeholders during the Reporting Period,
we have determined the materiality sequence of subjects for the
Report and elaborated on them in a targeted manner herein, so
as to preserve the substance of our information disclosure in the
Report.

ERMEE
ARERERHEEBENEDRMBRER
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ESG Reporting Guide Strategies and Goals Risks and Opportunities Subjects among Industry Peers
ESG# &SI Bk ER ARREE B{T%RE

ESG Subjects
ESGERE

Materiality Assessment Communication with Stakeholders

EEMMME R AEE

A Materiality Matrix for ESG Subjects

ESGEEMEEEM

Evaluation Process for ESG Material Subjects

ESGEEMZBNTERRE
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According to the research results that stakeholders participated in, BIEESE ASEARLER  AEEERNE
the Group drew the materiality matrix for subjects to reflect the R BEEMERE - R EIERB YA
importance of various subjects to stakeholders and business, and BAMEBNEERE - WHBA L AZEE
made sequences in the identified subjects: HEITHEE

A Materiality Matrix for ESG Subjects
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A Materiality Matrix for ESG Subjects
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Sequence of ESG Material Subjects
ESGEEMREHF

Very Important 1 Labor rights protection
FEEE 4 T i (RE
2 Product quality and safety
EnEsfts
3 Occupational health and safety
4 R&D and innovation
i 2% ER gl
5 Staff training and development
B TiE5)| R
6 Customer satisfaction and information security
ERmEEREELS
7 Management of energy consumption and carbon emissions
BEFEERTRBE B IR
Important 8 Prevention of child and forced labor
BE PriEE T Ragin &%)
9 Water resources and sewage treatment
IKRE IR 5K BRI

10 Energy saving, emissions reduction and tackling climate change
ERBE R B B R SRR B L

11 Development of green and environment-friendly products
AR EIRIRE mbF &

12 Management of supply chains
HrEEEE

13 Protection of intellectual property rights
R ERERE

14 Anti-corruption and compliance management
RESHEERER

15 Staff remuneration and benefits
BT HMERA

16 Waste treatment
FEFEVRIE

17 Caring staff

18 Environmental and labor management performance of suppliers
HERIRIFHAE TEIERE
Less Important 19 Reasonable promotion and marketing
REE B IR A HE B B 8
20 Anti-discrimination and equal opportunity
RIS B e
21 Community investment
HEEE

Sequence of ESG Material Subjects
ESGEEMRBEHF
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As shown in the results of materiality assessment, the subjects
ranked higher in materiality for the year include labor rights
protection, product quality and safety, occupational health and
safety, R&D and innovation, staff training and development,
customer satisfaction and information security, management
of energy consumption and carbon emissions, etc. We will
emphasize on the disclosure of such subjects in the Report and
regard them as the significant basis for our ESG work planning for
the year ahead.

R dEREREE

RESZUEFGEERR - NEREEEMEH
FESHNABTIEZRE EREEHRZY
2 BEREERLE - JEEL BT
JIRER FRMEEREERE - fEEHE
MM E R SRR RMASELARETER
MRAERENRE  YAEST —F
ESGT{FREINERKIE -

FER%E2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 87



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R A EREREE

MUTUAL BENEFIT AND JOINT SUCCESS

As the world’s largest intimate wear manufacturer, the Group
leverages its leading seamless clothing technology as well as
continuous innovation of production craftsmanship, to consistently
gain recognition from international brands. Committed to our
mission of “Creating first-class products, Delivering industry
value and Fulfilling social responsibilities”, the Group strictly
controls product quality and safety, focuses on technical R&D
and innovation, safeguards the legitimate rights and interests
of its own and customers, and pays attention to supply chain
environment and social risks as well as obligation performance,
all in a bid to deliver mutual benefit and joint success with its
partners.

Creating Values for Customers

Creating values for customers is the Group's constant pursuit.
We keep ramping up our production capacity and efficiency to
cope with the order demands from major brand partners. We
are active in promoting information-based production automation
models to boost production management and efficiency. Our
years of commitment to design and manufacturing innovation
and continuous research on high-tech innovative craftsmanship
enabled us to forge solid relations with our existing and new
brand partners that are famous around the globe. “Quality, Speed,
Innovation, Sustainability” serve as our consistent strategies to
attain steady business growth.
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Comprehensive Quality Management

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where we operate our business, such as
the “Product Quality Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, the
“Law of the People’'s Republic of China on Protecting Consumer
Rights and Interests”, the “Vietnam Law on Product and Goods
Quality” and the “Vietnam Law on Protection of Consumers’
Rights”. In addition, we have established our quality management
system and kept improving it so as to fully guide and control
our product quality. In accordance with the actual needs of
the respective regions, we have prepared and implemented
policies and mechanisms such as the “Quality Policies”, the
“Determination Process of Material Plans”, the “Internal Flow
and Control Procedure for Materials and Products”, the “Product
Inspection Standard” and the “Management Procedure for
Product Inspection” in Shenzhen factories, and the “Work
Inspection Guide”, the “Standard Operation Procedure”, the
“Online Inspection Procedure” and the “Control Procedure for
Ungualified Products” in the Vietnam factories, to provide multiple
layers of assurance for the quality of materials and finished goods
throughout the production process.

Quality Management System

The Group has established and implemented the Quality
Management System (QMS) to provide strict assurance for the
product quality through formulating internal policies for product
quality and safety, setting appropriate quality goals as well as
conducting management appraisals. Through defect prevention
and continuous improvement, the product quality and safety
check are enhanced. The product quality and safety has been
recognized by our customers. Other than that, we have been
active in applying for international quality management system
certification. Shenzhen and Vietnam factories of Regina Miracle
have obtained the ISO 9001 quality management system
certification for their design and manufacturing processes.

R dEREREE

PHEEEE
AEEERBE(FEARANMBERELDE
V(P EARKMBEBE S RELR) (B
MEREERMBEHEEERGRER)F
BEMEBRFZMBEERER  BUX T
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mie) CoEL - EmAER R B RE SRR (&
a AR B IRTE ) S mm i iR B IR AR 17 ) F R A
HIE - RS E Y B (E ' TFE
S CRERIERR) (BRI TR TE
REMZHRE)EBRMGE - EEERR
RERHMK RN EE RS ELH -

HEEHER
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Management System, QMS) » BB &
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HEEEH
AEBERBAMSH [ R EREE —£E — 12

Quality Management Mechanism
The Group monitors all processes of “raw materials procurement

— production — inspection — control for unqualified products”
during the whole production in accordance with the QMS, in a bid
to ensure that the production of product is strictly in compliance

with the international standards, industry standards and corporate =)

standards and therefore guarantee the product quality.

Raw materials

procurement

In order to guarantee
the quality of raw
materials, all factories
of Regina Miracle
purchase from qualified
suppliers who have
been strictly appraised.
Raw materials
purchased can only be
put into storage when
inspected to be
qualified, which is to
ensure a 100%
qualification rate by
implementing an
inspection and
appraisal system with
multiple layers of
assurance.

RERBEMHEE  #
EARTA LRI
SPEABAHITRE -
EREM S RBAR
BRITREANE » HEIRAE
BIEEZER00% - B
178 TR R
[ o

Production

£E

In order to guarantee
the product quality,
Regina Miracle
conducts strict control
on all processes of
production and
implements the quality
tracing system during
the production, through
which we could trace
back to groups and
individuals responsible
for relevant product
quality issues and take
correction and
prevention measures in
timely manner so as to
achieve a 100%
qualification rate in next
production process.

RERERDE  #2
RHAEESRAMEEE
TS| AEEBIETE
THERENE  BE
mEEHREERER
FEEMTIAFEA - 3
Ko b SRERA IEFNTE 15
i AT —EER
BIREIE100% °

Inspection

B

All factories of Regina
Miracle impose strict
control on product
inspection to avoid
uninspected products
to be delivered.
Technical personnel
from the inspection
department conduct
the quality inspection
on production process
and the finished
products in strict
accordance with
relevant standards and
quality specifications of
such products during
the production, and will
issue corresponding
inspection reports and
relevant records for
qualified products after
inspection.

BB TREER
iR BB TT BRI TR -
ERAEBBOERT
R o il Bl
AB - HEREEBE
Y T KR dm B R
REREREENDS
RIGETEERR -
BERRHAARNRE
BRiRE RERIRCE o

TER - RE

B-TARMmIEH INEERBRSIREE
mn'E 8 BRI R E RS E
TERGBENCEREETEE  BREMED

Control for

unqualified
products
TEEEH

)

A three-level inspection
system composed of
self-inspection, cross
inspection and
specialized inspection
is in place to avoid
unqualified products,
while effective
correction and
prevention measures
are adopted to
eliminate the actual and
potential factors
contributed to
disqualification so as to
prevent the occurrence
of similar quality
issues.
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Quality Management Mechanism throughout the Whole Production Process

EREAREEEERS
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During the Reporting Period, we continued to improve the
inspection procedures, set up inspection teams for production
lines and packaging department to find defective products in
the production process in a timely manner and promptly urge
improvements. Other than that, we actively implement the “RFT
(Right First Time) 100% " policy to improve product quality to
reduce the defect rate. We continue to improve procedures such
as the 100% final inspection and the sampling inspection of QC
(Quality Control) to ensure that the products manufactured are
strictly inspected by the quality department to prevent unqualified
products from dispatching to the market and to the consumers.

We strive to optimize the verification procedures for machineries.
For all machineries that need to be verified, we clarify the
verification frequency and verification personnel. We also
organize an internal audit team to verify the execution of the
verification process to ensure that all machineries are operating
within a reasonable error range, thereby ensuring stable product
performance.

We attach great emphasis on the analysis and handling of
defective products. For products returned by consumers, we will
immediately set up a special team to investigate the reasons for
return, and conduct technical rework, product recalls, production
suspension or scrapping according to different reasons in order to
protect consumers’ rights and interests and protect the reputation
of customers and the Group from damage. The Group’s quality
management department regularly summarizes the defective
product information, discusses continuous improvement
measures with the technical team, and designates dedicated
personnel to follow up and monitor the improvement results.
During the Reporting Period, the percentage of total products of
our Group sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons was zero.

R dEREREE
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Internal Quality Appraisal

The Group assesses the quality management conditions
using the process measurement method, and implements
regular assessment, internal review and performance appraisal
mechanism to identify high quality risk projects, review the
implementation and execution, keep tracking and correcting
relevant problems and continue to improve the product quality
level. We encourage all staff to participate in comprehensive
quality management, implement the monitoring and evaluation
system for product quality and safety, and also have established
a product quality and safety management team. Committed
to our production targets of “quality and safety first with zero
violations”, we held activities with themes covering “How to
avoid the same problems”, “Open panel discussion on how to",
“Summarizing the appraisal results”, the success of which made
us well recognized by our major customers in aspects of product
quality and safety, and received no material complaints concerning
the quality and product safety during the Reporting Period. Other
than that, we have formulated and implemented a comprehensive
internal review system and established an internal review team.
Through a combination of monthly non-periodic internal review
and cross review, the Group seeks to review the execution of
each manufacturing process and each part, and promote the
standardization of the production process. Based on the defects
identified during internal review, follow-up measures will be
implemented in a timely manner, and we will keep improving
and optimizing the production process to achieve continuous
improvement on product quality and appropriate update of quality
data.

BB ETE
AEBRABREIETEZFHEEETEM
o BITEHRHE - AR ERERE R
H o LRI SEERBRIER - EEEENT
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Risk Assessment System

The Group implements quality risk and safety review by defining
the risk assessment mechanism and standardizing the risk
assessment process. The Group has established a risk assessment
system from the stage of development to bulk production. This
includes establishing a risk assessment project team, setting
up project operation procedures and dividing risk assessment
operation rules. Moreover, the quality management department
implements the risk assessment for each product at different
stages. We strive to find potential risk points that adversely affect
the craftsmanship, quality, materials, efficiency and equipment
in the risk assessment, and take timely responsive measures
to mitigate the possible impact of modifications during or after
production.

R&D Stage
TP ER

(1) Establish a risk assessment team

FRAL BB RGN AE

The pre-production team conducts risk
assessment meetings

with the risk assessment team
ERAER R R G AR R e
Identify and assess potential risk points
and consequences in advance

TRATER M EBE R RIER

2

=)

Bulk Production Stage
BEMRER
(1) Evaluate the stability in quality during
each step of craftsmanship when in
bulk production
BEISEEERZMEEENEEL
Provide feedback to the risk assess-
ment team when any abnormality is
identified
BEFFREHLEETG M
(3) QC regularly monitors the implementa-
tion of risk points during each process
REEHEREEIFRBREEEER
(4) QC requests the risk assessment team
to summarize after the production is

S

completed
FEDNETK - KT A SRBTE/E
1k

Risk Assessment System

B4 8 2
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mgFIE R
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% BREKZERFEEENE - BIHB
BRERE - Bl R ERIEANSE - XA
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Sample Inline Stage
B RInline

(1) Test and verify the feasibility of the
craftsmanship

RS ERE TR ER M7

Identify risk resolutions in advance and keep
improving

RS R B ARRE Y T T

Make decisions on small batch trial
productions

RERET EM/ I ERE

2

[

Trial Production Stage
HAEMRER

(1) Person in charge of risk assessment makes
decisions on which part to conduct the small
batch trial productions

BT B E AT HERHEB D M S S E
Fill in the relevant form after the production
EHRESHERE

Conduct another risk assessment meeting to
follow up the implementation of risk points

BRARRREERRELERRE

S

©
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In Fiscal 2022, we will further define the quality management
functions, keep improving the quality management system,
set up quality management working system and incentive
and punishment system, organize periodic audits on internal
quality system, supervise the implementation of correction and
prevention measures. We will carry out comprehensive product
quality and safety activities and enhance the awareness of product
quality and safety and management level among all staff. We will
also promote the implementation of the QC team and TPM (Total
Productive Maintenance) to guarantee the product quality and
production safety, establish the efficient production mechanism,
set up quality-related education training programs, make active
efforts to organize quality-related training education covering
comprehensive quality management and excellent performance
appraisal standards so as to improve the quality management
skills.

Quickly Responding to Changes

Innovation has always been the core driver for the development
of the Group. We are committed to providing our customers
and consumers with more innovative solutions, as well as
developing multi-functional products so that we can deliver
comfort, functionality and value proposition of intimate wear and
functional sportswear. We have adopted emerging materials,
introduced new equipment and developed innovative technologies
independently to improve production models to meet the needs
of quality and delivery of different order types. We have a state-
level laboratory and a strong R&D team, and possess a number
of international patents. Our R&D achievements have also been
commended and recognized by customers many times.
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REZ  BEEAEEERENEENE R
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Excellent Team and Resources

The corporate culture of open-minded learning and constant
innovation keeps the Group at the forefront of the industry. Since
2018, we have been vigorously promoting the Manufacturing
Excellence (ME) model, with designated departments responsible
for planning, coordinating and promoting innovative measures to
raise efficiency so that superior manufacturing can be delivered
through craftsmanship and technical innovation. During the
Reporting Period, in order to keep improving the capabilities of
team members and better serve our customers and consumers,
we focused on the cultivation of multi-skilled staff to enhance
the flexibility of the staff. We also actively arranged outstanding
staff to attend the trainings and assessments organized by core
customers and consistently created opportunities in sending
outstanding staff to visit domestic and overseas major trade fairs
of our industry and cross industries to acquire the latest external
information, broaden the horizons, and empower them for
continuous innovation.

Continuous Innovation of our Production Model

Production model innovation is the cornerstone of the Group
to improve its efficiency. During the Reporting Period, a bulk
production technical data package has been developed to record
and summarize the production methods and action videos for
new products and major styles, thus facilitating the knowledge
exchange within the Group. We have established a product
sample R&D team responsible for the design and promotion
of samples at the beginning of the development stage to
further improve the standardization and stability of our product.
In addition, we also optimized the production model in our
production lines, which helped further improve our production
efficiency and quality.
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Advanced R&D of Products

R&D and innovation of products, materials and production
technologies are important foundations on which the Group
relies for its development. Our proprietary seamless garment
technologies, composed of computer mold-making, hot-pressed
molding and seamless bonding, have shaped the core advantage
for us to gain customers and expand product categories.

We have established an innovation mechanism for industry-
university-research cooperation with the “Administration
Measures for the Industry-University-Research Cooperation”
((ESWEEEEIHE) ) formulated, and carried out active
actions to facilitate the cooperation and exchange with colleges
and universities and research institutes inside and outside of
China, in a view to promote the transformation of scientific
research achievements. We have formulated and implemented
skill training, performance appraisal and incentive system for our
colleagues in the technical R&D department, which aimed to
provide opportunities to our researchers for training and further
study. In addition, we have also established a fair competition
mechanism through a comprehensive performance appraisal
system to improve the enthusiasm of researchers and inspire
their potential.

During the Reporting Period, we made continuous efforts in
the R&D of important craftsmanship and products, to upgrade
craftsmanship technology and further improve our production
efficiency and product quality. We have developed a number of
innovative products for several world renowned brand partners
with our advanced technology, which are popular and well
recognized by the consumers.
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Effective Intelligent Technology

During the Reporting Period, the Group continued to invest in new
models and equipment. We facilitated our equipment automation
by cooperating with external companies. We implemented data-
based production management at all factories with screens
installed to display data, and improved our management efficiency
of silk screen printing workshops, materials facilities, production
lines in workshops and machine maintenance and repair through
real-time tracking of production condition from real-time display
and application of production data on the screens. We introduced
the QR code information system for incoming materials, so that
complete information of raw materials can be obtained through
the QR code to guarantee the safety of raw materials. And
through the real-time monitoring on raw material information,
we are informed of the use of raw materials to optimize the
production arrangement.

R dEREREE
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With the application of intelligent devices, less-skilled occupations
are replaced while labors freeing from such occupations are
allowed to take a chance in higher-skilled jobs. At the same
time, standardized production with a more stable quality level
plays a positive role in our long run development and continuous
satisfaction of customer needs.

Quick Response

During the Reporting Period, with the outbreak of novel coronavirus
pneumonia (COVID-19), customers’ demands for products and
cooperative ways have changed. The Group has been working to
expand its production capacity in Vietnam proactively as well as
developing innovative craftsmanship during the technical R&D
stage to realize automated production, and it never ceases to
update its internal process arrangement system. As a result, we
are able to plan a supply chain that satisfies customer demand
to coordinate with and adapt to the changing industry trends.
Under the external pressure regarding the pandemic during
the Reporting Period, many customers were unable to visit the
factories, we maintained proactive engagement with customers
to provide timely feedback on the production process. Meanwhile,
we actively coordinate available resources to provide customers
with a range of online services, such as Online Fitting which can
quickly transform the traditional offline fitting into an online mode,
and development of virtual samples which can show designs to
customers in different regions. These services play an important
role when our customers are unable to arrange fitting on-site.
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Protecting Legal Rights

The Group cherishes the business cooperation relationship with
our customers and strives to fulfill its commitments to protect the
legitimate rights and interests of itself and those of our customers.
We pay particular attention to our partners’ requirements for
suppliers’ environmental and social responsibility and implement
the concepts of compliant operation, environmental protection,
and transparent disclosure. We also cooperate with customers in
factory inspections proactively and meet the customer needs and
work together with them to build a sustainable industrial chain at
the same time.

Intellectual Property and Brand Protection

The Group takes "scientific management, meticulous design,
dedicated service, proactive innovation and continuous
improvement” as its principles, and attaches great importance
to protect its own R&D results and the information of its
customers and brands. We strictly comply with the laws and
regulations of the countries and regions where we operate our
business, including “GB/T 29490-2013 Management Standards
for the Intellectual Property of Enterprises”, the “Patent Law
of the People’s Republic of China”, and the “Vietnam Law on
Intellectual Property” and has formulated and implemented
intellectual property (“IP") policies and procedures such as the “IP
Commitment”, “Brand Protection System” and the “Information
Security Management System” to protect and maintain IP
information that may be involved in daily work.
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We focus on maintaining and protecting the IP and information
security of our own and customers. We positively cooperate
with information systems audits by regularly reviewing account,
re-organizing the database account and authority, and updating
system documents and process documents. We continually
promote server stability, migrating physical server virtualization
to a hyper-converged platform to provide better protection for
the operation system through centralized management, while
updating the system to ensure the stable and safe operation of
the system. We actively carry out information security training so
that all users will understand the Company’s information security
regulations, implementation and coverage to ensure the safety of
customers’ and the Company’s R&D achievements.

Deployment of the information security system

BEEERERE

HIVIERERRERS T REF MHBEER
EELE - RPEBEAEERRET &
HYHRFETES i%ﬁ*&@ﬂﬁ;‘%ﬁﬁﬁ%&
TR BRI BB I S R AR XX - P BR A
RITRIBBRIBEN - SRR RERCE
BEBRATE BBETEERRARNE
TREEFNRE - RSEHRGE  BRER
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Jl - EEHAE TRARNESLZERES
B BRIANEBZEE  UABEREPEA
AR ERRNR R -

e Complete the deployment of network automation tools

TR BB E TARNE

e Deploy AD (Active Directory) review system to monitor alternations to system logs

#EAD(Active Directory * j&S) B &%) Bz R4 5K

t?ﬁzil‘-%m}b Gy E}]EE&

e \irtualize the physical server and migrate it to hyper-converged platform to integrate servers for higher utilization

rate

FEHRMEYE RSB E RS ¥ A AR ARG RIE
° Enhance the security through firewall migration

BB M EER R R 2t

SRR

Management of information security system

BEEERERMR

e Audit database accounts and authority to achieve control over database security

HBBERFAERETEA ABRBUBE R 2 HEH

° Apply for system management authority through BPM (Business Process Management)
$BiBBPM(Business Process Management » %5512 E I8 ) R B IRHER A 55
e Set up the MAB (Mac Address Bypass, MAC bypass authentication) function on all network devices to control the

user'’s rights to access network
FEFTE MRS R £ R EMAB(Mac Address Bypass * MACSS I iR &

BE S P AR 0 P A PR T T4 )

e Control WIFI network users to ensure that the wireless network is shared with safe users

EHIWIFIREBPREREGERD ZHRRENAP

Maintenance of the information security system

HEEERERG

e Establish a disaster recovery center to quickly restore services and data

FE L AR A BRIR TR AR TS L B

e Provide users with information security training to familiarize themselves with the Group's information security

protection platform

HAPETESLZEFIIAR 2HEF A

BRENEER

Update of the information security system

EHEERERSG

e Maintain firewall database updates

HEREDT AR BUR B E

e Upgrade the antivirus system to strengthen the security barrier

THRREZFAR L2 FRE

Information security management initiatives

ERREEEERE
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We undertake not to produce and sell products that infringe IP
rights, and protect our customers’ brand creativity and commercial
interests. For similar brands with strong competitiveness, we
would implement physical and personnel isolation for production
and operation and timely destroy the materials that contain
customer information and excessive production materials printed
with the customer’s brand logo. For all production materials, we
would conduct internal code conversion to prevent unauthorized
purchases, and to ensure the security of customer information.

In Fiscal 2022, we plan to continuously strengthen the Company’s
information security upgrade, and launch the wireless security
access system at the group level, so that users can connect to
the wireless network through authentication, and the connected
users will be managed and controlled through the system. We will
upgrade and deploy antivirus system and defense based on virus
behavior to achieve the protection of the Company’s terminal
computers. We will specify a plan for core network, systems and
databases and conduct emergency drills as planned to improve
our ability to cope with emergencies and enhance information
security. We will hold information security training throughout the
factory to enhance users’ information security awareness, so as to
maintain company information security, and promote information
security knowledge in daily information system training.

During the Reporting Period, there were no brand security
incidents such as theft, lose, illegal entry and information leakage.

Reasonable Marketing

Our sales and marketing personnel use strictly reviewed words
and materials within legal channels for product sales and
marketing, and are responsible for the legality, authenticity,
and accuracy of the published content. Our marketing efforts
are mainly based on R&D capabilities, as well as the ability to
provide value-added services to customers. It is forbidden to
post deceptive or misleading content to avoid adverse effects on
consumers, investors and other stakeholders.
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Customer Satisfaction and Complaint Management

Our continuous research and development of high value-
added products, effective satisfaction of consumer needs and
adequate protection of legitimate rights and interests which have
significantly improved our customer satisfaction and established
a mutually beneficial and stable cooperative relationship with our
customers.

In order to improve customers’ satisfaction, we promptly respond
to customer requests for supplier key performance indicators by
optimizing information system operations and strengthening the
communication with suppliers. We regularly accept customer
evaluations in multiple dimensions such as innovation, digitization,
efficiency, quality, and delivery time, and we are among the best
in the scoring system of multiple customers.

We have formulated and implemented policies and regulations
such as the “Customer Service and Complaint Management”,
together with various channels such as phone call and email
to timely collect and analyze customer suggestions and advice
and provide feedback accordingly. All customer complaints are
recorded by us, with statistical analysis carried out each month
and rectification plans prepared and executed, all in a bid to meet
customer demand and keep raising customer satisfaction.
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Building Sustainable Supply Chains

The Group’s suppliers principally provide us with fabrics, foam,
accessories and supplementary packaging materials. To ensure
product quality and safety, we have a strict supplier admission
and assessment mechanism in place, coupled with a hierarchical
management for qualified suppliers. By enforcing clear and fair
procedures and standards, we effectively control the potential
risks arising from supply chains, and make progress with our
suppliers while ensuring the quality of raw material. We commit
to only work with suppliers that are environmentally friendly and
accountable to employees, including but not limited to freedom
of association, non-forced labor, reasonable compensation and
benefits and respect for human rights. Meanwhile, we would
keep monitoring and encouraging the society and environment
compliance performance of our suppliers to ensure the
sustainability and effectiveness of the supply chain. We are
actively pursuing friendly cooperative relations with the suppliers,
regard ourselves as a pivot in the supply chain, and discuss new
development directions with our suppliers based on customer
requirements, product market surveys and industry trends. We
would also guide them to carry out production which meets the
needs of consumers and work together for mutual benefits.
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Supplier Admission

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where it operates, such as the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Tenders and Bids" and the “Bidding
Rules of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam” and has formulated
and implemented systems and processes such as the "“Production
Material Supplier Management System”, the “Procurement and
Suppliers Admission System and Work Guidelines”, the “Business
Partner Management Procedures” and the “Supplier Application
and Changing Process”, under which potential suppliers shall
undergo comprehensive admission assessment in relation to
operational qualification, product quality and price, innovation
capability, environmental and social risks and integrated
management. We require sample products from suppliers and
test such samples to ensure that they meet our requirement on
product quality. We check the documentation of such sample
products, such as the quality inspection report, the Oeko-tex
Standard 100 Certificate, to ensure that the products comply with
the qualification standards of the place of operation, those of the
customers and Regina Miracle.

During the Reporting Period, the Group continues to implement
the supply chain localization strategy, focusing on expanding
local suppliers in production bases, and promoting the migration
of existing supplier partner capacity to our production bases,
thereby reducing procurement risks and further consolidating and
strengthening the competitive advantage of the supply chain. In
addition, we have further integrated the supply chains by reducing
categories, reducing development materials and increasing the
purchase of single category materials, and actively introduced
excellent suppliers that meet the needs of the procurement
strategy. With the optimization of the number of suppliers
and their raw products, our product quality will become more
consistent. As of 31 March 2021, the Group has established
cooperation relationship with 931 suppliers, the particulars of
which by geographical region are as follows:
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Total Number of Suppliers HEmeay

Number of suppliers by region RWEE S MNHEEEE
Mainland China B K RE

Hong Kong, Macau and Taiwan regions &R Ei 2
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Others Hitb
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931 100%
436 47%
339 36%
106 11%
23 2%
22 2%
5 1%
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Supplier Supervision and Communication

The Group attaches great importance to the responsibility
communication of suppliers and it helps to achieve strong
maintenance of existing business and positive expansion of
future business. The procurement department of our Group
regularly organizes the departments involved in R&D and quality
management to assess the suppliers on a monthly and quarterly
basis. Suppliers are scored in terms of quality, delivery punctuality,
quantity reliability, service performance and R&D capability,
which will be collated to form a supplier assessment report.
Based on the score, we reward excellent suppliers by allocating
more orders to them, whereas average performers will be placed
under guidance and supervision and the unqualified ones will
be eliminated. We requires all suppliers to regularly provide
specified information and accept inspections in the system to
further improve our supplier monitoring and evaluation system.
The supply chains department also actively promotes digital and
systematic management. During the Reporting Period, we have
newly launched the PDM supplier management system, which
is expected to be fully promoted and put into use by the end of
2021. By then, the digitalized system management will cover the
whole links of supply chains, enabling information transmission
and sharing to be more efficient and accurate.
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The Risk Management of Supply Chains

We identify, control, monitor and review the three major areas and
eight categories of risks that may be involved in the supply chains.
We keep improving the way and process of risk management and
control through risk management of supply chains. For the risks
covered by our management and control, we continue to improve
gradually, while for the risk in lack of control, we improve them by
optimizing agreement, upgrading computer security management
system, incorporating third parties and other control methods, and
guide future risk management plans through regular monitoring
and reviewing.
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Risk management dimensions of supply chains
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Construction of Integrity

Anti-corruption System

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where it operates, such as the “Company
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Anti-Money
Laundering Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, the “Anti-
Unfair Competition Law of the People’s Republic of China”,
the “Interim Provisions on Prohibiting Commercial Bribery” and
the "“Anti-Corruption of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”, and
has formulated and implemented the “Anti-Corruption and Anti-
Bribery Control Procedure”. With “law-abiding, honesty and
quality service"” as its core, the Group has adopted the principle
of prevention and supervision to guard against bribery, extortion,
fraud or money laundering. The "Anti-Corruption and Anti-Bribery
Control Procedure” applies to each economic activity, and the
management process of people, money and goods within the
Group, as well as all partners who have business dealings with
the Group. We seek to sign the "Anti-Bribery/Anti-Corruption
Commitment Letter” with the above positions and units to ensure
the governance of the commercial anti-bribery commitment
system, and consciously resist all forms of corruption.
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Whistle-blowing for Anti-corruption and Handling Mechanism REEEHREZEH

Anti-corruption supervisory Report channels and handling Price control of imported
authority measures @ materials
REBNEBSEEME ® BEREHEREE VRIS ERERERE
e The Group has formed its discipline | ® The Group has also formulated the e The imported materials of the
inspection team as the supervisory “Staff Complaint and Reporting Group need to be approved by
body in charge of operations Procedure”, which encourages four departments, namely R&D,
compliance and anticorruption, to employees and business partners Strategic Procurement, Executive
exercise the duties of discipline to report and disclose corruption Procurement, and Sales. Any
inspection and supervision behaviors through channels such as individual or team is not allowed
according to law, supervise and mailbox, email and telephone, and to make decision alone to avoid
manage the clean practice of maintain strict confidence during corruption.
those who work at key positions the processing of accusations and REEYE S EF LB - SRR
and sections. The team is also investigations. B8 - ITERRE - SHE UEEPPIAR —HOHt
responsible for the publicity and N8 B I E pEC B TIREFERIRIE A 8B A A KB BK AT LA B R
education of clean conduct among 7y BREBTIER  BTEHE BFE TE AR IEERAE A -
staff members, to boost their BRI SEB T NEEKERNE
alertness to corruption incidents. {’E%iﬂ%é‘&%ﬁfﬁﬁﬁzﬁ% C WHEMERT | o Merchandising Department strictly
These efforts aim to cultivate BEZ R EABERIRRED - monitors the prices of all materials,
a good ethos of anticorruption analyzes the material prices every
throughout the Group, to protect e |f the discipline inspection team quarter, and updates the reasonable
the good image of Regina Miracle. found out any misconduct of price range in a timely manner. Any
AEEARLCBRAEREREBEEERE the alleged personnel upon increase or decrease of purchasing
B RSBME  RETHFLRER investigation, the management will price must be confirmed by
WEE  BEUBEEIU  EBRHA impose on the personnel involved Merchandising Department.
BN EETEREERE  URHE with public notification, demotion REMREELEMRER  §EAF
ITHRRSENHE - #Mmite 8T and termination of labor contract. EETERON - REBMAIENER
BRFEMHNEGYE  EEELETHYR Staff members who breach the law EfE - EEREREREBFLBR
BERNERESR - EERIMIH R would be handed over to public EELHTED o
%o security authorities.
LR REE BRI ERRARAER
BRTR ERESHEGSEARE
TR - PEE ﬁﬁ%”@h’*\ﬁ%r@ﬁ ;
HRERZEZNHET - BB ALK
BRIR o

Anti-corruption Measures

R E B

During the Reporting Period, there was no concluded corruption MEHAR  RBEHAEFRSAEFBE TR
litigation against the Group or launched by its staff members. P B SRR BISIREAR M o
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BUILDING AN ELITE TEAM

Regarding talents as the foundation for the long-term development
of Regina Miracle, the Group proactively develops and nurtures
its human resources under a sound talent management system
and a robust people-oriented protection system. The Group, as
a responsible employer, continues to perfect the recruitment
and training system to make progress and grow along with its
employees.

Talent Management System

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where it operates, including the “Labor
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, the “Labor Contract
Law of the People’'s Republic of China”, and the “Labor Code
of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”. Besides, the Group
has prepared and implemented the policies and procedures
covering the entire group and across all levels, including the
“Recruitment Procedures”, the “Management Measures for
Competitive Internal Recruitment, Promotion and Demotion”,
the “Performance Management System”, as well as the “Staff
Departure Procedures”. It has built a robust and protective talent
management system of “Recruitment-Training-Retention”, to
establish and maintain a talent team for meeting our ongoing and
fast development needs.

Talent Recruitment

The Group acquires talents through on-site recruitment,
intermediaries, online recruitment, campus recruitment and
staff recommendation, sticking to the recruitment principle of
“open recruitment, comprehensive appraisal and merit-based
admission”. We roll out a number of recommendation incentive
schemes to encourage our employees to recommend outstanding
and quality talents or mature talents that the Group needs, fully
utilizing our existing human capital to continuously inject vitality
into our talent teams.

R dEREREE

TER R E R

TEBBAT RBEDREERFTNESD
AEENAS ERERNE2H ARER
ZREBABENBEANERS  (ERBEEN
BE THxZEETEENETHIIER
FEFE T TENES - TETRE

AT EEEZR

AEBBERER (FEARKMESEH L)
(REARAMESEHERE) (BBt
EHNBESEE) FEBEMEBRRMLERD
ERER  HIELEE CRERF) (REE
BERBRETT  REBEEE) (EREES
E)CEITERARE) SBE2KE - 2RR
MIBRMRIE - BEETE N RE -5 -
BEIAS ERBRGIERE - BRI M
RIS - REERFENAT M -

AT R

AEBEFBIAREBL  2EE%Z 208
BUMHBTRA - BERSHE - PIEE -
BLAE  RERE - BTHEBSRERA
AT - RPIRAZREE R SIS E
TEBRHEEFEARUAS IAKEMTE
AT ROFREBHNANERREMDN
AT BRFFEIAIET ©
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R A EREREE

The Group emphasizes on cooperation with institutions and
enterprises. Vietnam factories have established collaborative
relationships with 18 local institutions in Vietnam, and hold job
fairs at the cooperative schools on a regular basis every year
to recruit interns and fresh graduates extensively. Meanwhile,
Shenzhen factories also conducted institution-enterprise
cooperation with a number of institutions and colleges in China
meeting the Group’s needs for development while contributing to
the employment and development of specialized talents of higher
institutions. According to the written entrance requirements
submitted by various departments, the Group’s human resources
department conducts a collective assessment of the candidates
in terms of their background qualifications, capability, work
experience, etc., and offers fair employment opportunities to
those who meet the job requirements.

AEBEITEREEIE - BRIUERED BB
FEMISABREL A 1FRIR - BF EME
SBRE|ERAEES  BZRREELENERES
R4 - [ RYIBRE IR RS B 2 B
TTREAE  HESEEERFROREIRE
NEREXZATRERER - AEEANE
RERBEEBFIRINEABIFTLUE R
BE - TRED  TFERETEYERE
ETR—ER BTNARULERERTFH
ThRKe -
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As of 31 March 2021, the Group had a total of 43,710 staff,
representing a year-on-year increase of 1.85%. It has been
the Group's top priority to improve production efficiency of its
factories in the PRC and Vietnam. Despite of the impact of the
COVID-19, we are more resolved to examine our internal structure
organization and operational model in a comprehensive way, and
dedicated to carrying out the plan to streamline human resources
during the Reporting Period. Not only will these result in savings
on operating expenses, it is also expected to optimize human
resources and production capacity in the long run, which in turn
will raise operational efficiency. The specific performance of KPIs
related to employment is as follows:

Unit

By
Total number of workforce Person
ETHAY A
Number of workforce by gender
RUEFIBISNETIAY
Male Person
St A
Female Person
g A
Number of workforce by employment type
RERERESNWETIAY
Full-time Person
£ A
Part-time Person
FRE A
Internship Person
TR A
Number of workforce by employment level
RBREINETIAY
Rank and file Person
AEEAB A
Middle management Person
PREIRE A
Senior management Person
EEEEE A

Number of workforce by age group
RFRABEINET AR

R dEREREE

HZE2021F3A31H - "EEEBTHAEA
43,710 A - M E—BIFIER1.85%  IRHAH
MW EERG AR MOFEhR 2 E
EIEFSEERS - M COVID-19ME » RIFTE
TSRS - 2EARRAIBEEAMS RS ER
X WHRREHBRFERBEANERE
TR ERZ 2t BERENEANE
BRERRE  HHmitegENs - BHE
(ERRENIEENAERIBNT ¢

Note As of 31 March 2021
=8 B Z20215E3A31H

1 43,710

16,287

27,423

43,710

33,348
10,185

177
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Note As of 31 March 2021

e BIE202163H31H
Below 30 years old Person
30BRA T A 22,156
30 to b0 years old Person
30E505% A 21,249
Above 50 years old Person
505% A £ A 305
Number of workforce by geographical region
RBETHETAH 2
Mainland China Person
AR A 6,471
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of China Person
BB AR R R TR A 280
Vietnam Person
HE A 36,959
1 The statistics on the number of workforce encompass all employees 1 BT AHSTHERARERIER - BERK
of the Group’s Shenzhen factories, Vietnam factories, and functional & M BEBBAESPINMEET -
departments in Hong Kong.
2 The number of workforce by geographical region is counted according 2 ZimE S B TABIZRE TER TIEE
to staff’s actual working place. HITHET
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Remuneration and Welfare

Based on the salary principle of “mutual benefit and distribution
according to contribution”, the Group provides the staff with
reasonable remuneration and welfare packages, including wages,
overtime pay, allowances and paid leave wages, with the basic
salary not lower than the standard minimum wage in the place
where we operate to safeguard the basic living needs of our
employees, and we will pay overtime fee and paid leave wages
under the laws and regulations of the place where it operates.
In addition, based on the “Economic Compensation Policy” of
the Group, after the labor contract is terminated or ceased, we
will also pay one-off financial subsidy to our staff in accordance
with certain standards apart from settling wages. The Group
contributes to social insurance and provident fund for our staff in
the place of business operations as required, and ensures that our
employees are entitled leaves such as paid leave, marital leave,
maternity leave, work-related injury leave and sick leave.

Appraisal and Promotion

The Group has the “Performance Management System” in place,
to comprehensively assess the work performance of its staff in
the principle of objectivity, fairness, completeness and authenticity
and based on performance targets. We peg job promotion and
salary adjustment to performance results and enhance the
stimulation effect of appraisals. Several outstanding staff are
selected and recognized with outstanding awards each year based
on the performance appraisal results, and such results will be
regarded as important reference for talents selection, cultivation
of reserve, training and promotion, position adjustment and
remuneration and welfare. Meanwhile, we stress on performance-
related communication, and require department heads to arrange
performance-related interviews to timely understand the staff’s
difficulties at work and assist them to improve work approaches,
performance and income.

R dEREREE

FrefiE R
AEBEBREIEEERN - REDEINHER
Al W TETIAEMFHMEFEE  BRERIE
MILE  ERREHRIE - Hf - BEHFT
ERNELMAEMRETERE  UREET
HEAERFE » WIRRELAEMERER
BIREX MMM ERREHBRIE « thoh
KEARB(EEMESERR)  £HEBAR
FRER SRR LR - B TR RAIEER
R—ERE-—RUEXNEBTRE LN
B o RERBIRRELAEMEZRRERET
BEUHERBMAES  YREBTREZ
BHHEBY BR ER - IHR  BRF
BRE -

ERHEEH

REEH T EREREERNE)  FHE
B]AF - =¥ BAENERRA KBS
BEBRGETHEETIMIERR  BEAM
FE AR R o o E AR R BN
BERBERERERETREEETESS
T AEBEBESETR  WESIERE
REBAARIK - BERE - FIRA - B
B FTHERINEELERE - B &
MEREIED  BREMHIAEARET
FREREH  METHETHTERE
WBE B ETIENE - IR HERRKA
IKIFE o
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R A EREREE

To encourage our employees for continuous advancement
and self-improvement, and strengthen their sense of mission
and responsibility, the Group has established a clear internal
competition and rank promotion mechanism and ensure that the
internal talent selection is conducted on a basis of open, fair,
just, equal competition, and merit-based admission. We select
and promote appropriate talents for promotion after taking into
account job requirements and internal competition assessment
results to meet the internal manpower needs of the Group and
effectively retain talents.

Training and Development

The Group is committed to “Growing with its staff”, and provides
enriched training resources and smooth development paths
for employees, with a view to retaining talents for our steady
development.

Based on our strategic priorities of “innovation, speed and
quality”, we conduct scientific evaluation and design for each
position from the two aspects of internal value and external
market value. We also establish a corresponding training system
for core key positions to effectively shorten the talent training
cycle and improve training efficiency. Based on the actual situation
and the needs of various departments, we formulate training
systems and courses for employees of different ranks to ensure
that our employees receive adequate training throughout their
careers and continue to improve the management capabilities
of the management and the professional skills of frontline staff.
Meanwhile, to ensure the training is comprehensive, we actively
establish an online learning platform to provide sufficient talent
training and support for our development.

REEB TTENER - BIRERET - B
BTHfmREEER  NEBERLTHE
AR HS S B AR B T - AWRER A EEA
TERAR - AF - RE - FEHF  2E
BEL - HPIE A ML FRRABHEZEZK
BoOBBRBABATEN LM URRAE
SERFANFTFR  BREEAT °

-
AEBNUEETHRAKKIRRE - RET
RE{GENEIERNEBENERER B
BRI ERFEEBEEAL -

KRIEF - 2E B2 WEIKEE - 2M
EREEBEMINBTEEBEMEEE - HE
RAA TR B ARE - X R LR R
MUREHENZIRE  ARERASE
ERAHY  BARERE - RAREBEERER
REFPFIFH - SHHTRBRNET - H5E
8 & BREHRNEHERRIZ - IR
BTHEEBXTEZAMEITINIIR
SERNEEENERENN—RBETINE
KiEE - AR - ERIZIBEREBEENEE
- RPERARR BB T AEE  BH
PIBERIBH T RAS TR ©
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Muilti-skilled Staff Training Program

For the sake of encouraging our employees to learn new
processes and improving work efficiency and giving full play to
human capital activity, the Group launched a multi-skilled staff
training program which aims to cultivate staff's ability to operate
various machines and be competent for key processes, thus
improve the operation efficiency and product quality. During the
Reporting Period, a total of 510 multi-skilled staff were trained in
the Group's Shenzhen factories, among which 120 have become
high-level multi-skilled staff in conformity with certain evaluation
standards, which has laid a good foundation for our flexible talent
reserve and diversified development of employees themselves.

Developing a System of Training

We continue to develop and establish a system of key positions
taking into account the overall development need of the Group
and strategic objectives for talent development, with a view
to building a systematic knowledge system and a position
competency model through the well-honed skills of experts
at key positions and providing strong support for fast talent
training and recruitment. We focused on the types of key
position through internal talent appraisal and formulated a 2-3
year medium to-long term comprehensive training program for
core key positions. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s
Shenzhen factories has actively carried out skill training for rank
and file employees with the total trainings number of 2,116, of
which the Group’s Shenzhen factories conducted a total of 38
internal training courses for personnel of professional positions
with the total trainings number of 533, accounted for 26% of
the total trainings. Meanwhile, we sent management personnel
to participate in general management courses and professional
courses such as supplier management, project management and
budget management to enhance the decision-making power and
leadership of management personnel and improve the efficiency
of production and operation in the factory.

R dEREREE

ZRPET 155 5#
AYEBEISEN IR e LIEREL R
DEEIEANEAREEB N - AEEHEH S AL
THEFE WEEETIRESHREL BT
BT FMEES - HMERA TEREMER
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ZREETI510% - AP B 1206 B TR AR
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{LBEEF T RFER o

R R iER
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B2 BEERREST R EME XN
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EEGHEEEEEMNE TRAEE - LHE
H2,116 A% - HpdtsEEmUABRAER
FT38BAFIRE - BEMFIIS33AR « (h48
HFIIAIR26% © R - HPINEEREAES
MtEREEIR c HEEE BEETESEA
BEERE HERRE IERETEAEN
RN - BE - REREEEEENRE -

FF#R452020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 115



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

R A EREREE

Establishment of Online Training Platform Construction

In order to strengthen the system of staff training courses and
the diversity of training content, the Shenzhen factories started to
establish an online learning platform in early 2020, transforming
the offline quality courses into online courses, and 2,000
learning accounts were opened during the Reporting Period.
The learning content covers 20 learning categories, including
labor, occupational health, fire safety, chemical safety, basic
office software, pandemic prevention, coupled with increasing
and intensifying input to allow our staff to adapt to the Group's
development and social needs. In the future, we plan to increase
the number of online courses to 30 to provide employees with
more comprehensive and systematic training content.

Job Training

In order to enhance the adaptability of staff and improve the
theoretical knowledge of skills, job operation level and skill level
of frontline staff, the Group conducted skill trainings for frontline
staff such as job training and pre-job training for rank and file staff.
During the Reporting Period, the Group provided trainings for 1,400
frontline staff in Shenzhen factories to improve their on-job skills,
such as intensive face-to-face teaching of theories and on-job
machine skills trainings.

RLIBFF B 2R
BTE/METHEIREN RSN - BIAR
BVZERIE - ORYIBR R 20205 V15 1A 75 2 4%
LEBF¥ e BRTHERREARLREZSE
b - MEHFECHBE2 0002 E RS - Ri2
NAREST - BEREFE  BhR: L2
mEE - ERR ARG LR B #EE20PTS
Bm RETHEESEZERMEEFET
B INAARIE AP A » R - FAPI5HE
R ERIZIBEI0M - RETRHEZAER
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Primary Rescuer Training

To ensure that there are professionals available for emergency
rescue when employees encounter an emergency, in March
2021, the Shenzhen factory invited professionals from the First
Aid Center to conduct a two-class first-aider training for more
than 200 employees in the factory, with the content covering
introduction of basic knowledge of first aid, practical training of
CPR and other first aid skills. Eventually, nearly 200 people passed
the theoretical and practical training assessment and obtained
professional qualification certificates and emergency rescue

qualifications.

R dEREREE

IR ES 155
ARREIEBIEZZENN  BHEAB
AT E 2RI - 2021538 - RYIME B
el LEEASAREANHN20085%%E 8
I AEAH2INZMEEI - BFIAA
RE S RER AR - DI EHRSERE
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Primary rescuer training
DR EEE

During the Reporting Period, an aggregate of 38,854 employees
of the Group have undergone training, such that each employee

received 4.5 hours of training on average.

FEwE2020/21

WEHRE - AEEHFET38,854 AEXET
B FHEFAZT4.5/)8F o
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Employee Training Data
BT ZIIE

Unit Reporting Period
EB{y S HA R

Percentage of employees trained
ZIEIESH % 3 86

Percentage of employees trained by gender
RUEPEINZIEITSL

Male

B % 35
Female

egis % 65

Percentage of employees trained by employment level

BRABINZINETESL

Rank and file

AEEAE % 75
Middle management

FARERE % 24
Senior management

SRERE % 1
Total training hours Hour

BIZIIRY NS 3 162,242

Training hours of employees by gender
REFIE DB T ZINEE

Male Hour
%'li /J\Eé‘} 60,942
Female Hour
7 N 101,300

Training hours of employees by employment level

BRARBONETZ IR

Rank and file Hour

AEEAE /)N 127,656
Middle management Hour

FREERE AN 34,447
Senior management Hour

Average training hours completed per employee Hours/person

B I FIZ I NN 3 3.7

Average training hours of employees by gender

REBBSWE T FHZIFH

Male Hours/person
Sl ANSYON 3.7
Female Hours/person
gog BN 3.6
Average training hours of employees by employment
level
RBRE S NWE T FIZIRE
Rank and file Hours/person
EEAE ANSYON 3.8
Middle management Hours/person
FAREIRE ANEON 3.2
Senior management Hours/person
BAREIRE ANSPON 0.8
3 The training statistics encompass all employees of the Group’s 3 BT &St aE ARNEEFRYIME - #
Shenzhen factories, Vietnam factories and functional departments in HERERE SN EET -
Hong Kong.
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Retaining Talents

The Group values every talent and endeavors to retain talents. We
have set up the “Long-term Service Award" to thank and motivate
staff members for their loyalty and contribution, and enhance their
sense of belonging and recognition to the Company.

R dEREREE

AT EE

REBPREG AT BHIRBAASTE
o RARZI REIIRF | - AR IS E
BTIWMDHMER - EBETHEENRB

Long-term service award ceremony
RE RIS AR

We timely arrange interviews with employees who have an
inclination to leave. The interview is designed to learn about their
work and living conditions, motives for departure, as well as the
possibility and conditions to stay, so as to retain outstanding
personnel. The general manager’'s office of every business
department would conduct a staff departure review regularly, in
which the department head reports on staff departure analysis to
timely identify room for improvement and retain talents for our
Group, with the regular internal audit also taken into account.

HNEBREANAT - RIEREHE
BE - TRETENATER - BREE -
REMTEEREN - FRESATHE
ff - R BLBRSNTFRTRBRT - o
BPIREAERBA TS - BATEHN
BE - REHBIEEER - ARPIRE

THE -
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People-oriented Protection System

The Group has integrated staff care into its corporate culture
and established a people-oriented protection system based on
the value of “people-oriented”, endeavoring to create a work
environment featuring respect, equality, mutual trust, health and
sustainability for our staff and effectively protecting their rights
and interests.

AXRERR

AEERE TRRBALEXIL - BIE[IA
ARKIE—EBEBARENARERER -
BHRETRE-—HEEE ¥% 5 &
BRI FEN TIERE - IBREE T -

Protection of Labor Rights and

Interests:

e Complying with local laws
and regulations

RIESS TR

o RAEBMEEERER

Staff Care:

e Advocating work-life balance
to allow our staff to maintain
a healthy and positive attitude
and good spirit

ETEE:

o REIfFEAETE - FEIR
%%%E%@%%&E*DE&%E@%%W
i)

Diversity and Equal

Employment:

e Striving to develop a
corporate culture of
equality and diversity and
create a harmonious and
fair work environment

ZRERFEER :

s HIRERFEZTHRE
XAE - BIEMGE AR TR
RIR

Physical and Mental Health of

Staff:

e Health and safety

e Establishing diversified and
convenient communication
channels

ETH0MEE

o fEFREZTR

o EBUZH - BRMBRERE
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Protection of Labor Rights and Interests

The Group strictly complies with the laws and regulations of the
countries and regions where it operates, such as the “Labor Law
of the People’'s Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Protection of Minors”, the “Minimum
Wage Regulations”, the “Provisions of the State Council on Staff
Working Hours” and the “Labor Code of the Socialist Republic
of Vietnam"”, and operates in the principle of prohibition of
forced and child labor, and in compliance with the remuneration,
benefits and working hours regulations. Apart from that, we have
formulated and implemented policies and systems such as the
“Code of Conduct of Regina Miracle”, the “Staff Manual”, the
“Procedures for Protecting Minor Workers”, the “Procedures for
Preventing Forced or Compulsory Labor”, the “Procedures for
the Prohibition of Employing Child Labor”, the “Procedures for
the Prohibition of Discrimination”, the “Working Hours System
of the Company”, the “Norms of Working Hours and Rest”, the
“Voluntary Overtime Policy”, the “Staff Relationship Management
Procedures”, the “Staff Complaints Procedures and Process”, the
“Basic Policies and Procedures for Social Responsibility” and the
“Economic Compensation Policy”, in an effort to protect staff’s
legitimate rights and interests in a practical manner. Meanwhile,
the Group has set up staff representative union and labor union in
Shenzhen and Vietnam factories. Talks are arranged on a regular
basis to help old and new staff understand each other, share
information and establish harmonious labor relations.

Prohibition of Forced Labor

The Group prohibits all personnel from forcing staff in any
manner or unnecessarily restricting staff's freedom to act, and
requires factories and business partners not to practice forced
labor, including but not limited to prison labor, indentured
labor, incarcerated labor, etc. We adopt direct recruitment and
direct salary payment to ensure that labor relations and capital
transactions take place without involving third parties, while
prohibiting any form or excuse from forcing employees overtime
work. We employ a variety of channels, such as special meetings,
special training, posting factory regulations, email or broadcast to
ensure that all staff are properly informed of the abovementioned
policies. We also set up suggestion boxes in public areas such
as workshops and canteens, so staff can report and complain
through “suggestion box"” set up by the human resources
department, if they think that they have been subjected to forced
labor, which will be investigated and handled by the senior
management of the factory.

During the Reporting Period, there was no case of forced labor in
the Group.
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Prohibition of Child Labor

The Group prohibits recruiting child labor and requires factories
and business partners not to employ children under the age of
16. All applicants of the Group shall possess their legal ID cards
for undertaking relevant procedures, which is to ensure that they
have reached the legal working age. Any staff that breaches
this policy shall be subject to disciplinary action in accordance
with relevant regulations. If child labor is found, the factory must
immediately stop him/her from working and escort him/her
back to his or her guardian. Meanwhile, the human resources
department of the Group will follow up and investigate the
reasons for the wrong recruitment of child labor, in order to take
effective measures to prevent similar incidents.

During the Reporting Period, there was no case of child labor
employment in the Group.

Diversity and Equal Employment

The Group is committed to developing a corporate culture
of equality and diversity and to create a harmonious and fair
work environment. We provide open and equal employment
opportunities and welfare, conduct recruitment and promotion
appraisal with robust transparency in plans, requirements and
positions as well as impartial standard. Our staff will not be
treated differently on the grounds of factors such as gender,
ethnicity, religion, age, nationality, political stand or social status. If
an employee discovers a discriminatory act or incident, he/she can
report or complain through the “suggestion boxes"” set up by the
human resources department, and the incident in question will be
handled by manager's representative. In addition, our policies are
all prepared both in Chinese and Vietnamese. Outside of work,
we organize Chinese-Vietnamese language classes on a regular
basis to provide training in relation to Chinese and Vietnamese
customs and culture for our staff engaged in cross-cultural work,
S0 as to promote cultural integration and understanding.

The Group cares for female staff, and related decision and action
are considered from the female perspective. We provide all
female staff with pregnancy and lactation benefits as well as
breastfeeding rooms as required by the laws of where we operate
and support any activities related to the health of female staff.
During the Reporting Period, we organized a number of activities
to care for women and advocate for women's rights and interests,
including Staff Skills Training (SST), Gender Equality and Returns
(GEAR) training, Personal Advancement and Career Enhancement
(PACE) programme training, and care activities for pregnant and
female staff.
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As of 31 March 2021, our gender ratio stands at 37:63, with
female staff accounting for 42% of our senior management.

Multi-theme Training

During the Reporting period, the Vietnam factory organized
various trainings for female staff, so as to enhance the female
managers’ techniques on persuasion, leadership and influence
and empowering them. The trainings also promote female
staff's confidence on job, and enhance their skills for personal
career development and the life quality, which provided more
development opportunities for female staff.
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Gender Equality And Returns (GEAR) Training
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Care Activities for Pregnant and Female Staff

The Group cares for female staff and supports activities related
to the health of female staff. During the Reporting Period, the
Group installed breastfeeding rooms in 5 factories in Vietnam
in cooperation with the plans of the Labor Union of Hai Phong
Economic Zone and the Save the Children International (SCI).
Meanwhile, the Group actively promoted and organized training
on “the use and maintenance of breastfeeding rooms — how
breastmilk helps promote nutrition for children” and on “how to
take care of the health of female”, covering around 1,000 staff.

Care activities for pregnant and female staff

HEERZMEETHEZED

Physical and Mental Health of Staff

The Group strictly abides by laws and regulations of the countries
and regions where it operates such as the "Constitution of
the People’s Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Occupational
Diseases”, the “Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, the "Regulations on Factory Safety and Sanitation”,
the “Law of Occupational Safety and Hygiene of the Socialist
Republic of Vietnam”, the “Vietnam’s Circular on National
Technical Regulation on Microclimate” and the “Vietnam'’s
Circular on National Technical Regulation on Noise"”. We execute
the principle of meeting health and safety standards, always
emphasizing safety during the course of production and operation
of the Company, and formulating and implementing policies and
regulations such as the “Environmental and Occupational Health
and Safety Management Manual” and the “Occupational Safety
and Health Policy” based on our actual situation, so as to ensure
that our staff work and live in a healthy and safe environment.
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Pandemic Prevention and Control

In the beginning of 2020, the world was attacked by the COVID-19
Pandemic. We strictly follow the guidelines for prevention and
treatment of the pandemic issued by local government, actively
implement anti-pandemic measures, formulate internal regulations
such as the “COVID-19 Pandemic Response Plan” ({8 ik
RS AZBESIEZR)) and “Precaution Guidelines in
Shenzhen Factories” (CGFIIBR AP E55]) ), and develop rigorous
control standards for daily operation in factory, staff's working
environment and emergency situations. At the same time, we
issued notices including “Enclosed Management of Company
Dormitory during the Pandemic” ((ZIEHAK A RIE &S EANEE))
and “Timely and Accurate Reporting on the Pandemic” (&5 &
BEYERE F3R) ) for the purpose of understanding staff's situation in
a timely manner, making a prompt reaction in case of emergency,
and fulfilling our commitments to customers as scheduled under
the premise of ensuring the safety and health of staff. Although
our Vietnam factories were less affected by the Pandemic, the
prevention work against COVID-19 was also organized speedily in
order to nip risks in the bud.
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Pandemic
Prevention
Propaganda

BREE

Canteen
Management

REEE

Disinfection
of Factory
Area

BEES

Admission
Check

ABRE

Pandemic prevention and control
knowledge, and prevention and control
measures will be posted in factory to alert
the effect of diseases and enhance
prevention awareness

BRI (A9 SR B 4 155 7 28 Rk BBy P2 4 1
KA ZGRESRELILREHEH

Meals will be distributed with each
person allocated with one set of meal;
Sit side by side when face-to-face dining
is not allowed

EEREDBRAD B
BEEMER L —2 - A [ E

Conduct at least twice regular and
fixed-point disinfection per week on the
ground of office areas, office equipment
and public areas

FHE ARSI PHARE AREE
BREETELMRERTERES

Visitors shall produce Green Code and
mobility track to factory guard and can
only be allowed to entry into with a
measured normal body temperature
SN B SRIBRERF R (R 2R (AR IS 17 T )
BN - AESROA R AE AR

Respond to
the Call

ERRA

Distribution
of Supplies

BHME

Reserving
Supplies

EME

Strict
Quarantine

s

COVID-19 precautions
COVID-19F5 #1824

Implement measures for pandemic prevention
and control issued by government;

Evaluate the Group's internal prevention and
control measures based on local situation
MEATERAT AR 4% A
FHEEHEIEIRR  HEB AP RS
HEITRHE

All visitors into the factory shall wear a
mask properly at all times

FrEHEARRR A B /A2 K IEREME DS

Ensure the amount of hand sanitizer and
disinfectant in stock is sufficient for at
least one week;

Make strict planning on the use and purchase
of medical supplies such as masks
WRAF R HEREFZEL—EHAE;
BEREIEEAR (AEE) A KEE

For people coming to the factory from
high-risk areas, they shall be subject to a
14-day centralized quarantine for health
observation;

For people coming to the factory from
medium-risk areas, they shall subject to a
14-day home quarantine for health
observation

HEERBEREAR K14 R
wich BB S KA B © Bi14KERE
HiE
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During the Reporting Period, the trade unions of the Vietnam
factories have, in partnership with the medical centers of Thuy
Nguyen District, conducted trainings on the “prevention of
COVID-19 infection” in Factories A, B, C, D, and E, aiming to
enhance staff's awareness and sense of responsibility on the
prevention of pandemic and protecting the health and safety of
staff at work.
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Training on the “Prevention of COVID-19 infection
[BEECOVID-19= 3 I3Z I

Safety Production

The Group maintains the occupational health and safety
principles of “safety first, compliance with disciplines and
regulations, prevention-centered, all-staff engagement and
ongoing improvement”, with the general goal of “zero major
accidents such as severe injury, fatality, explosion, fire and leak of
hazardous chemical substances; higher safety awareness among
staff, and safety training for all staff”. Eight goals have been set
to cover the health and safety of the Group's all staff, requiring
that any production activities must be carried out on the premise
of ensuring safety.
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Training rate of new
staff in respect of

Major accidents such as Annual training rate of

severe injury, fatality,

Correction rate for
safety loophole

Job take-up rate of
special operation

explosion, fire and leak
of hazardous chemical

staff in respect of
safety education:

"Level 3" safety

personnel with a

identified in safety

substances: BEEEIREHEE education: license: inspection:
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General Targets for Safety Production
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Construction of Safety System LREFRER

The Group has established a safety management system and AEFEERUYLEEEER - THETER
conducted regular risk assessment to minimize potential risks SHE AR EREBL RS - I AF AR VEFR AP
as we consider it our responsibility to provide a healthy and safe RETIRHEEE ZE20RFESNEL -

environment for staff. Some factories in Shenzhen and Vietnam AEBETERYI MR D THIESFISO
under the Group have been rewarded with the certification of A0 BERFL 2 ERBARE - AP E
ISO 45001 Occupational Health and Safety Management System, BAEZ RN ORI BR AT ML AR
among which, Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co., CRINBREATNR2018FRBFEER 4
Limited and Regina Miracle (Shenzhen) Limited have both passed TREEEZ -

the national level-2 work safety standardization certification in

2018.
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National Level-2 Work Safety Standardization certificate
FEBER-RZEEEES
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Safety Production Management

The Group emphasizes on the safety education of all staff and
implements full-process and comprehensive health and safety
management for all staff. For the purpose of enhancing the
Company’s corporate management level of safety production
and its capability to prevent and make response to accidents,
we have established a leading panel of safety production, which
acts as a safety production management body shouldering the
responsibility of routine supervisory and administrative work on
safety production, in accordance with the requirements under
relevant laws in respect of safety production; and provided the
leading body of safety production shall convene at least one
safety meeting in the first month of each quarter to coordinate
and resolve the safety production issues in the previous quarter
and make plans for the work of the upcoming quarter. Meanwhile,
we promote knowledge on health and safety in the “Safety and
Occupational Health Monthly” ((Z &2 B[ A T))) in order
to raise staff's self-awareness of health and safety. We organize
regular training on occupational safety and health for our staff,
establish health and safety training files for staff, and conduct
evaluation after training to strengthen their ability to cope with
hazards. We require special operators and special equipment (for
example, forklifts, pressure vessels, safety valves, etc.) operators
to hold valid certificates, and establish files for their certificates
to ensure the operational safety of staff. The Shenzhen and
Vietnam factories of the Group have formulated “Health and
Safety Management Policies” and the Standard Operating
Procedure (SOP) — Safety Supervision and Inspection List for
ltems, respectively, covering the health and safety requirements
for key areas, such as machinery safety, power safety,
general workplace safety, article placement safety, fire safety,
chemical management and waste management. It clarifies the
inspection content, objectives and indicators of health and safety
management, and timely follows up existing safety production
issues; the management personnel of various departments are
required to evaluate and record each safety indicator on a monthly
basis, and identify the key content that needs to be strengthened
in a timely manner.
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Zero case of occupational diseases

LS

Occupational Health
(eSS

Zero case of accidents
such as leak of hazardous
chemical substances and
explosion

AL © BIFOEH

Chemicals Managemem
EBREE

Yy

Health and Safety

Zero case of drinking Health and Safety Manageme:t Targets
water/heatstroke/community AR BRZ2
infection accidents = S E

RAK/HE1ES
BB RROFY

Annual training rate of staff in respect of
safety education: 100%; training rate of new
staff in respect of “Level 3" safety
education: 100%; job take-up rate of special
operation personnel with a license: 100%
GFEETIREHBEIEI00% : BT
[ Z2HEHFIIE100% : HEEZA
BF5E ERM%E100% ¢

Occupational Health

Work-i re\ated Safety

Zero case of fire alarm
NI RE RO

Transportation Safety The rate of working

3 hours lost per ten
thousands employees
in whole factory due to
work-related injuries
will not exceed 5%
BB ATERELE
RTR R RTBE5%

Electricity Safety The rate of working hours lost

> per ten thousands employees in
whole factory due to
work-related injuries will not
exceed 5%
2HEEATEFHARTIRSE
R ERIBE %

The rate of working hours lost per ten thou-
sands employees in whole factory due to
work-related injuries will not exceed 5%

EBEEATEBEHBR TR EFETHIBE%

Health and Safety Management Targets
BREZEEEAR

During the past three reporting periods, including Fiscal 2021, no
work-related fatality was recorded by the Group. In Fiscal 2021,
57 injured staff were recorded, accounting for 0.13% of the total
number of employees, and the average number of working days
lost per employee due to work-related injuries was 0.03 days.
After the occurrence of work-related injury, we actively responded
in strict accordance with the “Emergency Rescue Procedure”
and the “Procedure for Handling Work-related Injuries” to
ensure proper rescue and treatment was given to the injured
staff; such work-related injuries were also identified and verified
subsequently, to ensure the salary, benefits and time of recovery
and protect their legitimate rights and interests of the injured
staff. We will also continue to strengthen staff safety training
and enhance staff's awareness of occupational safety so as to
minimize the possibility of work-related accidents; in Fiscal 2021,
we conducted a total of 18,571 hours of health and safety training.
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Chemicals Management and Control

In order to strengthen the safety management of hazardous
chemicals, protect the lives and properties of employees
and protect the environment, the Group has formulated the
“Hazardous Chemical Safety Management System” ({f&f&
ILERL2EIBH|E)), conducted a general inspection on all
hazardous chemicals during the work process of employees
and in the work environment, including products, raw materials
and intermediate products, and established a file for hazardous
chemicals. Meanwhile, when raw materials used are dangerous
chemicals, we require that product safety technical instructions
and safety labels shall be prepared in accordance with relevant
national regulations such as “GB16483_2000 General Rules for
Preparation of Material Safety Data Sheet” ({GB16483_2000{t
ERLT2RITHBERMATE) ) and “"GB 15258-2009 General
Rules for Preparation of Precautionary Label for Chemicals”
({GB 15258-2009{t E R L2 ZERBRT) ) and be provided
to clients. When purchasing dangerous chemicals, relevant
departments shall obtain the Material Safety Data Sheet (f&f&{t
BRI E) and precautionary label from suppliers, and
shall not purchase hazardous chemicals without material safety
data sheet and precautionary label.
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Fire Safety and Contingency

The Group's safety management is conducted by way of
precautions and contingency measures. There are fulltime
security personnel in the factory area to provide our employees
with all-rounded safety protection to ensure that we can respond
to emergencies in a timely manner. In order to effectively prevent
fire and safety accidents, we have prepared the “Emergency Plan
on Fire Accidents and Natural Disasters”, in which the emergency
responsibilities and procedures of each department are set out
clearly. We organize fire safety knowledge seminars and drills,
elevator accidents drills and industrial accidents drills regularly to
improve the emergency response capability of our employees.
At the same time, we understand that safety is all about
precautions, so we recruit a total of seven full-time fire brigade
in our Shenzhen factories and Vietnam factories to carry out daily
safety inspections. Through the daily safety inspections by our fire
brigade for twice a month, we have been able to eliminate hidden
safety hazards in a timely manner, prevent the possibility of safety
accidents, and continuously enhance our safety management
level. We are able to strengthen the safety awareness of
employees and enhance their response to emergency events
through spreading knowledge such as the operating methods of
fire extinguisher and fire hose, “Four Abilities” (F1{& 4% 1) and
“One Pathway, Two Can-dos” (—#3/M &) regarding fire safety,
escape and self-rescue, workshop emergency response. In the
Reporting Period, we organized a total of 22 fire drills.
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Occupational Health Examination

The Group understands the importance of the health of
employees and the responsibilities and obligations that an
employer shall assume. We provide our employees with personal
protective equipment and conduct routine inspections each
week on whether they wear it properly. We conduct regular
occupational and hazardous risk assessment, covering staff’s
working environment, work approaches and living area within
the factories. Occupational health examination is provided for
employees before they take up, transfer or leave the positions to
proactively prevent the occurrence of occupational diseases. For
positions with potential risks, such as noise, high temperature,
laser, chemicals, and dust, special occupational examinations
are provided for employees deployed in the above positions.
Meanwhile, we adopt engineering and technical measures to
eliminate harmful factors or shift system as much as possible,
so as to reduce employee exposure time. During the Reporting
Period, the Group conducted annual health examination in its
Shenzhen and Vietnam factories respectively, and provided
welfare health examination for employees.

Canteen Health and Safety

The Group cares about the dining safety of all staff, and requires
all canteen staff to hold health certificates, and adopts strict
control measures to ensure that the processes from food
procurement to delivery have meet health standards. We
conduct regular pest control in canteen to prevent the breeding
of pests; regularly inspect the cleanliness of canteen equipment
to eliminate food safety hazards; and collect employees’ opinions
on a monthly basis to urge external contractors of the canteen to
continuously improve their services and ensure health and safety
through conducting regular evaluation and collecting feedback
from employees.

Community Health Service Center

A community health service center is established in the Shenzhen
factories of the Group, which provides our employees with more
convenient, faster and affordable enterprise community health
services under the concept of “always concerning about the
health of enterprise employees”. Employees are able to enjoy
health precaution and medical treatment services in the factory
area, so as to pursue a high-quality, convenient, efficient and
harmonious way of living.
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Care for Staff in Extreme Weathers

To ensure the safety of our employees' operations, the Group has
formulated a contingency plan for extreme weathers and has set
up a planning team and an action team to actively respond to the
potential risks posed by climate change during operations. Before
the arrival of typhoon and rainstorm, if the grade of typhoon and
rainstorm reaches the governmental department’s requirement
for holiday, we shall respond to the call of the government
by arranging for employees to take leave and making various
preparations, such as the dredging of sewerage and factory
fence land. After the arrival of typhoon and rainstorm, security
personnel conduct inspection and eliminate safety hazards timely
to guarantee the safety of employees' lives. In response to the
changes in high temperature, we regularly maintain and repair the
air conditioners in factories and staff dormitories, and distribute
herbal tea and heatstroke preventive drugs for staff, and in our
Shenzhen factories, social health personnel are placed there to
cope with staff's sudden heatstroke in a timely manner.

Prohibiting Harassment or Abuse

The Group is well aware that the employer must provide a work
environment free of harassment, abuse or physical punishment
in any form and respect the dignity of employees. Apart from
stipulating in our policy and system that no one shall harass
and insult others physically, mentally or orally, we also sign a
statement with our management staff of all levels in special
meetings and special trainings for management personnel, to
ensure that they understand this policy. All the staff can report
any breach of the policy through complaint procedures, and
upon verification, the personnel concerned shall be subject to
corresponding disciplinary action.
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During the Reporting Period, the trade unions in the Vietnam
factories have, in cooperation with CARE International in Viet
Nam (“CARE International” in Viet Nam) and the Labor Union of
Hai Phong Economic Zone, implemented a plan of “Incorporating
Statements by Female Staff and Preventing Sexual Harassment in
the Workplace"”, promoted and organized anti-sexual harassment
trainings for employees. The campaign covered gender issues,
the concept, impact, prevention of and resolving measures for
sexual harassment and demonstrating our respect for female staff
and solid achievements in protecting their rights and interests.
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Anti-sexual harassment training
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Communication with Employees

The Group recognizes and respects employees’ freedom of labor
negotiation. We formulate and implement the “Staff Complaining
Procedure and Process”, continue to improve the democratic
management system for employees and open a variety of
communication channels to fully stimulate employees’ enthusiasm
and engagement. On the basis of such two-way communication,
we guarantee employees’ rights to know, to participate and to
supervise, and ensure the work and life issues complained by
them can be effectively and timely resolved, thereby continuously
enhancing their satisfaction. The Group has social platforms such
as Bulletin Board System (BBS), and the Company's WeChat
Community, which are open to all staff and can serve as a space
where our staff can post and obtain information of Regina Miracle.
In addition, staff can provide feedback to the human resources
department and department executives through in-person
interviews, comment letters, email and phone.
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During the Reporting Period, through the WOVO staff complaint
platform, the Group provided clients and relevant staff an
interactive channel for submitting complaints and feedback
on an anonymous basis, which is beneficial for realizing close
communication among our customers, employees, thereby
reducing unnecessary misunderstandings and frictions. At the
same time, through conducting the staff satisfaction survey, we
locate and focus on solving problems that are mostly concerned
about with designated forces in order to achieve a more
harmonious and smooth communication between the Group and
our staff.
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Screen Shot of WOVO Communication Platform

WOVOEET &R EBE

Staff Care

The Group advocates work-life balance, and its trade unions
are responsible for organizing various activities for staff care in
attempt to help staff maintain a positive attitude and good spirit.
We greet our employees whenever there is a holiday, accompany
them throughout the year through regular and irregular staff
activities, and always offer them our sincere care and material
assistance whenever they or their families encounter major
difficulties.

Aid Staff in Need

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively organized staff
to make donations for colleagues who suffered from illnesses or
accidents to help them overcome difficulties and restore health,
and sent representatives to visit and console, helping over 10
staff in total.

136

ETHE
AEBREIFEDENTE mEHMWITE

BABRRSERETY  UEPEIR
FREEBNEENRIFVBEHER - &—
EsRA - ZAWEREBOANE  BEE
HMTEMNE RS HMBEHETIES
REMEL  MEETEANEREEBEXR
PR - FAPIE B R B A E 5 B IR T
BRI ©

REE THE
HEHE  AEERGAME T REERR
BN FHRORERH - BB IR BEE

B IREREEE  WIRRKRFEMER - &5t
HEMBIORET -

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥2iREIFR(ZR) AR E



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Diversified Team-building Activities

The Group regularly organizes team-building activities to allow
the staff to relax after work, and to facilitate communication and
mutual understanding through organizing cooking competitions,
food festivals, friendly matches and other activities, so as to
strengthen team cohesion, thereby enhancing team collaboration
capabilities and improving employee engagement at work. We
encourage staff to develop hobbies and actively invest resources
to help our staff develop their interests and talents. We organize
sports competitions such as basketball to promote the cohesion
of our staff with the sports spirit of “unity, loyalty, nobility, and
improvement”.
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Friendly matches on Chinese Valentine's Day The 10th basketball competition of Regina Miracle
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PROTECTING THE GREEN ENVIRONMENT

The Group remains committed to the new industrialization
drive characteristic of high input in science and technology, low
resource consumption and good environmental and economic
benefits, striving to build a “resource-saving and environmentally-
friendly"” corporate brand. We resolutely abide by the
environmental protection laws and regulations in the countries
and regions where we operate, continue to optimize production
equipment and processes, actively carry out cleaner production,
and develop circular economy. We also accept environmental
inspection, supervision and management, solidly work on
the publicity of our corporate environmental information, and
consciously accept supervision from the public and media. We
effectively applied environmental protection in the development,
design, manufacturing, packaging, use and service of new
products. It not only ensures that we can make profits on the
basis of meeting consumer demands, but also achieve the goal
of a balanced development among the social, economic and
ecological environment. Meanwhile, we focus on environmental
education and continue to strengthen the environmental
protection awareness and social responsibility of all employees to
prevent pollution incidents and create a pleasant and harmonious
environment

In Fiscal 2021, the Group invested significant resources in
material innovation. In addition to ensuring the advancement of
raw materials, we also take into account product comfortability
and environmental friendliness. As of the reporting date, certain
Shenzhen and Vietnam factories under the Group have passed
the 1SO14001 environmental management system certification.
Among them, Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel (Shenzhen) Co.,
Ltd. also passed the ISO50001 energy management system
certification, the FSC — Forest Stewardship Council certification,
green factory certification, organic cotton certification and
was awarded the CarbonCare® Label, whereas Regina Miracle
International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. passed the FSC - Forest
Stewardship Council certification and was awarded the Higg
Index certificate as well as the LEED (Leadership in Energy and
Environmental Design) silver certification for some of its buildings
and it plans to apply for more green building certifications in the
coming year.
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FSC - Forest
Stewardship Council
FSC— B2
B

In January 2020, the FSC
certificate of Shenzhen
factories continued to be
valid. In September 2020,
the Vietnam factories passed
the FSC certification

202041 ARYI THFSCEE
SEAR 202059 A T
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Green Factory
Certification

G e TRRE

In October 2020, the
Shenzhen factories passed
national green factory
certification and were
included in the fifth batch of
green factories
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CarbonCare®Label
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In November 2020, the
Shenzhen factories obtained
the CarbonCare® Label in
recognition of the Company’ s
contribution to low-carbon
emissions reduction and
sustainable development

W

Higg Index
Certification
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LEED Silver
Certification
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Vietnam factories received
the Higg Index environmental
certification for three
consecutive years in 2018,
2019 and 2020

Certain buildings of the
Vietnam factories attained
the LEED (Leadership in
Energy and Environmental
Design) silver certification in
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Certain green certifications of the Group
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Energy Consumption and Carbon Emissions
Management

The Group attaches great importance to the management of
energy conservation and emissions reduction and commits to
adopting advanced scientific technology and equipment to save
natural resources and increase energy efficiency. We strictly
abide by the laws and regulations of the countries and regions
where we operate, such as the “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on Energy Conservation”, the “Management Measures
for Industrial Energy Conservation”, the “Law of the People's
Republic of China on the Prevention and Control of Atmospheric
Pollution”, the “Integrated Emission Standard of Air Pollutants”,
the “Emission Standard of Air Pollutions for Boiler”, the “Ambient
Air Quality Standards”, the “Regulations of Guangdong Province
on Conserving Energy”, the “Environmental Protection Law
of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam” and the “Environmental
Quality Standard of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam”, and
has formulated and implemented policies and systems such
as the "Energy Policy”, the “"Management System for Energy
Conservation and Environmental Protection” and the "Exhaust
Management System”. Furthermore, the Group conscientiously
implements the energy policy of “"Energy Conservation,
Emissions Reduction, Green and Environmental Protection” to
reduce energy consumption, improve energy efficiency, meet
the auditing requirements set by the government, customers and
third parties, and achieve sustainable development.

REFEERTR BE L E I

AEBEERMEBMPFEIE T - AERAE
EORBRMRRE  HOBRER 125
BERAM AR - HAIBIEEECPEARLME
ERAVBEIRAR) ( TREFREE IR (FEAR
HAMBARBRIAE) (KRRSRMERE B
IS HE) GRIEA RS AP REE) GRE
EREERE) (ERABHOERIEH) (B
HEIBEHNMBERFRER) (BRtEEE
HANBEIRREEBRE)FELMERRLE
HUERER - BIE L B REIRER) (EhRE
RREESE) CEREEHE)SHE L
E - REERIEE B & BRIW
BEIRTIET - ARREREIRIBRE - IRSELIRA A
ME - mREBM - FP  F=NERER
ERAREER -

We comply with energy conservation laws,
regulations and standards, improve energy

conservation  management  systems,
formulate energy conservation goals and
) Energy policies, and implement target responsibili-
We adopt measures that are technically Conservation ties; given the constraint of the aggregate
fea3|bl_e, economically reas_onab\e as well ™ global energy capacity and the trend of
as environmentally and socially acceptable, BP Be global warming, sustainable development
to reduce energy consumption, losses and A inevitabl lution.
pollutant emissions and stop wastage in all Enwronm_ental %?g;;ggggg;&%ggoéggﬁgg%\Jj‘gv Ll
aspects from production to consumption Protection TEEREBIZE JTet WEBREERME: 2R
and utilize energy effectively and reason- }g1% WEHINORRIREBEERAEMAR
ably. = B SRR R ERPLRORAIDE o

R AT - A A - REMG
BRASAIENE - REREEIHEENS
B3R &7 P K B2 OB E ~ IR D B A5 )
HERR - BILERE - SR B FIMHEER ©

We work to reduce energy consumption
and man-made carbon dioxide emissions,

increase energy efficiency, greening and Emissions

implement carbon sinks to maintain the Reduction
balance of our ecological environment and 3
mitigate the energy climate crisis of man- ;JEH?F

kind.
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Energy Policy
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We implement ecological civilization and
environmental education on resources,
stress on harmonious coexistence with
nature, promote the education system by
incorporating energy conservation, low
carbon and green development into our
core value, and enhance the code of con-
duct and sense of responsibility for energy
conservation and emissions reduction of all
staff.
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We formulate a plan to reduce carbon dioxide emissions by 30%
by 2030, work with supply chain partners to achieve low carbon
targets and continue to strengthen our investment in energy
conservation and emission reduction as well as technological
transformation. We have made corresponding requirements for all
energy conservation and environmental protection-related projects
of the factory and subdivided them to various departments.
For example, the general logistics department is responsible
for conducting regular promotion, supervision, inspection
and improvement on energy conservation and environmental
protection; the control of light switches is managed by area
and supervised by designated person in charge as arranged
and different temperature is set for air conditioners in different
workshops to ensure the rational use of various resources. In
addition, we employed a professional third-party testing agency
to monitor our exhaust emissions to ensure that they meet the
requirements of emission standards to reduce the negative
impact of production activities on the environment.

During the construction stage of our Vietnam factories, we
incorporated energy conservation and emissions reduction
functions into our design. We invested in the installation of
modern equipment such as lifting robots, automated forklifts,
forklift robots and automatic package conveyor belt in part of our
factories; and used lighting, air conditioning, air ventilation system,
boiler system, air compressor system and building insulation
with high energy conservation performance. We used drawing
materials and building insulation materials with high raw material
utilization; installed renewable energy system and use clean
energy; at the same time, the productivity has been increased and
the exhaust emission has been reduced, which laid the hardware
foundation for achieving economic and environmental benefits.
Compared with 2019, the average power purchased by each plant
is reduced by 24.68%, and an average of 71.2% of the waste is
recycled or burned for energy.
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We also installed a preshrinking condensate water recovery device
in Shenzhen factories through which the condensate water (the
temperature is 95T, higher than that of the tap water of 20T)
was directly recycled to the boiler for heating to reduce the cost
of soft water treatment and reduce power consumption. We used
the air conditioner temperature balance system to control the
indoor temperature reasonably to save energy. We used shower-
type water saver to save water. In addition, we have modified the
hot-press molding machine to reduce heat loss and achieve the
objective of reducing energy consumption. The energy strength
of Shenzhen factories was reduced by 13.75% as compared with
2017 by taking these actions.

Energy Audit

During the Reporting Period, the Group actively carried out energy
audit projects. Among these projects, the Shenzhen factories
participated in “the 13th Five-Year Plan” energy audit review and
energy conservation planning review of key energy consumption
units of industry and commerce in Shenzhen conducted by
Shenzhen Economic, Trade and Information Commission, and the
results of energy audit review and energy conservation planning
review were all qualified. Vietnam factories also commissioned
a third party to carry out energy audit project. The audit results
showed that our energy-saving measures can effectively save
energy consumption: for example, the increase of air conditioner
temperature in the previous process can save 360 MWh per
year; regular maintenance or identification of gas leakage can
save energy 4.8 MWh per year; reducing the pressure of the air
compressor system can save 2.5% to 3.5% of the electricity
consumption (saving 18 to 25.2 MWh per year); and seasonally
adjusting the cleaning cycle of the cooling tower can effectively
save energy 360 MWh per year. The results of the report are used
to evaluate the achievements of our energy measures adopted
and lead our future energy management.

Greenhouse Gas Emissions Review

During the Reporting Period, the Shenzhen factories engaged
a third party to carry out the greenhouse gas emissions review
project, which further improved the quality and accuracy of the
Shenzhen factories of the Group’s greenhouse gas emissions data
and information, and helped us to formulate relevant measures for
energy conservation and emissions reduction to achieve carbon
emissions reduction goals.
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Feasibility Study on Renewable Energy

During the Reporting Period, the Group engaged a third party
to conduct feasibility study on renewable energy. Based on the
results of the assessment, the solar energy equipment in the
Shenzhen factories has a positive energy conservation effect. We
will further communicate with solar developers to determine the
economical, applicable and environmentally-friendly solar energy
on-site installation mode.

In the future, we will formulate energy use guidelines and
strictly manage them, and use technical measures to control
greenhouse gas emissions, including but not limited to optimizing
lighting locations, using high-efficiency machinery, setting
appropriate temperature, maintaining machinery regularly, and
using renewable energy. We will continue to deepen energy
consumption control and carbon emissions management
measures. We will also carry out the energy conservation
improvement of machinery, introduce the energy management
center, further strengthen the organization and management of
“green factory”, and formulate and implement the transformation
and improvement plans and schemes of energy conservation and
emissions reduction in a timely manner to further strengthen the
management of green supply chain and improve the enterprise
management.

Water Resources and Sewage Treatment

The Group attaches great importance to water resources
protection and sewage treatment, and all departments,
workshops, dormitories and canteens implement the policy of
water conservation. We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
of the countries and regions where we operate, such as the “Law
of the People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution”, the “Water Law of the People's Republic
of China”, the “Administrative Measures for the Licensing of
Discharging Urban Sewage into the Drainage Network”, the
“"Water Resources Law of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam” and
the “Integrated Wastewater Discharge Standards”. The emission
and treatment of wastewater generated from the cleaning of
mold and machine equipment is in line with the Grade 2 standard
of “DB44/26-2001 Discharge Limits of Water Pollutants”,
the “Industrial Air Emission Standards of Vietnam” and the
"Wastewater Standard of Vietnam”. Policies and systems, such as
the “Wastewater Management Policy” have also been formulated
and implemented to strengthen the scientific management of
water use and the operational management of pollution treatment
equipment and ensure that the wastewater discharged meets
the standard. We have set up a water conservation management
team to enhance employees’ awareness of water conservation
by thoroughly promoting water conservation policies and regularly
coordinate the effectiveness of water conservation, and recognize
and reward groups and individuals who delivered results in
water conservation benefits and water conservation works. Our
supply of water for production and operation comes from the
government, and there was no interruption of supply or difficulty
in obtaining other water sources during the Reporting Period.
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The wastewater currently discharged by the Group is mainly
divided into production wastewater and domestic wastewater.
The domestic wastewater mainly comes from the production
office and staff canteens. After pretreatment, it is connected
to the municipal drainage network for further treatment and
discharged into the water body after reaching the standard.
The production wastewater is recycled and reused after the
wastewater treatment reaches the standard. During the Reporting
Period, we built wastewater treatment plant in the Vietnam and
Shenzhen factory area. The treated wastewater, of which the
water quality meets the requirements of the discharge standards
of both places (“QCVN 40/2011/BTNMT" and “Integrated
Wastewater Discharge Standards”), will be reused in the
production process and achieve the purpose of water recycling
and reuse. Meanwhile, the concept of saving water and improving
efficiency and reducing water consumption is fully implemented
through a variety of measures to bolster water efficiency which
are small but significant, such as installing the aforementioned
preshrinking condensate water recovery device, which directly
recovers the condensate water into the central hot water tank
and used for heating for the electric boiler. To a certain extent,
it replaces make-up water with tap water, thereby saving water
and energy, avoiding certain wastewater consumption during the
treatment of soft water. We also replace ordinary faucets with
low-flow shower-type water-saving nozzles, collect rainwater for
watering trees and flowers, conduct routine water pipe leakage
checks, and reuse wastewater for cleaning, in order to implement
the concept of saving energy and improving efficiency and lower
the water consumption.

N 1Y Al
Sewage treatment at Vietnam factories
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Recycling Rainwater System at Vietnam Factories
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Sustainable Material

With the increasing emphasis on environmental protection and
sustainable development globally and by various brands, and the
steady growth of the scale of environmentally friendly industry,
the Group actively participates in our strategic partners’ initiatives
on the use of sustainable materials on the basis of meeting
the demand for raw material production (such as nylon and
polyester). We purchase environmentally friendly materials, such
as environmentally friendly recycled yarn (such as nylon covered
yarn and recycled nylon), fabric, sewing thread (such as fluffy
threads and polyester threads), etc. We explore the development
and application of special functional fabrics, such as antibacterial
fabric, etc. and actively launch a simple series of products.

Waste Treatment

The Group disposes of wastes in the principle of reduction, reuse
and recycling. We strictly abide by the laws and regulations
of the countries and regions where we operate, such as the
“Rules of People’s Republic of China on the Prevention and
Control of Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”, the “Rules
of Guangdong Province on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution by Solid Waste”, the “Guidelines for
Preparing Management Plans for Hazardous Waste Production
Units”, the “Hazardous Waste Management System of Vietnam”
and the "Solid Waste Management System of Vietnam”. Our
policies and systems, such as the “Management System for EHS
Waste"”, the “Environmental Protection Policy” and the “Chemical
Safety Policy” have been formulated and implemented to guide
and standardize the classification and treatment process of waste,
avoid waste of resources, prevent the risk of hazardous waste
pollution and control the negative impact on the environment.

Our waste mainly includes defective goods, production waste,
recyclable waste, domestic waste and a small amount of
hazardous waste. Non-hazardous waste will be collected in
categories, the recyclable part of which will be handed over to
qualified resource regeneration companies for recycle and reuse
and the unrecyclable part will be stored together and then cleared
and treated collectively by municipal environmental and hygiene
services. Hazardous waste will be collected in categories and
then handed over to professional hazardous waste treatment
companies for harmless disposal. Improper disposal must be
eliminated so as not to cause pollution and harm.

Besides reducing environmental pollution by proper treatment of
different types of wastes, we also work on the source of the issue,
with a variety of measures to continuously improve the efficiency
and economic benefits of materials and reduce waste emission.
During the Reporting Period, we reduced the production of
waste through returning paper cores and plastic cutting boards to
suppliers, recycling and reusing waste paper/nylon/plastic/rags/
waste fabrics in Vietnam factories. We signed a waste treatment
contract with the waste burning and energy recovery unit to
replace rag burning with renewable energy to achieve zero landfill.
As of the reporting date, the Group has achieved a zero landfill
rate of over 83% for production waste. In the future, we will
control the generation of waste from the source.
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Environmental Protection and Natural Resources

With high ethical standards in place, the Group is committed to
promoting the sustainable development of corporate economy
and society by minimizing the impacts on the natural environment
by its production and operation activities, in a bid to protect the
existing environment and leave abundant social resources and
beautiful earth scenery for future generations. We undertake
to maintain our environmental credit, adhere to the concept of
honesty and integrity throughout our production and operation
activities, continue to strengthen environmental management
and resolutely resist behaviors that may have a material adverse
impact on the environment while pursuing business development.
We firmly develop environmental awareness, carry out the
promotion of environmental education, advocate scientific
development concept and strengthen corporate culture, earnestly
shouldering the social responsibility for environmental protection.

The Group's impact on the environment mainly includes
the effects on the air, water and land environments due to
transportation, loading and unloading, production, packaging,
maintenance and cooking. We strictly comply with relevant laws
and regulations, implement environmental impact assessment
in a timely manner, and in accordance with the provisions of the
government agencies to obtain approval. We regularly maintain
and repair office supplies to extend their service life and avoid
unnecessary wastage. We post environmental labels to remind
employees of energy conservation and emissions reduction,
creating a positive atmosphere for environmental protection in
the work that needs only little effort. We provide various training
and “Clear Your Plate” campaign to boost our employees’
perception of green concept. We encourage employees to
propose environmentally-friendly ideas and reward the person or
department that have put forward viable solutions, in an effort
to enhance their environmental interaction and participation. \We
actively participate in the “Ecological Protection Competition”. By
calling on employees and their families to participate in “online
running”, online fun workshops and games, and join the “marine
protection team”, we help the public understand the threat of
plastic waste to marine life, and learn how to become a marine
protection soldier from their daily life. In our Vietnam factories,
we have incorporated greening into the construction plan, and
continuously amplify the greening effect of our office area and
production area through greening maintenance, where the
greening areas of all factories have expanded to 20%. In addition,
we actively participate in environmental improvement activities in
the locality, such as tree planting, garbage collection, promotion
of the prevention of plastic waste and environmental-themed art
exhibition.
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Environmental KPls RIZEFEBENIEE

During the Reporting Period, the Group's environmental KPIs
covers the production and office areas of the Vietnam factories
(A, B, C, D and E factory) and the Shenzhen factories. The specific

performance is as follows:

BEHRE  AEERERREMEEEEZSR
EeiEmEmE (AR - BR - CH - DF - E
B MORYI @ e A AR I - AR

L

Environmental KPIs

REFREBERER
KPIs Unit Note Reporting period
bt Lo By 2 = HIE
Nitrogen oxides emissions Kilogram 539.4
AT LYHHRE Fr
Sulfur oxide emissions Kilogram 1.3
mECYHRE Fr
Particles emissions Kilogram 39.0
R E Fr
Total greenhouse gas emissions Tonne CO,e 168,946.3
BERBAENRE WM-E{LREE
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) Tonne CO.e 4 2,983.7
BEREEE (HBE1) WE—SE(CIREE
Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) Tonne CO.e 5 165,962.6
BEREENE (HBE2) WE—SE(CIREE
Total hazardous wastes produced Tonne 6 514.7
FEBEEYRELS i
By hazardous waste category
IR ER YIS
The weight of waste packages and containers Tonne
containing or contaminating with toxic or
infectious hazardous waste 268.8
BHRILHASE  BRAUEREDOEZEEY  BRES W
The weight of waste glue, ink, ink cartridges, Tonne
contaminated absorbent, rags and cloth 173.6
FERK » 2K - BRRFSRNWOKAE - BKin - faklEE W
The weight of waste abluent, detergent and stain
remover Tonne 61.6
BEESEA - BB S ARBIES Mg
The weight of waste battery Tonne 6.9
BEEENES 158
The weight of waste mercury-containing fluorescent
lamps and other mercury-containing electric light and
waste activated glass Tonne 3.0
FEEREAEERAMERENRIERCHBES U
The weight of waste mineral oil and waste containing
mineral oil Tonne 0.7
FEREYRE SR hEYES 8
The weight of medical waste Tonne 0.1
EREDES 158
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Environmental KPls

REBREREE
KPIs Unit Note Reporting period
EEA% By HREHIE
By management method 7
LR T =,
Other recovery (including energy regeneration) Tonne 454.8
Hit B4 (PIERREE) Mg
Incineration (without energy recovery) Tonne 48.8
RLORBRERBE) Mg
Physical and chemical treatment Tonne 10.9
IR 2R Mg
Recycling Tonne 0.2
B A
Total non-hazardous wastes produced Tonne 12,458.4
EBEERRYEELE 7]
By non-hazardous waste category
RS ER Y
The weight of non-hazardous production waste Tonne 6,490.9
EELEBRHNES A
The weight of waste metal, plastic, wood, textile and
foam Tonne 2,653.7
FEEDRE B AM B BRESE A
The weight of waste packaging cardboard boxes Tonne 2,109.5
BEERRAEES Mg
The weight of general office waste Tonne 640.3
—MIMAEEYES Mg
The weight of waste packaging plastic Tonne 375.0
BEARBHERES Mg
The weight of food waste Tonne 189.0
BitshrifkE 2 Mg
By management method 7
R T =,
Recycling Tonne 7,259.6
B A
Incineration (without energy recovery) Tonne 3,237.2
RILORBRERBEAE) Mg
Other recovery (including energy recovery) Tonne 1,321.3
Ht B4 (RIERREE) Mg
Landfilling Tonne 640.3
HEIH A
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Environmental KPls

RIZFABERIER
KPIs Unit Note Reporting period
EEER By T8 s AR
Total energy consumption ‘000 kWh 8 206,062.2
RERABFE FETFRER
Total energy intensity ‘000 kWh/HK$'000 9 0.03
RERABRE FETEE BETT
Non-renewable fuel (direct) consumption ‘000 kWh 11,517.5
FABERB(EE)EE FETFRE
Petrol consumption ‘000 kWh 467.4
RS FEF R
Diesel consumption ‘000 kWh 11,050.1
ks FEF A
Renewable fuel (direct) consumption ‘000 kWh 685.6
AEERR(EE EE FETFRE
Solar power consumption ‘000 kWh 685.6
Ki5eeiE= FEF R
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Environmental KPls

150

REBREREE
KPIs Unit
EEERE By
Purchased energy (indirect) consumption ‘000 kWh
BERIR (B EE FBTFEE
Electricity consumption ‘000 kWh
BhREE FEF R
Total water consumption Cubic metre
HHEKE AR
Total water consumption intensity Cubic metre/
HK$’000
BIERRE MK BT
Municipal supplied water consumption Cubic metre
BTk E ST K
Reclaimed water consumption Cubic metre
ERAKE S5k
Packaging materials consumption Tonne
BEMEERE 7]
Packaging plastic bags consumption Tonne
BEBHERERE Mg
Packaging cardboard boxes consumption Tonne
PEREERE Mg

Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 1) come from the combustion of fuel
(diesel) in stationary sources and the combustion of fuel (petrol, diesel)
from our business vehicles.

Greenhouse gas emissions (Scope 2) come from the consumption of
purchased electricity. According to “Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” (“Appendix 2") of “How to prepare an ESG
Report?” updated by The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in May
2021, the greenhouse gas emission factors of our Vietnam factories
refer to the IGES List of Grid Emission Factors published by the Institute
of Global Environmental Strategies and the greenhouse gas emission
factors of our Shenzhen factories refer to the “Baseline Emission Factors
of China's Regional Power Grids for Emission Reduction Projects in 2019
(2019 ERBEIE B BRI S EEGZHEREF) )" published by the
Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the People's Republic of China on
29 December 2020.

The scope of disclosure of hazardous waste of Shenzhen factories is
defined according to the “Directory of National Hazardous Waste"” (2021
edition) ((BEIREMEEWEEE) (20214) ) published by the Ministry of
Environmental Protection of the People’s Republic of China, while the
scope of disclosure of hazardous waste of Vietnam factories is defined
according to the “Circular N0.36/2015/TT-BTNMT" (2015 edition)
published by the Ministry of Natural Resources and Environment of
Vietnam.

The management methods of waste are specified in accordance with the
waste treatment methods in Appendix 2 of the Stock Exchange.

Note Reporting period
it 2 HREHIE

193,859.1

193,859.1

1,427,130.0

9 0.24

1,416,467.0

10,663.0

13,728.9

630.3

13,098.6
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8 Energy heating value coefficient are determined under the “Guidelines
for Accounting Methods and Reporting of Greenhouse Gas Emissions in
Enterprises in Other Industries (Trial)” (( TEEMITENFE R EREHN
BE T EEREIER (5177) )) published by the National Development and
Reform Commission of the People’s Republic of China on 6 July 2015.

9 The energy consumption intensity and total water consumption intensity
are calculated based on the operating income in HKD'000 during the
Reporting Period.

As our new factories commence operations, we will expand
the scope of disclosure of environmental KPIs year-by-year, in
a bid to reflect our actual business operations and promote our
environmental management.

R dEREREE

8 BERAERBSEFEARENEERERM
WEZEEMN2016%F7 A6 A T8 2 TEH A
TEMER = R E AR EER(H
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DEVOTE TO SOCIETY

The Group performs its social responsibility as a corporate
citizen, fights against the COVID-19 Pandemic and cares for
disadvantaged groups. Enthusiastic about charitable causes, it
works towards creating co-development, harmony and sharing
to propel the sustainable development of local communities.
Through doing volunteer work, donating money and supplies, and
other means, the Group has continuously invested resources to
benefit the society and its development, which brings positive
influence to relevant parties.

Support Students’ Growth

The Group cares for the growth and future of students from
the local community. For many years, we provided assistance
to children in terms of living needs and education needs within
our capacities, extending a helping hand to the all-rounded
development of children. In December 2020, Shenzhen
Guangming New District Charity Association (J¢FAF[RZEZS)
organized the 2020 Shuguang Education Funding Activity. As
the president unit of Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity
Association, the Group participated in the Shuguang Education
Funding Activity for the sixth consecutive year and successfully
provided financial aid for 18 students. We have donated around
RMB37,000 in financial aid.

18 1%
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Donation certification of the Shuguang Education Funding Activity
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Caring for Disadvantaged Groups

The Group pays attention to the disadvantaged groups both within
and outside the Group. Every year, the Shenzhen factories actively
engage in “Guangdong Poverty Alleviation Day"” at the call of
Shenzhen Guangming New District Charity Association, working
within its ability to help disadvantaged groups to meet their basic
needs as well as demand for medical service, employment and
social engagement, and encouraging poverty alleviation authorities
and all walks of life to have deeper engagement in poverty-
stricken areas. In addition, we visit needy elderly persons in Yulv
Village and give consolation money during the Spring Festival
annually, sending blessings to poor elderly people in the name of
the Group. The volunteer group of Vietnam factories organized
volunteers to participate in public welfare and charity, visited
elderly home, schools for the blind, schools for deaf-mutes,
orphan center and SOS rescue center in Hai Phong City, Vietnam,
and sent gifts and consolation money to the people in need from
all walks of life.

R dEREREE

BEE2EE
AEBERIEEAINSEER - RYIBEE
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Visiting the elderly home and orphanage and carrying out consolation activities for the

Mid-Autumn festival
FEARRIMER - BEP RGBT
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Enthusiasm in Charity

The Group is enthusiastic about public welfare and actively
participates in charities through responding to the call from local
charity organizations where it operates to make its contribution to
charitable causes. Since the volunteer group of Vietnam factories
was formally established in 2019, with the spirit of “dedication,
friendship, mutual assistance and progress”, we have carried
out volunteer services in an organized and disciplined manner.
The establishment of the volunteer organization signifies that
we will continue to move forward along the path of charity and
implement our corporate social responsibility to the end, making
greater contribution to the social development of Vietnam and the
charitable causes of Hai Phong City. During the Reporting Period,
we responded to the call of the Party Committee of Hai Phong
City (8fFmAKZ ) and the Labor Union of Hai Phong Economic
Zone (P4 HER T ) of Vietnam, participated in the “Close
Love” (#8iT#8E) charity activity, and donated to the people in
central Vietnam who suffered from successive floods in 2020.
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Act Together to Fight COVID-19 HiHE &S

The pandemic is ruthless but there is love on earth. We will RBEBE ABBET  MBRIE HAH
fight against the pandemic and overcome difficulties together. £ - BCOVID-19ZIBEALE - B#M—ER
Since the outbreak of COVID-19, we have been paying close PEIRIEER  —HFEURENLSET
attention to the progress of the pandemic. On the one hand, we RIEE TR IS BATITE » MaF B RED

actively support and cooperate with government’s actions with WEIBRBERZELIE: 5—HEEREEE
a high sense of social responsibility, and make great efforts in BAEEE  AESENR —SHNEEMRE
pandemic prevention and control within the Company. On the HMEEBRIBH - BIREITEEAERT -

other hand, we actively fulfill our corporate social responsibility
by actively liaising with relevant organizations to provide supplies
and donations to the heroes who are fighting the pandemic on the
front line.
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Donation certification and photo of pandemic prevention materials at the COVID-19 Pandemic

Prevention and Control Headquarter in Yutang Street
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Donation to Hai Phong City, Vietnam in the “Prevention of
COVID-19 Pandemic Together” donation activity
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HONORS AND RECOGNITION

Number Award

FFa

156

#215
adidas Quality Award 2020

adidas Innovation Award 2020

Certificate of Contribution
2019-2020 - Excellent
contributions towards the
social insurance policy
2019-2020FF FERHE B RIEE—
REHTRITIENER

Certificate of Contribution
2020 — Excellent contributions
towards the socio-economic
development of Hai Phong
City

2020 ERE BRI —RY
HEhmtECEERAOER
Donation Certification of
Shuguang Education Funding
Activity of RMB300,000

[ BERBBEARB2R
BLBIBES

Green Factory

LB TR

Awarded by
TRHREE (Y

adidas North Asia

] 3e2 32 7 (adidas) 1t 2e M

adidas North Asia

] 36813 H (adidas) 3k 25 M

Vietnam Social Insurance
Agency

BEHRE

Hai Phong City People’s
Committee

Guangming New District
Charity Association,
Shenzhen, the People's
Republic of China

R AR A BRI
RAREES

Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology

of the People’s Republic
of China

FEE ARKEMB T EAME

BrEp

s
i

B
|

Recipient
BRAF

Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd
BREDRARORIID
BRAT]

Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd
BREDRARORIID
BRAT]

Regina Miracle
International (Vietnam)
Co., Ltd

2B (M) AR A

Regina Miracle
International (Vietnam)
Co., Ltd

2B (M) AR A

Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd

BEREZRARCRIN)
BERAT

Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd

BREZRARCRIN)
BERAT

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ iR (IZR)ERA A

Date of
Award
bt g=R

March
2021

202143 A
March
2021

202143 A4

January
2021

20214F1 A

January
2021

20214F1 A

December
2020

20205128

October
2020

2020410 A
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Number Award

FFak

10

11

#®15

Yutang Street Donation
Certification for COVID-19
Pandemic 2020

2020F EIRABIE AR &
EiEREEE

Guangxi Helping Project
donated a special fund of
RMB100,000

EOEERERBREERES

10&7T

Shenzhen Guangming District
Top 10 Import and Export
Enterprises in 2019

AT R R 20195 E#EH O
TRdE

Certificate of “Advanced
Model Unit for Civilian
Participation in Fire Prevention
Operations 2020"
[2020%F &R 2 B[ NFTE8) S

HEVE( |BE

The First Prize of “Good
Students of Student Hygiene
and Traffic Safety 2020"

[2020F BEZ 2 HENRL
PFELE | -5

Awarded by
TREREE (Y

COVID-19 Epidemic
Prevention and Control
Headquarter in Yutang
Street, Shenzhen, the
People’s Republic of
China
FEEAREMBORYIT E
BEBHMEMARKEE
B aiE B

Shenzhen Guangming
District General
Chamber of Commerce
of the People’s Republic
of China

HEE A RFEMBORYIT
FREREE

Guangming District
People’'s Government
of Shenzhen of the
People’s Republic of
China

HEE A RFEMBORYIT
SRR AR

Hai Phong Public
Security Department
of Socialist Republic of
Vietnam

MR e = & HAEE
MARR

Trade unions of Hai
Phong Economic Zone
of Socialist Republic of
Vietnam
Mt R HFEE
TREBEELS

FEwE2020/21

Recipient
BRAF

Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd

BREZRARCRIN)
BRAR

Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd

BRAEZRARCRIN)
BRAR

Regina Miracle Intimate
Apparel (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd

BRERTRAKRCEID
BRAA

Regina Miracle
International (Vietnam)
Co., Ltd

H P BIRR (7 ) AR AR
Regina Miracle
International (Vietnam)

Co., Ltd

2B (M) AR AR

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21

Date of
Award
fEEE A

September
2020

202094

July 2020

202057 A

May 2020

2020454

May 2020

2020454

May 2020

2020454
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B RHENRE

_E
pwc

To the Shareholders of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Regina Miracle
International (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 165 to 251, which
comprise:

° the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021;
° the consolidated income statement for the year then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

° the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended,;

° the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

° the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

OPINION (Continued)

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as
at 31 March 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matter identified in our audit is related to provision for
inventories.

BYRHERE

ERw

EPNWER

BMRE  ZELREVBBREREBREEES
AR A BMARCEBMIEREERNDEEM
FEMRET BHEER2021F3A318H
AR REEEZA L FENGEAH
BERBMFERESRE  WEBREA(AR
TP VO 35 45 T 2 B o

ERRNER

BAERETESHAGROHCEBET
ZEADETTER - RIEZFEATRENR
FEAEARSRBEN R E A B RRA
ERE IRy P IEE— SRt -

HAIRE - HPIMERHNBRTERETE N
EEWABRMINETE R REER -

B
RIEEEGHAGRMAA(EESTTENER
SSADCAT @RI SFRLD - HABZR &&
C WEEITTAIFEMBEREREE -

REEITEE

RRESTFEERERMNERHE - BR
HAHMGAVBREANBARREENS
B FERHERERMEFBEBRAMBR
REBABRBETRIEN  BATSYHE
LEFREHEFOER -

BMEFET P RPN BERENFRATER
mERE -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

B RHENRE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

FRETEE e

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

HRETSE

Provision for inventories

FERE

Refer to Note 18 “Inventories” and Note 4(a) “Critical
accounting estimates and judgements — Net realisable
value of inventories” to the consolidated financial
statements.

At 31 March 2021, the Group held inventories of
HK$1,248,519,000 and the provision for obsolete
or slow moving inventories was HK$2,890,000.
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value in the consolidated financial
statements.

Management assesses the provision for obsolete or
slow moving inventories at each period end based
on their consideration of obsolescence and the net
realisable value of inventories. The determination of
estimated selling price less cost to sell requires the
use of significant judgement and estimates, including
consideration of condition of products, latest selling
price, expectation of future sales orders and market
trends and customer demands.

FH2HEAMBHREM T 18[FE I LT 4@ T2 &FHE
AR FIE — FEAERFEE] -

R2021F3A31H EEEFENGTEEABE
1,248,519,0007T * PR & 5% #5717 & #5558 % 2,890,000
TG ° FEZRA AR AT 2R ERE NREE NGRS MR
RN o

BEEEEANHGFERERZENAMERFENZE NS
HIHRERERB EEENBREETIE - BERAEE
BIHERATZEREARAE MG - BREREERMNR
FITHIEE  RRHEEFTENTEY  mEBBREFFR
MERE -

AN EST N AEEBREENSE

Our key procedures in relation to management's
assessment of the provision for obsolete or slow
moving inventory included:

- Understanding, evaluating and validating the
key controls over management’s estimation
of provision for inventories and assessing
the inherent risk of material misstatement by
considering the degree of estimation uncertainty
and level of other inherent risk factors;

- Assessing the reasonableness of provision for
inventories and evaluating the key assumptions
and estimates applied by management for
making such provision;

- Testing, on a sample basis, the net realisable
value of selected inventory items, by comparing
the carrying amount of inventory items against
its selling price during the year and subsequent
to the year end to identify inventories with
net realisable value lower than their carrying
amount;

BB R EHRESOFH T E B EMET I Ta s

BFeE

- TE- TRAERERHEREEMATEEREREN
RSB IR - WBAE BAR THEEMENERE R
HAibE A R EAZAKE - SHEERERRANE
BRE

- AMETFEEENSEMRTEEEEMRBELE
RABE R R hE

- EAMESTABLEFEREMNREEEZENFARR
FRENEE @ HMEFEEANAERFEET
A ARBIT SR FEEREREAENFS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BYRHERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued) %ﬁﬁi%ﬁ?l,ﬁ(%%)

Key Audit Matter

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

BMHETNAEEBERESNSE

- Testing, on a sample basis, the accuracy of the
ageing profile of individual inventory items by
checking to the supporting documents such as
goods receipt notes; and

BREIER

We focused on this area due to the significance of
the balance, significant management judgement and
estimates involved in determining the provision for
obsolete or slow moving inventories.

- Testing, on a sample basis, long aged inventory
for subsequent sales or usage after year
end and reperforming the calculation for the
provision.

We found that management’s assessment of the
provision for obsolete or slow moving inventory was
supported by the available audit evidence.

BABINUBEIHREHREANBREREIFHTE

- EAMETAEERNFEEB RESLAERIEE

BRI RERNEIEEHE MG

TR TR REZEmBIBESERXT &

- RABESTAERERRENTENFEREEEHE
FEETTRIR - WEMTEERE -

BMEREEEERENBHTFERENF SR EET

EBEHF

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the information
included in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Hfs 8

BERREFAHHEMERAR - HMEEE
EEBRNNFARER  BTeEREHER
KM PIEZBEIRE -

BMEGAMBHRENBERL TREEME
B BT EHZEFEMESEREMTR
HYEEE At o

maRMEERAMBEHRRNEST  RANE
ERMEREMES - HIBES  ZEEM
ERERREFAMBHRRARMERER
T TEROBEAFEEABBREUTFE
BERBRERAROBER
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B RHENRE

OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE
AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

HiEE

ERBEMDHITHOINE - REMIRSEM
EEFEEANERRL - RAFTERSZF
B HEE - RIFLEEMERARS

EERELZEERGEUHK
BREAEAENERE

BERRERAAARBE LGOS RM
R E B R 15 & R A R BB A RHE B E
BERTHEEEMTENGRAMBEHRE -
WHERBRERAMBRRNEEIFE
A R B RF Sl B AR T 48 2 Y BB K BE BR R AL P 7R
HREIEFIRE -

ERBRAMBEREREK  EFARME B
SEFBELLENRE)  YEBERBRATHE
B ECEEANER  URERFELE
REFTER  BRIFEFARH BEEBR
FEILEE - SRIEEBEROKEIER -

EZZEQBAREE ERENMHRE

BB ET RS M B |REA
EHEME

HPMBR  RHGAMBRRBERL T
71 RO BRRF 3k BA BR 1 28 B B A8 FR IRt
BEAERE  YHABEERMERNER
B - HFIER BETUERRE)MSER
PINER - RULZINRREREEMBE A -
BT ERARENARAEAMEMALE
EEAREEMEE - AIBRBFEEKFHR
E o ETRERBRR(EBBRTENETH
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B o SHERBRAL AT A IR SR SR RR S - IR
BEEMEMNEEERERTEZERS
Bk 8 A& KRB AR A M TS SRR ATIE H A
ROEARTE - AIB BRI PT R EE K -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’'s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

BYRHERE
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B RHENRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (Continued)

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in
the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these
matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Chan Kam Chiu, Raymond.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 30 June 2021
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
FER@EK

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z2021F3 8310 |t F[E

2021 AOYA)
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Revenue A 5 5,974,290 6,341,010
Cost of sales SHERA 7 (4,736,337) (4,900,279)
Gross profit EF 1,237,953 1,440,731
Other income and other gains E A A R E Uz 6 48,065 65,880
Distribution and selling expenses DR IHER X 7 (139,494) (164,533)
General and administrative expenses —ME R ITE X 7 (630,903) (664,527)
Research and development costs B AR 7 (199,968) (203,911)
Other operating expenses Hibse 25 7 (49,738) =
Operating profit A 265,915 473,640
Finance income EUE AN 9 1,826 2,281
Finance costs B A5 R AR 9 (123,556) (162,819)
Finance costs, net BRSNS 58 (121,730) (160,538)
Share of net profit of an associate 1 A=A A BRR (S
accounted for using the equity method —RE#& A B4 F 17 2,515 -
Profit before income tax BRET BB ADER 146,700 313,102
Income tax expense FriSEif sz 11 (21,185) (23,149)
Profit for the year attributable to FRAEQATEEA
owners of the Company FEARSER 125,515 289,953
Earnings per share for profit ARATEEE AL
attributable to owners of the RN SRER
Company (expressed in HK cents (R BWLES])
per share)
— Basic and diluted —BEARREE 12 10.3 23.7
The above consolidated income statement should be read in ARG 185 7% FE BARE M e — O BORE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
mEREKER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z202163A318 tEE

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Profit for the year FREF 125,515 289,953

Other comprehensive income/(loss):  Hfti2EkZE (EE) -
Items that have been reclassified or may =&+ st AR A /£

be subsequently reclassified to profit B R EmIHA
or loss
Currency translation differences BEHREES 66,633 (203,332)
Fair value gain on insurance policy REZLENFEW
investments 16 8,377 5,540
Fair value change on trade receivables BAFERAEM
carried at fair value through other Z2HEKA
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) ([ERATHEEA
EmEmmuAl
HIARAIE 5 FE AR K
BN EEE) (16,506) (30,192)
Reclassification of trade receivables at RS GEATEE
FVOCI reserve to factoring interests AEfEEBARNE
and charges upon disposals SR EEBER
DEERENE R
EH 17,311 30,181

Other comprehensive income/(loss) FREM2ZEmRE

for the year, net of tax (B518) (EMBRFIE) 75,815 (197,803)
Total comprehensive income RATEE ARG
attributable to owners of 2HEIBAEE
the Company 201,330 92,150
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income Filisrs 2GR B EEEM M —OFRI3E -

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARR

As at 31 March 2021 7202163 H31H

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 13 4,674,481 4,611,413
Right-of-use assets REAE 14 463,105 466,590
Intangible assets B EE 15 43,663 47,923
Insurance policy investments (REEIRE 16 190,359 130,110
Investment in an associate R—FEEE R R E 17 11,715 -
Deposits and prepayments Re RIENFIE 20 111,255 26,470
Deferred income tax assets FELEASHEE 25 17,296 6,348
5,511,874 5,288,854
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 18 1,245,629 1,096,605
Trade receivables 2 S EWERR 19 1,093,022 718,896
Deposits, prepayments and e - BAREREA
other receivables JEUG FhE 20 48,115 43,041
Tax recoverable BIEEERE 3,510 16
Restricted bank deposits SIRERITIER 21 6,906 -
Cash and cash equivalents HeMREEED 21 827,980 587,616
e 3,225,162 2,446,174
Total assets EEHAE 8,737,036 7,735,028
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the &2 THEHE AEGEERZR
Company
Share capital N 22 95,247 95,247
Reserves B 23 2,975,108 2,822,748
Total equity RS 3,070,355 2,917,995

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in Ltz s BEB EREEBEIF—GRIE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
HREEARER

As at 31 March 2021 7202163 H31H

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities FERBEE
Borrowings B 24 3,192,407 2,852,437
Other payables Hib et zoE 27 24,155 12,792
Lease liabilities HE&E 14 78,165 63,129
Deferred income tax liabilities ELEASIHREE 25 22,162 4,039
3,316,889 2,932,397
Current liabilities ik h=Ri
Trade payables B SN 26 424,758 385,300
Accruals and other payables FEsTE R LB fE TR 27 671,267 655,706
Lease liabilities HEaE 14 68,598 99,701
Borrowings B 24 1,176,484 737,568
Current income tax liabilities BIHFTIST A E 8,685 6,361
U, 2349792 . 1,884,636
_Totalliabilities = =°fes® 5666681 4817033
Total equity and liabilities EERAEHAE 8,737,036 7,735,028
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in LA EEBEREEBHIM T —
conjunction with the accompanying notes. BFREE -
The consolidated financial statements on pages 165 to 251 were F166E 21 EMGEAMBHREE R
approved by the Board of Directors on 30 June 2021 and were 20216 A30AKRESESH AN EE
signed on its behalf. =
Hung Yau Lit Antony Yiu
B Pk ER
Chairman Director
FE EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

REREREER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #£20214E3 318 IFE/E

Attributable to owners

of the Company
AATHEE AENG
Share capital Reserves
[N R
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT
As at 1 April 2019 R2019%4/10 95,247 . 2,826,090 2,921,337
Profit for the year FREF - 289,953 289,953
Other comprehensive (loss)/ income Ht2E(EE) WA
Currency translation differences B E =R - (203,332) (203,332)
Fair value gain on insurance policy REFER N FEWE
investments - 5,540 5,540
Fair value change on trade receivables 1ZAFEETAEMEE
carried at FVOCI WAZIBRH B 5 FE IR
FHRTHEZ S - (30,192) (30,192)
Reclassification of trade receivables at A H &% IR AT @EE A
FVOCI reserve to factoring interests HEtnz2mEWANE Sk
and charges upon disposals WERSRREEN D EE
RIEF) B KB A - 30,181 30,181
Total comprehensive income FREMKALE
for the year - 92,150 92,150
Transaction with owners of HARAREBEARS
the Company
Dividends paid (Note 28) BT S (FEE28) - (95,492) (95,492)
As at 31 March 2020 7A20203H31H 95,247 2,822,748 2,917,995
Balance asat 1 April 2020 ~ R2020%4A1RM&eR 95247 2822748 2,917,995
Profit for the year FE R - 125,515 125,515
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Ht2EWA ~(EiE)
Currency translation differences B E RS - 66,633 66,633
Fair value gain on insurance policy RELEN R FEW S
investments - 8,377 8,377
Fair value change on trade receivables 1ZAFEEFTAEMETE
carried at FVOCI WAFIBERE 5 IR
M N EEZE) - (16,5006) (16,506)
Reclassification of trade receivables at HRHERBEIZRAFEA
FVOClI reserve to factoring interests Hin2mWARNE S
and charges upon disposals IR REESIES
REEF) B KB A - 17,311 17,311
Total comprehensive income FRE2EKAETE
for the year - 201,330 201,330
Transaction with owners of HAQAREEARS
the Company
Dividends paid (Note 28) BT S (FEE28) - (48,970) (48,970)
As at 31 March 2021 7A202163H31H 95,247 2,975,108 3,070,355

The consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

iR B R R BRI I — GBI o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FERTRER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #Z202163A318 tEE

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Cash flows from operating activities K& IEFEESRE

Cash generated from operations REXBRERE 29(a) 459,846 779,762
Profits tax paid BINTI1E L (15,138) (32,409)
Net cash generated from operating KB TEBFBIRE FEE

activities 444,708 747,353

Cash flows from investing activities R&EIEFMEESRE

Purchase of property, plant and BEME -
equipment BV E ] (538,558) (797,065)

Prepayments for purchase of property, BEE¥% - BEMEE
plant and equipment and intangible UEREREER

assets TEffFA (87,733) (19,014)
Acquisition of right-of-use assets WiEFREEE(EE

(Leasehold land and land use rights) Rt FRfE) (15,773) (20,946)
Prepayments for right-of-use assets FREEE(HET R

(Leasehold land and land use rights) T b {E AR ) TR FRIE (16,495) -
Purchase of intangible assets BEELEE (4,467) (8,552)
Purchase of insurance policy BERERE

investments 16 (51,872) (49,046)
Proceeds from disposal of insurance HERBREMERIE

policy investments = 686
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  REREE

plant and equipment FTiS7RIA 29(b) 2,356 2,381
Refund from prepayments for W AEEE(HE

acquisition of right-of-use assets A Ko A A FRRE ) B9

(Leasehold land and land use rights) T FRIBRE K = 43,312
Investment in an associate, net R—EBE AT E

FEE (9,200) -

Increase in restricted bank deposits ZREIERTTIE L AN (6,906) -
Interest received B & 1,826 2,281
Net cash used in investing activities KEEHFTRIRS F5E (726,822) (845,963)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GBERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2021 #£20214E3 318 IFE/E

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Cash flows from financing activities &S IEFMEESRE

Proceeds from new borrowings e R AT E R IA 29 (c) 2,434,385 2,195,967
Repayments of borrowings BEER 29 (c) (1,655,499) (1,630,060)
Principal elements of lease payments &R ZEAS 5 29 (c) (92,766) (73,805)
Interest paid BFE (126,275) (162,819)
Dividends paid BRE (48,970) (95,492)
Net cash generated from financing BEEE SRS R

activities 510,875 233,791
Net increase in cash and cash RERBEEEY

equivalents EnFEE 228,761 135,181
Cash and cash equivalents at FUHReRREEEY

beginning of the year 587,616 466,436
Effects of exchange rate changes on fEREBH RS NS

cash and cash equivalents EEVNTE 11,603 (14,001)

Cash and cash equivalents at end of FRBEMREEEY

the year 21 827,980 587,616
The consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in RERESREREEENME—O5E -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

FF$R452020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 171



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2.1

172

GENERAL INFORMATION

Regina Miracle International (Holdings) Limited (the
“Company"”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on
21 September 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Law (2010 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands. The Company has its primary listing on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. The address of
the Company’s registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are
principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of bras,
intimate wear, bra pads, other molded products, functional
sports products and pandemic prevention products.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong Dollar (“HK$'000"), unless
otherwise stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These consolidated financial statements of the Group have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS") and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap.
622. These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of trade receivables carried at FVOCI and
insurance policy investments which are carried at fair values.

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements
in conformity with HKFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’'s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas
when assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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2.1
(a)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Basis of preparation (Continued)

Amended standards and conceptual framework adopted
by the Group

The Group has applied the following new and amended
standards and new interpretation for the first time for their
annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2020:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
(Amendment)

Definition of Material

HKFRS 3 (Amendment) Definition of a Business
Amendments to HKAS 39, Hedge accounting
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9

Conceptual Framework for Revised Conceptual Framework
Financial Reporting 2018  for Financial Reporting

The adoption of other amended standards and conceptual
framework did not have any impact on the amounts
recognised in prior periods and are not expected to
significantly affect the current or future periods.

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.1
(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FESITEEHSE@w@)
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 REEEE)

(b) New and amended standards, interpretation and (b) 75 B KA B HTET R A NS AT &

accounting guideline not yet adopted by the Group

The following new and amended standards and conceptual
framework have been issued that are not mandatory for
financial year ended 31 March 2021 and have not been early

B BEUREES/

THFTET RS FT A LA RS iE SR
B8 - EEEREE2021F3A31H
IEBFEARSIER - BASEER

adopted by the Group: IR -
HKFRS 16 (Amendment) Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions 1 June 2020
TRV BREENBE16R(EFTA) 2019BRAESHEFHS AR 202056 A1H
HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 1 April 2021
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16
(Amendments)
BB et ERIE39 - BEEFBWME MEEERFE-F_FER 202154 A1H
HREBATE - BAMBERE LR
BT - BAEUBRELERFEIR K
BRI REERE 165 (BRTAR)
Annual Improvements Project Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 1 April 2022
(Amendments)
FRBCETEI(BRTAR) EB BB RS £ RI20185F 220205 1B BV F & i 2022%4A1H
HKFRS 3, HKAS 16 and HKAS 37 Narrow-scope Amendments 1 April 2022
(Amendments)
ERUHREERNEI HEGH  WEBEEA] 202254 A1H
HRIFE165 R BB G 4ERIE375R
(BTA)
AG 5 (Revised) Revised Accounting Guideline 5 Merger Accounting for 1 April 2022
Common Control Combinations
GETESIFE (ERT) IEET gt RS EoR R RIS Mo eshE 202254 A1H
HKAS 1 (Amendment) Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current 1 April 2023
R EAEACC P BENERREBIIERD 2023%F4A1H
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and the related amendments 1 April 2023
BRI REERE 175 Rbg& 4 RABRRIEET 2023%F4A1H
HK Int 5 (2020) Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of 1 April 2023
Financial Statements — Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on
Demand Clause (HK Int 5 (2020))
EAREFEE5(20205F) BEREELT (20209F) B HMKRN 2T — ERAHHE 2023%4A1H

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28
(Amendment)

ERMBMEERE10R BB GET
AR B85 (BR] &)

RERERBEXNTEHERN DA (BEREEHR
(2020%))

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

REFRHBENRSAECEZHNEEREIIRA

To be determined

N

FEE

EHIZ S ERINE AT SRR E B
TEHARERAIBARARARRGEE

These standards are not expected to have a material impact
on the Group in the current or future reporting periods and
on foreseeable future transactions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
2.2.1 Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group has control.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is exposed to,
or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances, unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transactions
provide evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies
adopted by the Group.

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value at
the date when control is lost, with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is the
initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
respect of that entity are accounted for as if the Group had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

2.2.2 Associate

Associate is the entity over which the Group has significant
influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for
using the equity method of accounting, after initially being
recognised at cost.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Principles of consolidation and equity accounting
(Continued)

2.2.3 Equity method

2.3

176

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments
are initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits
or losses of the investee in profit or loss, and the Group's
share of movements in other comprehensive income of
the investee in other comprehensive income. Dividends
received or receivable from associates are recognised as a
reduction in the carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity,
including any other unsecured long-term receivables, the
Group does not recognise further losses, unless it has
incurred obligations or made payments on behalf of the
other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity-accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is
tested for impairment in accordance with the policy in Note
2.10.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving a dividend from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of
the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or if the
carrying amount of the investment in the separate financial
statements exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements of the investee's net assets including
goodwill.
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2.4

25
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker, who
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified
as the executive directors of the Company that makes
strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

I[tems included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency of
the primary economic environment in which the entity
operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated
financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollar
("HK$"), which is the Company's functional and the Group's
presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group’s entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy), that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and

(i)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

24
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(i)
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(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

25
(iii)

2.6

178

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

Group companies (Continued)

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities are
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is sold, the associated exchange differences are
reclassified to consolidated income statement, as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of
the foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs and
maintenance are expensed in the consolidated income
statement during the reporting period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated

using the straight-line method to allocate their cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building 5% or over the unexpired

period of the lease

5% or over the unexpired

period of the lease

7% to 10%

20% to 33%

Leasehold improvements

Plant and machinery
Office furniture and fixtures

20% to 33%
20%

Computer equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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2.6

2.7

2.8

2.9

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
within general and administrative expenses in the
consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
machinery under construction and pending installation and
is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any.
Cost includes the costs of construction of buildings and
the costs of plant and machinery, installation testing and
other direct costs. No provision for depreciation is made
on construction in progress until such time as the relevant
assets are completed and are available for the intended
use. When the assets concerned are brought into use, the
costs are transferred to property, plant and equipment and
depreciated in accordance with the policy as stated in Note
2.6 above.

Leasehold land and land use rights

Leasehold land and land use rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. Cost represents upfront prepayments made
for the rights to use the land over the lease term of 41 to
45 years. Amortisation of leasehold land is expensed in the
consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis over
the period of the lease. Leasehold land and land use rights
are presented as right-of-use assets in the consolidated
balance sheet.

Intangible assets

Acquired computer software license is capitalised on the
basis of the costs incurred to acquire the specific software.
The computer software acquired is carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses if any. These costs are amortised over estimated
useful lives of 5 to 10 years.

2.6

2.7

2.8
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

2.11
(i)

180

Non-financial assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows which are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment are
reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at the end
of each reporting period.

Financial assets

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

° those to be measured subsequently at FVOCI or
through profit or loss, and

° those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’'s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment carried at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.11 Financial assets (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, which is the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial
assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL"), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Debt instrument

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends
on the Group's business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly
in profit or loss and presented in other gains/(losses)
together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated income statement.

2.11

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.11
(iii)

(iv)

182

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Measurement (Continued)

Debt instrument (Continued)

° FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured at
FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are taken
through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment
gains or losses, interest income and foreign exchange
gains and losses which are recognised in profit or
loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCl is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss and recognised
in “finance cost, net”. Interest income from these
financial assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange gains
and losses are presented in “other income and other
gains, net”.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses associated with its debt instruments carried at
amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
these financial assets, see Note 3.1 (c)(ii) and Note 19 for
further details.

For deposits and other receivables from third parties, loss
allowance are measured as either 12-months expected
credit losses or lifetime expected credit losses, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit
risk of a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then loss allowance is measured as lifetime expected credit
losses.

2.1
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.12 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the
Company or the counterparty.

2.13 Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average
cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in
progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

2.14 Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are classified as non-
current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The trade receivables with the objective
to collect the contractual cash flows are measured
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Trade receivables from certain customers of the Group,
whose contractual cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, were factored to reputable financial
institutions under non-recourse factoring arrangement
according to the Group's daily fund management needs.
These trade receivable’s business model is therefore
achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and
selling of these assets. Such trade receivables was therefore
classified as financial assets carried at FVOCI.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.14 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

See Note 2.11 for further information about the Group’s
accounting for trade and other receivables and Note 3.1(c)(ii)
for a description of the Group’s impairment policies.

2.15 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in consolidated statement of
cash flow, cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand,
deposits held at call with banks with original maturities of
three months or less and bank overdrafts.

2.16 Restricted bank deposits
Restricted bank deposits represent guaranteed deposits
placed at designated bank accounts as cash collateral
for purchase of certain property, plant and equipment.
Such restricted bank deposits would be released after full
settlement of the contract.

2.17 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from
the proceeds.

2.18 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade payables and other payables are
presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due
within 12 months after the reporting period. They are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair values, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated income statement over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

2.20 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial
period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in consolidated
income statement in the period in which they are incurred.

FEwE2020/21

e R BRRME

FESHBERBEW)

2.19 &5k

ﬁzﬁﬂﬂiﬁ NP ERATEER SKA

Roe ERERIZE IR AT T
SREHBERSKA) BEREEN
EAEBRABERN AR ERHARA
RS BERER -

ERABERERMBO R HBENBENR
T RUBEFBE AT B AR
REFZSHRAE - ERERT - ZE
FIBELEZRME R B - NEEES
RATREERIME DK MAE - ZEH
BAERERRBE T RIEH AR R
18 - WNARERNE B S

RIEREEBREHGEEENEER
EEHERRRKD12(H - FRIE
yﬂA*E?%/ML@jEE °©

2.20 EERAK

BEREEREREE(MRKERE
Faﬁﬁ%é%%iﬁiﬂ@iﬁﬁiﬂj%#ﬁ@ﬂ’]
BE)EEREBEN—REFEEERX
N EH\EZ%EEE’]EZZK BEEEE
ARBEEEBEAERAKBERES
1kF e

PTG Bt iE B R AT B E A B R 4R
BREARTER

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 185



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.21

(i)

(ii)

186

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the year comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantially enacted at the end
of the reporting date in the countries where the Group
and its associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation and establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset
or liability in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income
tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is
settled.

2.21
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(ii)
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2

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Deferred income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and
tax bases of investments in foreign operations where the
Company is able to control the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is
a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and
liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right
to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Investment allowances and similar tax incentives
Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim
special tax deductions for investments in qualifying assets
or in relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group accounts
for such allowances as tax credits, which means that the
allowance reduces income tax payable and current tax
expense. A deferred tax asset is recognised for unclaimed
tax credits that are carried forward as deferred tax assets.

2.21

(ii)

(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

2.22
(i)

(ii)

(iii)

188

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
as a result of services rendered by employees up to the end
of the reporting date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations
Group companies operate several defined contribution
retirement schemes.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under which
the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate entity.
The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay
further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient
assets to pay all employees the benefits relating to
employee services in the current and prior periods.

The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expenses when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Bonus entitlements

The Group recognises a liability and an expense for bonuses
based on the key performance indicators for employees
and the business performance of the Group. The Group
recognises a provision where contractually obliged or where
there is a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.
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2.22
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(iii)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 2 FEESTTHEEHSBEw
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Employee benefits (Continued) 222 BEEEF(E)

(iv) Termination benefits (iv) BEBEF

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or when an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange of these benefits. the Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(a) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS 37 and
involves the payment of terminations benefits.

2.23 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation and the amount can be reliably
estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future operating
losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to anyone item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Revenue recognition

The Group manufactures and sells bras, intimate wear, bra
pads, other molded products, functional sports products
and pandemic prevention products in the wholesale market.
Revenue is recognised when control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the wholesaler at a point in time, the wholesaler has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the
wholesaler’'s acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specific
location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the wholesaler, and either the wholesaler has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract,
the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has
objective evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been
satisfied.

Revenue from the sale of goods is based on the price
specified in the sales contracts. No element of financing is
deemed present as the sales are made with a short credit
term, which is consistent with market practice. The Group's
obligation to replace faulty products or refund customers
under the standard warranties terms is recognised as a
provision, see note 2.23.

A receivable is recognised when the control of goods is
transferred as this is the point in time that the consideration
is unconditional because only the passage of time is
required before the payment is due.

Contract liability is recognised when payments are received
from customers in advance but the relevant performance
obligation has not been performed.

2.25 Interest income

190

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost
calculated using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of finance
cost, net. Interest income is calculated by applying the
effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.26 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
values where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with all attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated income statement over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that they
are intended to compensate. Government grants relating to
property, plant and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

2.27 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Costs incurred
on development projects relating to the design and
testing of new or improved products are recognised as an
intangible asset when the technical feasibility and intention
of completing the product under development has been
demonstrated and the resources are available to do so,
costs are identifiable and there is an ability to sell or use the
asset that will generate probable future economic benefits.
Such development costs are recognised as an asset and
amortised on the straight-line basis to reflect the pattern
in which the related economic benefits are recognised.
Development costs that do not meet the above criteria
are expensed as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in
a subsequent period.

2.28 Leases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued)

192

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases of
which the Group is a lessee, it has elected not to separate
lease and non-lease components and instead accounts for
these as a single lease component.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable

o variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the
commencement date

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is
reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

° payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Leases (Continued)

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

° where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing, and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liabilities;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received; and

o any initial direct costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

2.29 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group's financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

2.30 Insurance policy investments

Insurance policy investments are non-derivative measured
at FVOCI. They are included in non-current assets unless
the investment matures or management intends to dispose
of it within 12 months of the balance sheet date. When
the investments are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair
value adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement. The relevant accounting
policy of these assets has been consistently applied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3.1

(a)

194

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
receivables, refundable deposits and other receivables,
cash and cash equivalents, restricted bank deposits, trade
and other payables and borrowings. Details of the financial
instruments are disclosed in Note 32.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including cash flow interest rate risk, foreign exchange
risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management program focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group's financial performance. The Group
does not use any derivative financial instruments to hedge
the risk exposures. Risk management is regularly carried out
by the senior management of the Company under policies
approved by the executive directors of the Company.

Cash flow interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
except for bank deposits, which earn low interest income.
The Group's operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly
attributable to its borrowings with floating interest rates.
Borrowings issued at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset by cash
held at variable rates. The Group has not hedged its cash
flow interest rate risk. Details of the Group's borrowings
have been disclosed in Note 24.

As at 31 March 2021, if interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points with all other variables held
constant, profit for the year would increase/decrease by
HK$35,340,000 (2020: HK$30,024,000), resulting from the
changes in finance costs of gross bank borrowings, net of
cash and cash equivalents.
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3.1
(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Vietnam. Most of its business transactions, assets and
liabilities are principally denominated in HK$, Renminbi
("RMB"), Vietnamese Dong (“VND") and United States
Dollar (“US$"). The Group is exposed to foreign exchange
risk primarily through its sales, purchases and borrowing
transactions denominated in US$. The Group is presently
not using any forward exchange contract to hedge against
foreign exchange risk. The Group manages its foreign
exchange risks by performing regular reviews when
considered necessary and ensures that the net exposure
to foreign exchange risk is kept to an acceptable level from
time to time.

The directors considered the foreign exchange risk between
HK$ and US$ is minimal as US$ are reasonably stable with
HK$ under the Linked Exchange Rate System.

As at 31 March 2021, if RMB had strengthened/weakened
by 5% against US$ with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 would have
been approximately HK$3,750,000 higher/lower (2020:
HK$11,075,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated
trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents
and restricted bank deposits held by the Group’s entities in
the PRC.

As at 31 March 2021, if VND had strengthened/weakened
by 2% against US$ with all other variables held constant,
profit for the year ended 31 March 2021 would have
been approximately HK$51,326,000 higher/lower (2020:
HK$27,424,000 higher/lower), mainly as a result of foreign
exchange gains/losses on translation of US$ denominated
trade and other receivables, cash and cash equivalents,
restricted bank deposits and trade and other payables held
by the Group's entities in Vietnam.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3.1
(c)

(i)
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. The credit risk of
the Group mainly arises from cash and cash equivalents
(excluding cash on hand), restricted bank deposits, trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables. Management
has policies in place to monitor the exposures to these
credit risks on an on-going basis. The carrying amounts of
these balances represent the Group’s maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to financial assets.

Risk management

As at 31 March 2021, cash and cash equivalents (excluding
cash on hand) and the restricted bank deposits of the
Group are all deposited or traded with major reputable
financial institutions located in Hong Kong, the PRC and
Vietnam, which management believes are of high credit
quality. Management does not expect any losses from
non-performance by these financial institutions. The Group
has no policy to limit the amount of credit exposure to any
financial institutions.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group has concentration of credit
risk as 47% (2020: 57%) of its trade receivables were
from the five largest customers (2020: five), which are
mainly reputable corporations. Considering the track record
of regular repayment of trade receivables based on the
Group's experience with respect to the collection of these
receivables, the directors are of the opinion that the risk of
default by these customers is not significant.

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of
products on credit terms are made to customers with
appropriate credit history. The Group has not determined
any credit limit for customers, however, the Group performs
periodic credit evaluations of its customers. The major trade
debtors have no history of default.

The Group also uses trade receivables factoring facilities to
manage the credit risk of its trade debtors.
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3.1
(c)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group has two types of financial assets that are subject
to the expected credit loss model:

° Trade receivables; and
° Other financial assets carried at amortised cost

While cash and cash equivalents (excluding cash on hand)
are also subject to the impairment requirement of HKFRS 9,
as all banks are rated with a high credit rating, the identified
impairment loss is immaterial.

Trade receivables

The Group applies simplified approach to measuring
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables. To measure expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on nature of customer
accounts, the shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The Group uses two categories for those trade receivables
which reflect their credit risk and how the loss allowance is
determined for each of those categories.

Measurement of expected credit loss on individual basis

For trade receivables relating to corporate customers,
which are listed entities, the expected credit losses with
satisfactory credit history, they are assessed individually for
impairment allowance. As at 31 March 2021, the balances
of such individually assessed trade receivables and the
corresponding loss allowance are HK$818,699,000 (2020:
HK$522,344,000) and HK$3,503,000 (2020: HK$5,131,000),
respectively.

Measurement of expected credit loss on collective basis
Other than those trade receivables which were assessed by
individual basis, expected credit losses are also estimated by
grouping the remaining receivables based on shared credit
risk characteristics and collectively assessed for the risk of
default, taking into account the nature of the customer, its
geographical location and its ageing category, and applying
the expected credit loss rates to the respective gross
carrying amounts of the trade receivables. The expected
credit loss rates are determined based on historical credit
losses and are adjusted by management’'s assessment
to reflect the current and forward-looking information on
macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the customers
to settle the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 March 2021 and
31 March 2020 was determined as follows:

0-30 days

Current  past due

ol

B8 0Z30H

31 March 2021 HK$'000  HKS$'000
2021538318 A¥Tn  A¥Tn
Gross carrying amount FEAE 205,133 34,105
Loss allowance FiERE (879) (512)

3

3.1
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past due

31260H
HK$'000
BRI

20,331

(345)

R ERE s

MERBEE(E)

EERER(E)

B W (&)

M EET » H2021F38318 K
2020F3A31HESIERHEETLT ¢

0-30 days

Current  past due

S8 0%30H

31 March 2020 HK$'000  HK$'000
2020F3A31H AETT T
Gross carrying amount FHEE 154,844 22316
Loss allowance BRRE (899) (103)

31-60 days
past due
31260H
HK$'000

BETR

1,464

Over
31-60days 61-90days 91-180days 180 days
pastdue  pastdue pastdue Total
612908 91Z180A #8180 s
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
BETn  A¥Tn  A%Tn B%Tn
16,719 3,956 4423 284,667
(438) (646) (4,021) (6,841)
Qver
61-90 days 91-180days 180 days
pastdue  pastdue  pastdue
615900 91Z1808 ##180H
HK$'000 HK$'000
15,334 9,014 3203 206,175
(213) (250) (3,015) (4,492)

(12)

Trade receivables are written off when there is no
reasonable expectation of recovery. Indicators that there
is no reasonable expectation of recovery include, amongst
others, the failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan
with the Group.

Loss allowance on trade receivables are presented as net
loss allowance in the consolidated income statement.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off
are credited against the same line item.

Additions to the loss allowance were HK$721,000, relating
to trade receivables, during the year ended 31 March 2021
(For the year ended 31 March 2020: HK$6,181,000).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continued)

Credit risk (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include deposits
and certain other receivables. These financial assets are
considered to be low credit risk primarily because historically
they had no history of default and the debtors had a strong
capacity to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term.

Liquidity risk

The Group finances its working capital requirements through
a combination of funds generated from its operations and
bank borrowings. The Group’s policy is to maintain sufficient
cash and cash equivalents and have sufficient available
funding through committed credit facilities to meet its
working capital requirements. The directors believe that the
Group has maintained sufficient general banking facilities
for financing capital commitment in the near future and for
working capital purposes.

As at 31 March 2021, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents of HK$827,980,000 (2020: HK$587,616,000)
and trade receivables of HK$1,093,022,000 (2020:
HK$718,896,000) respectively, that are expected to readily
generate cash inflows for managing liquidity risk.

The tables below analyse the Group's non-derivative
financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the tables are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within
12 months equal their carrying balances, as the impact of
discounting is not significant.

The analysis shows the cash outflow based on agreed
scheduled repayments set out in the loan agreements, while
interest payments are computed using contractual rates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3

3.1
(d)

3.2

200

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HRERERE®
Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 FEERBEZEE)
Liquidity risk (Continued) (d) FEBELEEE)
Within Between Between (0]7:13
1year 1and2years 2and5 years 5 years Total
—ER -EME MELE et chik:d @5
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT  EETR  BETR BETR BETR
As at 31 March 2021 #202153 4318
Trade payables EHRNERN 424,758 - - - 424,758
Accruals and other payables [EAERRAMENTA 457,442 = = 24,155 481,597
Lease liabilities HEEE 72,169 50,164 20,168 19,000 161,501
Borrowings and bank interest payables &3 & E(TR17FIE 1,255,607 2,218,044 988,680 47,588 4,509,919
2,209,976 2,268,208 1,008,848 90,743 5,571,175
As at 31 March 2020 #202063 A31H
Trade payables EUIERES 385,300 - - - 385,300
Accruals and other payables [E: B R R AMEMN A 481,361 - - 12,792 494,153
Lease liahilities HEaRE 110,827 40,006 25,003 5,359 181,195
Borrowings and bank interest payables &5 & &R 17FIE 866,944 1,847,963 1,093,426 23,352 3,831,685
1,844,432 1,887,969 1,118,429 41,503 4,892,333
Fair value estimation 3.2 AV EMEEF

The table below analyses the Group’s financial instruments
carried at fair value as at 31 March 2021 and 2020 by level
of the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a
fair value hierarchy as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

° Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived
from prices) (level 2).

° Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

TERBEF 2R FEE RO ERI
BABBSHOTAEBN2021F K&
20203 A31 B AFEMRN ST
B ZER A AHBERAFEREXAS
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HiE(E_R) -

o WIFRBAEBEMSEHENEE
SRENEABEAI T A#RE
BABE) (E=) -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued)
The following table presents the fair value hierarchy of the
Group's assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value:

Level 1
E—&

HK$°000
BETT

e R BRRME

3 HKRRERE@

DEMGET ()
TR2JNAEERATENBNEE
REEORTERR

3.2

Level 2
-t 1
HK$'000
BT T

Level 3
E=
HK$'000
BT T

Total
et
HK$'000
BT T

- 190,359

190,359

- 253,789 253,789

As at 31 March 2021 M202153H31H
Assets BE
Insurance policy investments {REHRE =
Trade receivables carried BAFETAEMEZE
at FVOCI WAFIBRNE 5
FELER R -
Level 1
EF—H
HK$'000
BT
As at 31 March 2020 7202053H31H
Assets BE
Insurance policy investments {REHRE -
Trade receivables carried BAFEFAEMEZE
at FVOCI WATEREE 5
FEUEE R -

Total
5t
HK$'000
BT

Level 3
E=
HK$'000
BT

Level 2
E R
HK$'000
BT T

- 130,110

130,110

- 409,268 409,268

During the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020, there
were no transfers of financial assets and liabilities between
level 1, level 2 and level 3.

Financial instruments in level 1

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting date. A market is regarded as active if quoted
prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange
or dealer, and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s length basis.
The quoted market price used for financial assets held by
the Group is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1.

Financial instruments in level 2

The fair values of derivative financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market are determined by using
valuation techniques. These valuation techniques maximise
the use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates. If all
significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

FEwE2020/21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3.2

202

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Fair value estimation (Continued)

Financial instruments in level 3

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the investment is included in level 3.

For the fair value of insurance policy investments that is
not traded in an active market, the Chief Financial Officer
with the assistance of external valuer determined its fair
value based on the higher of cash surrender value and fair
value determinated by discounted cash flow model. The
significant unobservable inputs that determine the fair value
is cash surrender value, which is contractually agreed upon
entering into the insurance contract.

The fair value of trade receivables carried at FVOCI is
determined using discounted cash flow. Future cash flow is
estimated based on the contractual amount, discounted at
quoted factoring rate with banks in Hong Kong.

As at 31 March 2021, if quoted factoring rate had been
50 basis points higher/lower with all other variables held
constant, there would have been approximately HK$172,000
(2020: HK$549,000), unfavourably/favourably change on the
fair value of the trade receivables carried at FVOCI.

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the years ended 31 March 2021 and 2020.

3.2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3 HMERBREEm®
3.2 Fair value estimation (Continued) 3.2 AVEMFE)
Financial instruments in level 3 (Continued) Bk @ITAE)
Insurance policy investments RERE
2021 AOVA)
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
As at 1 April RAH1H 130,110 76,130
Additions WNE 51,872 49,046
Disposals He = (606)
Fair value gain recognised to other REM 2R AR
comprehensive income N AW 8,377 5,540
As at 31 March M3A31H 190,359 130,110
2021 AOYA)
20215 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T
Total disposal gain for the year included z+ A%r&18x%K
in consolidated income statement, [ E b A R 2 5 |
under “other income and gains, net” I FHERNHE KsE5E
(Note 6) (PFizE6) - 80

Trade receivables carried at FVOCI/

B R FEFGAEMZ ERAZRAE

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
As at 1 April ®4A1H 409,268 356,206
Additions NE 3,060,929 4,692,389
Disposals HeE (3,217,213) (4,639,316)
Fair value loss recognised to other REA 2 IR R
comprehensive income NFERE (16,506) (30,192)
Reclassification of trade receivables at R EEEIGIZAFEFT AEM
FVOCI reserve to factoring interests 2EBRAE 5 ERIR
and charges upon disposals EEETYEERIENS N
%M 17,311 30,181
As at 31 March M3A31H 253,789 409,268
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

3.3 Capital risk management
The Group’'s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern so that it
can continue to provide returns for shareholder and benefits
for other stakeholders, and maintain an optimal capital
structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain
or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholder, return capital to
shareholder, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the Group had a
gearing ratio of 115% and 103%, respectively. This ratio is
calculated as net debts (represented by bank borrowings
less cash and cash equivalents) divided by total equity. The
gearing ratios were as follows:

3

3.3

R ERE s

EXEBRER

AEEREREANBRA/RENEE
FELENRD  ETMAESESRRE
(el o o 23 H ) 25 A0 B A B A
& WHERREERNRBUREER

BT RE R IR BRI B 5 - [
REREER  BITHRREEEE
VAR A &7 o

AEBEBEEABLRERER -
20214 20203 A318 » A&EE
BEBEBLEDHFIAE115% K%103% °
L RAFER (BNIRTTIERURIR & &
ReEEY) BB BENE - BER
fELRMT

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

Total borrowings (Note 24) ek EE (M5E24) 4,368,891 3,590,005
Less: Vo

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 21) Re MRSEEW(FEE21) (827,980) (587,616)

Net debt FER 3,540,911 3,002,389

Total equity W 4ERE 3,070,354 2,917,995

Gearing ratio EESM[BLE 115% 103%

The increase in gearing ratio from 103% as at 31 March
2020 to 115% as at 31 March 2021 was primarily due to
the increase in bank borrowings for financing of capital
expenditure in relation to new production facilities in
Vietnam during the year.

The Group has complied with all the relevant covenants
under the terms of borrowing facilities throughout the year
(2020: Same).

3.4 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities
No financial assets and financial liabilities were subject to
offsetting, enforceable master netting arrangements or
similar agreements as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Same).
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(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing the financial
statements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial
impact on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less cost to sell.
These estimates are based on the current market condition
and the historical experience of manufacturing and selling
products of similar nature. Write-downs of inventories are
recorded where events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write-downs requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and write-downs of inventories in the period in which such
estimate has been changed. Management reassesses these
estimates at each reporting date.

Impairment of trade receivables

The Group’s management determines the loss allowances
for trade receivables based on the assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates. The Group uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the
impairment calculation which is based on the customer’s
past settlement pattern, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in note 3.1(c)(ii).
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

(c)

(d)

206

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Continued)

Income tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Vietnam. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
some transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
taxes based on estimates of whether additional taxes will
be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences would impact the current tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is likely that future taxable profits
will be available against which the temporary differences
or tax losses can be utilised. When the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences will
impact the recognition of deferred income tax assets and
income tax charges in the period in which such estimates
have been changed.

Useful lives and residual values of property, plant
and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives, residual values and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. It could
change significantly as a result of technical innovations and
competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different from previously estimated, or it will
write-off or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic
assets that have been abandoned.

4

(c)

(d)

FESTHEF R HE o)

PR RIRFER 1R
AEBEARER - T B RGrEMMRPT
B EETEHEHEGE  FEF
HERHAE - EEEEBBRREFR - F
DR M HITS R RRTIRERE
BEFEIEERR - AEBEREMG
EBBBNBEIINK - LB HIARE
REME - WZEETENKERIBE
BRRENARESE  ZEBSTE
1 E B R 0 B TR 18 BUR RE R IR
Y

EEEERRRAERRKERD G
A A AR S E I E R IR E R
B eRRBRETEREEER
MEBENREMSHEE - HMBEH
BHREASKIGET TR - MBRE
BT EARMFT IR ELTH
BREE RSB HAER

M BERRBHUERAFH
KFEREE
AEEEREETEYME  BFE MK
wAETAERFY  HNREEREH
FEEM - ZMEEH T ABLIEE kI
ENYE  BERRENERAER
FHBEEERAEE  WABEEARK
BIFT BT H T R BIRTTR A Y
EITENM AR E - WA EAFHE
RIRSER LA - RIEEESETINE
B ilEsORE EE MR8
R ol IESRER I B -

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ZiREM(IZR)ERA A



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company (the "“Executive
Directors”) are the Group's chief operating decision-makers.
Management has determined the operating segments based
on the information reviewed by the Executive Directors
for the purposes of allocating resources and assessing
performance.

The Executive Directors review the performance of the
Group mainly from the product perspective. The Group is
organised into four segments engaged in the manufacturing
and trading of:

() Brasand intimate wear;

(i) Bra pads and other molded products;
(i) Functional sports products; and

(iv)  Pandemic prevention products.

Pandemic prevention products (including fabric face masks,
disposable masks and protective clothing) is a new segment
determined by the Executive Directors as a result of the
outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19") during
the year ended 31 March 2021.

The Executive Directors assess the performance of the
operating segments based on a measure of gross profit
of each segment, which is consistent with that of the
financial statements. Finance income and finance costs are
not allocated to segments, as this type of activity is driven
by the central treasury function, which manages the cash
position of the Group. Other information, as noted below,
is also provided to the Executive Directors. The revenue
reported to the Executive Directors is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the consolidated income statement.
The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong.

FEwE2020/21

e R BRRME

7 ERE R

ARARTEE(RITEE]) BAE
EN T EHEAKE - ERBORE
ATEEROREBRIERBFE
B R T AR5 8 -

HITEFIZNEMARENARHE
KRR - AEES REEDE - #E
HEREE

()  MWEREFAK:

(i) MM H B ER
(i) TheelbEERER - &
(iv)  FRER -

HE2021F3A3NHILFE BHEE
m(BEMOE - —RENSRH#EK
M) BITE ZRIEE2019BRBSH
(201958 AR S |) MR TE KL B35

B e

HTEFREMBRRATOEDH
EMFEELE D AHRIR - AR ULE
ABHAEEEAEER AR T
RYTEEFIES) - UL I BEUA KBS
BRALESFREDE o T XA
o EtERTERETHITES -
APITEFTHRENMARASGSBS
REB BT AFE - RARMLR
BB o

ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 207



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5 SHER@
The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2021 are HE2021F3A31BIEFER DB XA
as follows: W

Bra pads
Bras and and other  Functional Pandemic
intimate molded sports  prevention
wear products products products Total

BExR IR b5
HERK HUEEBER - EDEER BRER A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ik BETT BRTR BT BB

Total segment revenue HEBIA
(Recognised at (RE-FEER)

a point in time) 3,968,123 567,711 788,840 649,616 5,974,290
Gross profit/segment results EF|,/ 5S4 835,405 128,315 136,829 137,404 1,237,953
Other income HgA 48,065
Distribution and selling SHERBEERY

expenses (139,494)
General and administrative  —# R/THES

expenses (630,903)
Research and development  H2$ A

costs (199,968)
Other operating expenses — E A4 5% (49,738)
Finance income BB 1,826
Finance costs BTERR AR (123,556)
Share of net profitofan  FRAEREAERER

associate accounted — B E DR

for using equity method 2515
Profit before income tax  BRFTSREATEF 146,700
Income tax expense FISHmEY (21,185)
Profit for the year FREF 125,515

Other segment item included in the consolidated income HIAEZE2021F3A831HIEFELAE
statement for the year ended 31 March 2021 is as follows: wmRWEMYFIERAT

Bra pads
Bras and and other  Functional Pandemic
intimate molded sports  prevention
wear products products products Total

BExR LIS -3
HERK HtEEBER - EDEER BRER A5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Vit R BB BT BB

Depreciation for property, 5t ASHERAREPE -

plant and equipment Bz RREAR
and right-of-use assets FREEENE
included in cost of sales 248,904 36,228 56,571 48,200 389,903
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 5

Depreciation for property, plant and equipment and right-
of-use assets of HK$389,903,000 (2020: HK$349,402,000)
has been charged in “cost of sales”, HK$134,992,000
(2020: HK$122,829,000) has been charged in “general
and administrative expenses” and HK$17,381,000 (2020:
HK$14,601,000) has been charged in “research and
development expenses” respectively.

The segment results for the year ended 31 March 2020 are
as follows:

e R BRRME

DEBER ()

ME - MENREAREREEEN
£ 5 1£389,903,000 7T (2020 4F : B
349,402,000 7T ) ~ 7 & 134,992,000 JT
(2020 £F : # #122,829,000 7T ) &
7 17,381,000 7C ( 2020 FF : B ¥
14,601,0007T) B 7 5l 5F AT $8 & B
R T—MEATERAS | R EH
F e

HZE2020F3A31BILFERN DI EE
o

Bra pads
Bras and and other  Functional
intimate molded sports
wear products products
& & HaMk & aelE
BREAK EtERER BIHEESD
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT FEEET T ABEET T
Total segment revenue DEREBUTA
(Recognised at a point in time)  (RXE—EEHER) 5,061,431 677,093 602,486 6,341,010
Gross profit/segment results EA/DEEE 1,183,845 144,221 112,665 1,440,731
Other income and other gains ~ E g A & E At iz 65,880
Distribution and selling expenses 78 & EEFH (164,533)
General and administrative —M MITHR X
expenses (664,527)
Research and development costs #ff 28 & (203,911)
Finance income BIHUA 2,281
Finance costs B ISR (162,819)
Profit before income tax K FTSH A A 313,102
Income tax expense FTERAY (23,149)
Profit for the year FERmA 289,953

Other segment item included in the consolidated income
statement for the year ended 31 March 2020 is as follows:

Bras and
intimate
wear

BH MK
HK$'000

BT

Depreciation for property, plant 5 ASHER AR -
and equipment and right-of-use  J&E RER#EIAR

assets included in cost of sales (FRAEEAERE 267,295

PIAEZE2020F3A31HILFELREE
HERMEMSEEBEENAT

Bra pads
and other
molded
products
KM &
HERER
HK$'000
BT

Functional
sports
products
Rt
EEEEM
HK$'000
BT

Total

ezt
HK$'000
BETT

46,781 35,326 349,402

FEwE2020/21
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 5

Revenue from external customers based on the destination
of the customers are as follows:

D ERE R ()

BIBES B A EISENBES I
T

2021 AOAN)

20215 20204F

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BT

United States = 2,753,532 2,895,464
The People’s Republic of China g A RHEFBE([HE )

("The PRC") 979,214 820,716
Europe BOM 737,399 745,060
Hong Kong BB 167,685 311,041
Japan B 573,585 753,398
Korea B2 90,307 101,904
South-east Asia (Note a) REgoe(f5Ta) 280,382 274,636
South Asia (Note b) m 2 (Mi7Eb) 47,461 93,064
Other countries/regions (Note c) EMmER R (Mic) 344,725 345,727

5,974,290 6,341,010

Note a: Includes Malaysia, Indonesia, Singapore, Philippines, Vietnam
and Thailand.

Note b: Includes Bangladesh, Sri Lanka and India.

Note c¢: Include Taiwan, Turkey, Australia, Colombia and others.

No analysis of segment assets or segment liabilities is
presented as they are not regularly provided to the Executive
Directors.

Non-current assets, other than deposits, deferred tax assets
and insurance policy investments, of the Group are located
in the following geographical areas:

fita: BHEJ/RAE - ENEREDE - 30
B JERE - BANRER -

Miztb - BEZINA - TEHRREE -

Miztc: BIEAE - THHE BN Fhis

Te Hotth o

MRYEEHANTESTRHEDLE
ESNBRENER  BALE2D
HEEI D HREHIN -

AEEWIFRBDEEBRES - BLEAT
BREERREREINCIIA T IR

B3 -

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T ST T

The PRC & 822,463 852,725
Hong Kong BE 60,050 53,180
Vietnam e 4,416,360 4,240,900
5,298,873 5,146,805

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA
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e R BRRME

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DEER )
An analysis of the Group’s major customers, each of which ZBEMAEE10% A EINEBURAR
accounts for 10% or more of the Group's external revenue, is AEEFEZELONWT ¢

as follows:

Customer Location Segments

EF g pik!

2021 2020
20215 20205

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BB

Customer A EFEA Japan = Bras and intimate wear,  WEREEHAK -

molded products BEER RN

and functional sports BYEER

products 971,416 1,427,842
Customer B ZFB United States ~ %H Bras and intimate wear B %85 & A&k 762,487 1,355,436

As a practical expedient, no disclosure was made for the
aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the
performance obligations that are unsatisfied (or partially
unsatisfied) as at 31 March 2021 (2020: Same), because
such performance obligations are part of contracts having an
original expected duration of one year or less.

OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS

EERERT  AREBEBHNETA
REEHRE —FRATEHOH—Z
D BR2021E3A31 B ER DR E
HAREIT(HE D M AREIT) BHEF
K32 BB BRBIE L TE (20204 « 48
@) o

H A e Bt U 58

2021 AOYA)
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BEET T PEHET T

Other income Hg A
Scrap sales income EEREMEEIRA 9,703 9,791
Government grants (Note) BB (M EE) 35,131 53,891
Others Hith 3,231 2,118
48,065 65,800

Other gains Hitb Uz

Gain on disposal of insurance policy HERBIREWR
investments - 80
48,065 65,880
Note: s -

The government grants obtained mainly represent technical innovation
subsidies from the PRC Government and salaries and wages subsidies
granted under the Anti-Epidemic Fund by the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region for the use of paying wages of
employees from June to November 2020. Under the terms of the salaries
and wages subsidies, the Group is required not to make redundancies
during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to
its employees. There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies
attaching to these grants.

FEwE2020/21

PR HB E2EFERFRRAIFE
B R BEBERITTHREBRFHEREESIE AT
BEBARE 202006 AE11 ARE T AN
S RIBWHE - BIEFSRITEMBIER - N
SETEREBEAREBBEAESAR
XHMEETIE - EGEZEHORBITIE
e EAhREE Y -
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EXPENSES BY NATURE

7

BUHEEINMAX

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Amortisation of intangible M EERE(MEE15)

assets (Note 15) 9,887 9,273
Auditor's remuneration ZEEB &

— Audit services —ZH AR 3,015 3,000

— Non-audit services — RS 1,145 1,132
Depreciation of property, plant and WE - BEMRETE

equipment (Note 13) (fF3E13) 446,881 401,035
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEE (FF14)

(Note 14) 95,395 85,797
Bank charges RITE A 3,068 3,534
Consumables FEM 199,862 210,093
Cost of inventories sold (Note 18) BEEFEMA(HIEE8) 2,140,905 2,166,269
Loss allowance of trade receivables 5N BR I8 EE

(Note 19) (FF5E19) 721 6,181
Donations B 716 1,801
Employee benefit expenses (Note 8)  (EEEFIBIS (MI3F8) 2,323,279 2,526,415
Restructuring costs (Note) E DN 49,738 -
Freight and transportation expenses BENERRAL 67,831 75,833
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, plant HEYZ - FE K&

and equipment, net BfEEE (W) T8 1,857 (641)
Gain on modification and disposal of BEENEEFRELE

right-of-use assets (Buildings) (EF) K= (1,622) (1,008)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets HEFAEEEHE +#E

(Leasehold land and land use rights) Tt A ) e (691) -
Expense relating to short-term leases AR HBEEMNH S

(Note 14) (Mf5E14) 10,034 18,817
Utilities AR 150,461 167,754
Others Hi 253,958 257,965
Total cost of sales, distribution and HEKA - DIERHEERS -

selling expenses, general and —MRITERBASZ R AR

administrative expenses, research LA R HL 45 vl S A8 8B

and development costs and other

operating expenses 5,756,440 5,933,250

Note:

The restructuring costs primarily include termination benefits of
approximately HK$40,098,000 (2020: Nil) paid to employees and write-off
of fixed assets of approximately HK$9,640,000 (2020: Nil) as a result of
the reallocation of human resources and production capacity between the
PRC and Vietnam for the year ended 31 March 2021 and are included in
"other operating expenses” in the consolidated income statement.

Mt -

BHERAEERESIN TRENRERESE
#4975 40,098,0007T (20204 « ) K EFEAE
i8R #9785 %5 9,640,000 7T (20204F : #&) » b))
AREE2021F3A31 B I FEHE M BER
EANERRELENOE - Wit AGREE
mR EmgEx] -

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ZiREM(IZR)ERA A
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(a)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)

8

e R BRRME

E)ﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁi(@%%%@ﬂ

2021
20214

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T & - %% - JE4T =R, 2,003,216 2,220,672

Retirement benefit costs — defined RIRRFIRRA — E R RGE S
contribution schemes (Note (a)) (FI5E(@)) 211,893 225,877
Staff welfare and benefits 8 TREH &FIZE 108,170 79,866
2,323,279 2,526,415

Retirement benefit costs — defined contribution
schemes

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to
join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group
and its employees make monthly contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees’ earnings as defined under
the Mandatory Provident Fund legislation. Both the Group’s
and the employees’ contributions were subject to a cap of
HK$1,500 on monthly basis and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

The Company's subsidiaries in the PRC and Vietnam are
members of the state-managed retirement benefits scheme
operated by the local governments. The Group contributes
a certain percentage of the salaries of the subsidiaries’
employees, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond the
annual contributions. The state-managed retirement plans
are responsible for the entire pension obligations payable to
the retired employees.

Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include five (2020: five) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in
Note 34.

(a)

(b)

FEwE2020/21

RAKBRIAR A — E RS

AEBELHEFERBSMBHIER
et ([eEetd])  BESA
ZAMBYXEAETENTERBHKE
g RiIpBBEETE - ARERERE
BEAEAREEAR(CERR&RHE
RIEEIED) 6% MaT EIFHHSK - &
SENEESENEARKLRRE
#1,6007 - BHZEFSEOHRAS
TEB MK -

ARRABRHE R BEOHE QRS E
B BT 2 E MBI RE IR RGN
WK E - AEBEIZMBARIERH
S —EBANLER  RFEEHRK
S - BB E IR S R R SR IRR
BHNABE—FEME - BFHEHERIK
AR EMERKEE X N2ARAKSE -

FEEESHALT
FRAEEREGRRHTALBERE
(2020 : AB)ESE - EFHBINME
4B DT R BR -
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FEMBRRMEE

9 FINANCE COSTS, NET 9 B AFERE
2021 AOAN)
20215 20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Finance income 0 TN
— interest income on bank deposits —RITIFRF B WA 1,761 2,281
— other interest income — HF S HA 65 -
____________ 1,826 2,281
Finance costs BT AR
— interest expense on bank borrowings — R TE T EFZ (100,393) (130,700)
— factoring interests and charges —(RIBF = & (17,311) (30,181)
—interest expense on lease liabilites  —fAE&EFEHY
(Note 14) (MfzE14) (8,282) (9,145)
— unwinding interest — [ F 8 (289) (5,994)
(126,275) (176,020)
Less: interest expenses capitalised B ABERBEEMNERNE
on qualifying assets (Note) LG ES) 2,719 13,201
______________________________________________________________ (123,556) (162,819)
Finance costs, net BTN AN 558 (121,730) (160,538)
Note: BI5E -
The capitalisation rate used to determine the amount of borrowing costs FEEER TERMERRARENEACE
to be capitalised is the weighted average interest rate applicable to the AFRAREEERERNINELSNE - AT
Group's borrowings during the year, which is 2.1% per annum (2020: %2.1%(2020%F : 4.0%) °
4.0%).

214 REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA
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10 SUBSIDIARIES

10

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries as at 31

March 2021:

Registered
capital/issued
and fully paid

share capital

Place of
incorporation and
kind of legal entity

AR S 3t B R
ERERRE

fEs
ERTRAZRE

e R BRRME

B S 2 =

TRAN2021F3A3THNEBHBEA
Ej :

Effective
interest
held (%)

s
BRER
(B2L)

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEXBREELY

Directly held by the Company

AAREERE

Regina Miracle International
(Holdings) Limited

HURBIR(ER)BERRA

Indirectly held by the Company

ARARBEEE

Regina Miracle International
(Group) Limited

HURER(RE)ERRA

Regina Miracle International
Limited
Y RBEIR AR DT

Honour First (Hong Kong)
Limited
EH(EB)ERAT

Regina Miracle Intimate Apparel
(Shenzhen) Co., Limited
BRAZEARORYINERAF

British Virgin Islands, US$100
limited liability 100X
company

RBERUES
BREART

Hong Kong, limited HK$5,000,000
liability company 75 #£5,000,0007C

BH  BREAAH

Hong Kong, limited HK$100
liability company BE1007T

BH  BREAAH

Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000
liability company ##10,0007T

% BREEAH

The PRC, limited liability ~ HK$300,000,000
company #%%300,000,0007T

FE - BREEAT

FE#wE2020/21

100%  Investment holding in the
100% British Virgin Islands
REBRIZHESETREER
100%  Trading of brassieres and
100% panties, and functional
sports products in
Hong Kong
REBEENERAE
PARIheE BB EE R
100%  Trading of bra pads and
100% other molded products
in Hong Kong
REEBE BRI R
HinEEE R
100%  Provision of sales agency
100% and information
technology services
in Hong Kong
REBREHERER
1= BRI AR
100%  Manufacturing of brassieres
100% and panties, and

functional sports products
in the PRC

R E I E & A
PARIhgE BB EE R
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10 SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 10

Registered
capital/issued
and fully paid

share capital

Place of
incorporation and

kind of legal entity

B B A Bl ()

Effective
interest

held (%)
s

B ED

(Bot)

Principal activities and
place of operation

TEEBREBHH

Regina Miracle (Shenzhen)
Limited
BORNRORINBERRA

Shenzhen Regina Miracle

Medical Technology Co., Ltd.

R MED REFREARRF

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited
HL R (B )BRAR

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Limited
HL R (B )BRAR

Regina Miracle International
(Vietnam) Co., Ltd.

Regina Miracle International
Hung Yen Co., Ltd.

Regina Miracle Management
Limited
BV R EBERAT

216

SRR L it B R HEfEx,

AERERER ERTRAZRE

The PRC, limited liability HK$20,000,000
company #120,000,0007T

FE - AREEAT

The PRC, limited liability HK$10,660,500
company 7#110,660,5007T

FE - AREEAR

British Virgin Islands, US$1
limited liability (E
company

HEBRLHES -
BREERHE

Hong Kong, limited HK$10,000
liability company ##10,0007T

FE  AREERA

US$828,930,105
828,930,105% 7T

Vietnam, limited liability
company
e AREEAR

US$58,810,190
58,810,190% 7T

Vietnam, limited liability
company
- AREEAR

HK$1
BEIT

Hong Kong, limited
liability company
E# BREERAH

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #¥ZiREM(IZR)ERA A

Manufacturing of bra
pads and other molded
products in the PRC

Berh B A EE AR I
HiEEER

Manufacturing of pandemic
prevention products
in the PRC

Beeh B A FE T R

Investment holding
in the British Virgin Islands
REBRIHSETIREER

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETRERR

Manufacturing of brassieres
and panties, bra pads, and
functional sports products
in Vietnam

R EEE & AE
kIt E R S E R

Manufacturing of semi-
finished goods in Vietnam

Investment holding
in Hong Kong
REBETRERR
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

For the years ended 31 March 2020 and 2021, the Group
is eligible to nominate one Hong Kong incorporated entity
in the Group to be chargeable at the two tiered profits
tax rates, whereby profits tax will be chargeable on the
first HK$2 million of assessable profits at 8.25% and
assessable profits above this threshold will be subject to a
rate of 16.5%. Hong Kong profits tax for other Hong Kong
incorporated entities in the Group has been provided for at
the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits.

The applicable tax rate for the PRC subsidiaries of the Group
is 25% (2020: 25%) for the year ended 31 March 2021.

According to a policy promulgated by the State Tax Bureau
of the PRC and effective from 2008 onwards, enterprises
engaged in research and development activities are entitled
to claim ranging from 150% to 175% of the research
and development expenses so incurred in a period as tax
deductible expenses in determining its tax assessable
profits for that period (“Super Deduction”). Certain PRC
subsidiaries have applied such Super Deduction during the
year.

The subsidiaries established and operated in Vietnam were
subject to corporate income tax at a rate of 20% (2020:
20%). In accordance with the applicable tax regulations,
preferential tax rates and tax holidays will be granted to new
investment projects based on regulated encouraged sectors,
encouraged locations, and size of the projects.

Regina Miracle International (Vietnam) Co., Ltd. is subject
to a lower tax rate of 10% for fifteen consecutive years,
commencing from the first year of making revenue. In
addition, the subsidiary is entitled to full exemption from
corporate income tax for the first four years from the earlier
of (i) the year when profit is generated for the first time or
(ii) the fourth year of making revenue; and a 50% reduction
in corporate income tax for the next nine years, which is
offered by the Vietnam Government and is stipulated in the
subsidiary’s investment license. The first year of this tax
reduction period commenced in the financial year ended 31
March 2018.

Regina Miracle International Hung Yen Co., Ltd. is entitled
to full exemption from corporate income tax for the first two
years from the earlier of (i) the year when profit is generated
for the first time or (ii) the fourth year of making revenue;
and a 50% reduction in corporate income tax for the next
four years, which is offered by the Vietham Government
and is stipulated in the subsidiary’s investment license. The
first year of this tax reduction period will commence in the
financial year ended 31 March 2022.

FEwE2020/21

e R BRRME

11 FIEHRAX

HE2020F K 20213 A31HILE
B AEEAREAEEAEF—FH
BB AL B B R F 15 B0 /A I
B MEAK 288 THERD R
JEIR8.25% M KBS FIBH - BiBZ
IR FE ER B v ) i 42 16.5 % Bt K 4
e REBREMBEAZMA L B
BB B FIS T A 51 FE SR B s R 3%
16.5% B EEHR R o

HE2021F3A3THILFE @ £&H
FEMBARMERR X A%
(2020%F : 25%) °

R 1% B B SR R 75 42 B P 4B 46 B 2008
FHEARN AR REWEED
1> 3 75 #E 7E 7B E HARE B SR WA BB
Bz R EENHERSI N T150% 2
175% %8 B e AR AR IR S ([
B ]) - EFTHEMMBARERF
R FARZ B RE RN ©

PR E AWM B A R ZEE20%
(20204 : 20% ) WIFL RGN EFRTS
oo BBEABEER  EERER
EUHBREZRES@MITE &
B[ I8 B RE MR THIREER -

HZREE (B BRARAEER
ABFREETAFREEHEEI10%
B o ESN - BOES R EFR)E
HWARFEINFE(RBEEE B
BUOER > ZHBRAREEZERE
BMOERERH  UREBNLFERE
BEE0% EMBRBSE - ZEEBX
HRBEBRAST  WRZHE QR
REFAENGTR - BB E—FH
HE2018F3A31H LB FEFLA °

BOESMNEFHEERASET
F(UARFEERE)REME - Regina
Miracle International Hung Yen Co.,
Lid. B HARBMDEMEN - K
BINFRNFEBL0%EMBRIBE
ZEEVREHEEBNGE T WHRZ
B ARIMIRERT A& NET8A o FH
HE —Fi5NE E£2022F3A31 A LEA
BFERE
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INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 11

The amount of taxation charged to the consolidated income
statement represents:

Pyt )

ERGaEmRxT RO HIBSEN
T

2021
20214

2020
20204
HK$'000
PSR T T

HK$'000
BET T

Current income tax BUERFTIS &
- Hong Kong profits tax —HBNEE 5,138 14,748
- PRC enterprise income tax — B EATER 11,531 15,941
(Over)/under-provision in prior years RIBEEE (BERE)
BETR (3,272) 91
Deferred income tax (Note 25) EEFTB R (MI5E25) 7,788 (7,631)
Income tax expense s it 21,185 23,149

The taxation on the Group's profit before income tax differs
from the theoretical amount that would arise using the
weighted average tax rate applicable to profits of the group

companies as follows:

762 B B P A 75% A ) B 0 7R B 5K R
318 7 6 B 2 R N O AN S 3G B R
BHHERERNZRENT

2021
20214

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT I

HK$'000
BET T

Profit before income tax % Fr {5 %54 Al % ) 146,700 313,102
Tax calculated at domestic tax @ AR AR
rate applicable to profits i M B A A R
in respective jurisdictions FTEMTIE 11,031 27,648
Tax effects of: MBE
Income not subject to tax AR A (4,373) (507)
Super Deduction FREBIKN (21,253) (22,178)
Expenses not deductible for G ol
taxation purpose 30,350 22,429
Utilisation of previously SR AR BIEEE
unrecognised tax losses - (4,334)
Tax losses for which no deferred WEERRELEAMSHEEN
income tax asset was recognised TIEER 9,117 -
Tax effect of share of profit of o ih—EEE R R R 8
an associate s e (415) -
(Over)/under-provision in prior years RIBAFE (BERE),
BETE (3,272) 91
Income tax expense PSR X 21,185 23,149

The weighted average applicable tax rate for the year ended
31 March 2021 was 7.5% (2020: 8.8%). The decrease is
primarily due to change in the profitability of the Group's
subsidiaries in Vietnam which are entitled to preferential tax
rate.

HZE2021F3A31HIFE - NEFH
HMAMERET5% (20204 : 8.8%) °
ZREETEHRAEEATZEERRE
mLE KT B A R A FIEE H B BIFTEL -

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA
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(a)

(b)

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e R BRRME

EARNINGS PER SHARE 12 BRER
Basic (a) EZFR
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit EREAXRBFIZARRBEAR ARG
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted TR AF AR BT @A INEF S8
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year. 5HE -
2021 2020
20214 20204
Profit attributable to owners of RAEER NER T
the Company (HK$'000) (B¥FT) 125,515 289,953
Weighted average number of BETT AR INE TS
ordinary shares in issue (‘000) (F8) 1,224,250 1,224,250
Basic earnings per share GRERZAF
(expressed in HK cents per share) (AZRAEWLR) 10.3 23.7
Diluted (b) #8

Diluted earnings per share for the years ended 31 March
2021 and 2020 are the same as the basic earnings per share
as there were no potentially dilutive ordinary shares issued.

FEwE2020/21

HE2021F K2020FE3 A31 B 1L &
B BRI ERTEEESTER
BRI SR ENGRELRF -
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13 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

220

13

Leasehold Plantand ~Office furniture  Computer Motor  Construction
Buildings improvements  machinery  andfixtures  equipment vehicles i progress Total
L BER  H0BAR
g7 R BE ke Bl it kRIR it
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETT AT AT AT AT AT T AETT
Asat 1 April 2019 201954818
Cost Bk w200 1637208 1958831 5300 169,861 3119 B3 5821949
Accumulated depreciation ZifE 83801) (534,615) (732815) (167,864) 106633 (22,166) - (1,647,894
Net book amount ERFE 858,339 1,102,613 1,226,016 177456 63228 15,026 3130 4,174,055
Year ended 31 March 2020 EENNEIANALER
Opening net book amount EEARE 88339 1102613 1206016 177456 63,228 15,026 BT 417408
Additions Mg 91,028 162444 338,609 69,182 39,55 2850 260,45 953,913
Disposals it - - (1,502 [64) (108) (66) - (1,740
Transfer-nflout] #1/(1) 37,1% 169379 1,929 8974 17127 - (568,605) -
Depreciation HE (49,009) (117,465) (132,433) (63.480) (33,716) 493 - (401,035)
Currency translation differences ~ EXHhEZE (24243 (31,830) [42,151) {447 (1,980 (267) (8838) (113,780)
Closing net book amount EXERE 1247311 127514 1,390,468 187597 84,106 12611 44179 4611413
Year ended 31 March 2021 BEANEIRNALER
Opening net book amount EEETE 147311 1275141 1,390,468 187,597 84,106 12611 4179 461413
Addtions RE 98,354 102,026 110,225 21,02 12571 1,758 133,306 485,448
DisposalsWrte-off HE /i - (9,609) (3.937) (58) (249) - = (13853)
Transferinlout BM/(1) 121920 133413 1419 18830 3,988 - (95m0) -
Depreciation i (59,322) (135,862) (139,586) (72,258) (35,363) (4490 - (446,881)
Currency translation ifferences ~ §%%EzE (97) 16473 2728 746 43 n (120) 36,354
Closing net book amount EREETE 1,407,276 1,381,582 1380317 162,059 65,502 9,950 267,19 4,674,481
As at 31 March 2021 R0NEIR3NA
Cost s 159752 2161759 2310582 462,090 233,505 41102 %77% 7074358
Accumulated depreciation ZifnE (190,249) (780.177) (930,265) (300,031) (168,003) (31.152) - (239987
Net book amount ERFE 1407216 1381582 1380317 162,09 66,502 9,950 %779 4674481

Depreciation expense charged in consolidated income
statement is as follows:

REFBRERTROFTEFRSMT

2021
20214

HK$'000
BT T

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT T

Cost of sales SHER A 327,076 291,263
General and administrative expenses — MR MITE R 113,811 104,060
Research and development costs B AR AS 5,994 5,712

446,881 401,035
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

14 LEASES 14 #HE
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (i) NGEEEEEBREANSE
sheet

Right-of-use assets RAREE

Leasehold
land and
land use

rights

HELHER

T it fE e #st
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BET T

Total

Buildings Equipment

B2y B3]
HK$’'000 HK$°000
BT BT

Year ended 31 March 2020 22020538318
LFE
Opening net book amount EIEERE - - - -

Adjustments for changes in

R BR D

accounting policies 186,900 - 252,289 439,189
Restated net book amount as at 201948 1HE
1 April 2019 5B E 186,900 - 252,289 439,189
Additions NE 10,456 - 111,706 122,162
Disposals He& (2,978) - - (2,978)
Depreciation (Note 7) e (iz7) (77,426) - (8,371) (85,797)
Currency translation differences (s T 1,338 - (7,324) (5,986)
Closing net book amount FARREFE 118,290 - 348,300 466,590
As at 31 March 2020 #2020F3H31H
Cost A 242,388 - 378710 619,098
Accumulated depreciation 2:E (124,098) - (28,410) (152,508)
Net book amount BREEE 118,290 - 348,300 466,590
Year ended 31 March 2021 HZ2021%3A831H
LHEE

Opening net book amount FYRMFE 118,290 - 348,300 466,590
Additions NE 80,889 13,699 20,267 114,855
Disposals HE (149) = (30,342)  (30,491)
Depreciation (Note 7) e (86,442) (304) (8,649)  (95,395)
Modification of lease HERE 34 - - 34
Currency translation differences EthE =48 6,733 (11) 790 7,512
Closing net book amount FREEMEFE 119,355 13,384 330,366 463,105
As at 31 March 2021 ®2021%3H31A8
Cost PR 331,830 13,688 367,005 712,523
Accumulated depreciation 2:HE (212,475) (304) (36,639) (249,418)
Net book amount REFE 119,355 13,384 330,366 463,105
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

14 LEASES (Continued) 14 HE @)

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance (i) REEEEEBEBREANSE
sheet (Continued) (%)
Right-of-use assets (Continued) EELE(E)
Depreciation expense of HK$62,827,000 (2020: P E R S B 162,827,0007T (20204 -
HK$58,139,000) has been charged in ‘cost of sales’, 75#858,139,0007T) * /&%21,181,0007T
HK$21,181,000 (2020: HK$18,769,000) in ‘general and (20204 : #%18,769,0007T ) K 7 ¥
administrative expenses’ and HK$11,387,000 (2020: 11,387,0007T.(20204F : /&#8,889,0007T)
HK$8,889,000) in ‘research and development expenses’, EPREMEERA] - [ —REITHA
respectively. S R[EERS IR -
Lease liabilities HESE

As at As at
31 March 2021 31 March 2020

1202143 H318 72020638318

HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Non-current IERE
— Buildings — g5 65,271 63,129
— Equipment — &1 12,894 -
78165 | 63,129
Current B
— Buildings —EF 64,273 69,542
— Equipment — % 706 -
— Leasehold land and land use rights — TR E £ 3h &+ Hb(F A4 3,619 30,159
68598 ! 99,701
146,763 162,830
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

14 LEASES (Continued) 14 HE )
(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income (i) NZEBEZRBIANSE
statement:
Year ended
31 March 2021 31 March 2020
BZLUTHHILEE
202143 A31H 202043 HF31H
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
FaE BT T BT T
Depreciation charge of FREEE
right-of-use assets ERX
Buildings EF 86,442 77,426
Equipment B 304 =
Leasehold land and land use rights  FA& +th &z + it s F4E 8,649 8,371
7 95,395 85,797
Interest expense FEMAX
(included in finance costs) (GFABFTIERA) 9 8,282 9,145
Expense relating to short-term leases 242 B EH MR < 7 10,034 18,817
18,316 27,962
During the year ended 31 March 2021, the total cash outflow HZE2021F3A31ALFE - EHHEE
for leases were HK$102,800,000 (2020: HK$92,622,000). HIR & 7 H 4258 &7 #5102,800,0007T

(20204F : #%92,622,0007T) °

(iii) The Group's leasing activities and how these are (iii) XEENHEHEFHIRAARIRN
accounted for

The Group leases various offices, factories, equipment TEEHEETHLE  BWFE - &E
and staff quarters. Rental contracts are typically made in REIES  HESH—MRBEHEE
accordance to the lease terms. ERRET AL ©

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and FAEBRFIRERIEREITER (&5
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The BLEE B TR o & I
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than ERRE  HEEBEARBEEERE
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by EIRIRERIRSN - BHERME - HE
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for BEMSAERERR

borrowing purposes.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

15 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 15 BREEE
Computer
software
B
HK$'000
T
As at 1 April 2019 7R20195F4H18
Cost FRAR 91,547
Accumulated amortisation REH#E (41,877
49,670
Year ended 31 March 2020 BE2020F3A31BLFE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 49,670
Additions INE 8,662
Amortisation (Note 7) B (M3E7) (9,273)
Currency translation differences BERBREERS (1,026)
Closing net book amount FAREmFE 47,923
As at 31 March 2020 7A202063H31H
Cost AR 98,427
Accumulated amortisation S i (50,504)
47,923
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE2021F3A31HLEE
Opening net book amount FHREFE 47,923
Additions RE 4,467
Amortisation (Note 7) B (MEE7) (9.887)
Currency translation differences BB E 2 1,160
Closing net book amount FAREmIFE 43,663
As at 31 March 2021 202163 A31H
Cost (BN 105,010
Accumulated amortisation RETEEY (61,347)
43,663
Amortisation of intangible assets is included in general ML AEHBHET  AGEERRN—R
and administrative expenses in the consolidated income RATHR °
statement.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

INSURANCE POLICY INVESTMENTS

16 RERE

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Insurance policy investments REEIZE 190,359 130,110
Movement of the insurance policy investments is as follows: RERENESHNT :

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

As at 1 April ®4A1H8 130,110 76,130

Additions NE 51,872 49,046

Disposals k= - (606)
Fair value gain recognised to other REM IR AFERR

comprehensive income N AW 8,377 5,540

As at 31 March M3A31H 190,359 130,110

As at 31 March 2021 and 2020, the carrying amounts
of the insurance policy investments represented the
cash surrender value of the insurance policies which
approximates their fair values (Note 3.2).

The insurance policy investments are denominated in the
following currencies:

720214 220203 A31H - (REK

BEREEEEEATE(NE3.2)EE

HRRIAEEE

REREATINEHIE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

US$ ETT 132,039 83,395
HK$ ot 58,320 46,715
190,359 130,110

FEwE2020/21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

17 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

Share of net assets

B EFE

17

R—EBERATANRKRE

2021
20215

2020
20204
HK$’000 HK$'000
BETT BETIT

11,715 -

The movements of share of net assets during the year are as
follows:

FAREEEFEZSHOT

2021 2020

20215 20204F

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT IT

As at 1 April R4A1H = -
Addition NE 11,500 -
Share of net profit of an associate FE(E — = R EAEF 2,515 -
Capital reduction B D (2,300) -
As at 31 March M3A31H 11,715 -

On 13 May 2021, Regina Miracle Management Limited, a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company invested in 23%
equity interest of Harmony Pharmacare Limited for a cash
consideration of HK$11,500,000. As a consequence, the
Group gained significant influence over this investment and
the investment was classified as an associate of the Group.

Harmony Pharmacare Limited is primarily engaged in
manufacturing, distribution and sale of protective equipment
in Hong Kong.

18 INVENTORIES

18

M2021F5H138 - AARNEEWEB
REEPRERERARMUESRE
75 111,500,000 TR EEHFIB R A
AIM23% A% HE - FE L - NEEEZIE
BHEERFEN  MERECESE
BREEMEE AR

BRENBERAARTIENTERLER
& D RHETERRER

7K

2021 2020

20215

HK$'000
BT T

2020%F
HK$'000
BT

Raw materials R #E 532,031 426,669
Work-in-progress TR 491,487 390,577
Finished goods SURK an 225,001 282,207

1,248,519 1,099,453
Less: provision for impairment W BB (2,890) (2,848)
Inventories, net FEF58E 1,245,629 1,096,605

The costs of raw materials recognised as expense and
included in cost of sales amounted to approximately
HK$2,140,905,000 for the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020:
HK$2,166,269,000).

226

HE2021F3A3TMHILFE @ FERE
EERIIR N - NN R R S YN
%49 5% 42,140,905,000 7T ( 2020 4F
52 166,269,0007T) ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES 19

e R BRRME

B 5 BWAR

2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Trade receivables 2 Z AR
— carried at amortised cost — 37 SE A AR T BR 849,577 319,251
— carried at FVOCI — R AEEEA
E2mb LR 253,789 409,268
1,103,366 728,519
Less: loss allowance of trade B B SRR ESIEEHE
receivables (10,344) (9,623)
1,093,022 718,896

The carrying amounts of trade receivables approximate their
fair values.
(a) (a)

As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of gross trade
receivables based on invoice date were as follows:

SRR REEEE A FER

o

|
3

MIA31A - EHREMRFARRER
BHIEHERRRE DT T

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

0-30 days 0%30H 547,475 266,942
31-60 days 31%Z60H 207,115 261,554
61-90 days 61%290H 209,278 107,612
Over 90 days BiE90H 139,498 92,411
1,103,366 728,519

The credit period granted by the Group is generally 30 to
120 days. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

FEwE2020/21
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

19 TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

(b) As at 31 March, the carrying amounts of gross trade
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

19 EFEWERER®

(b)

M3A31A - BRI EENRE
BATIIEEE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T BT

US$ E 964,885 640,294
HK$ ok 4,503 6,883
RMB AR 133,978 81,342
1,103,366 728,519

(c) As at 31 March 2021, included in the Group's trade
receivables were amounts due from related parties of
approximately HK$8,272,000 (2020: HK$3,090,000) (Note
31(c)).

(d) Impairment and risk exposure
The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note 3.1
provides details for the calculation of the expected credit
loss and credit risk exposure.

Movements in the Group’s provision for impairment loss
allowance for trade receivables as at 31 March 2021 and 31
March 2020 as follows:

(c)

(d)

202138318 @ EFt AKREEH
B EWER BB EE S FIELY
7 8,272,000 7T (2020 FF : B
3,090,0007T) (FF7E31(c)) ©

R AE K L B
AEEERABEEMBREEAEIR
LA ERMEERR - EifA
B 5 RURE BB TR E R
o M3 1 R AR ERMEER
BREERBRNFS -

202193 31 H 20203 A31 A A
EETIRE 5 EURER A R E S 18 5
EEHIT

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

BET T BT T

As at 1 April RA4A1H 9,623 3,442
Increase in loss allowance recognised  F RN IBAERREIE

in profit or loss during the year BN 721 6,181

As at 31 March M3A31H 10,344 9,623
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

20 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER 20 & FBAARERHEME
RECEIVABLES W FRIE
2021 2020
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Non-current portion kKRBT D
Rental, utilities and other deposits e DPERBREMIZS 5,346 5,591
Prepayments for purchase of property, BEEWE - HENERED
plant and equipment TEfTFRIA 87,733 20,219
Prepayments for right-of-use assets FREEE(HEL K
(leasehold land and land use rights) b R ) TR FRIE 16,495 =
Other prepayments H A I 308 1,681 660
111,255 26,470
Current portion TRENER D
Rental, utilities and other deposits e DARBAHEMIZS 4,909 3,282
Prepayment for materials MR B RE 11,733 17,216
Other prepayments E M B RIE 15,779 10,887
Other receivables H b fEUMGRIE 15,694 11,656
e eeeeeeeeiieieieeeeeeeeeeeneeee e 48115 . 43,041
159,370 69,511
The carrying amounts of deposits and other receivables ReEREMERSIBHEDEREEA
approximate their fair values. FERE -
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables do not contain e -~ FET A K E b e Uk ZOE A A~
impaired assets. BEBREEE °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

20

21
(a)

230

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date
is the carrying value of each class of receivable mentioned
above. The Group does not hold collateral as security.

The carrying amounts of deposits, prepayment and other
receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

20 Be - AAREAREME

U FRIE ()

RiE AHARENRREERR S
EXREROZERKFAENERE
REEN EFE PR IERIER -

B BNFRREAMERSORR R
EENA TSR E

2021 2020
20214 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T FEEETIT
US$ E 132 16,417
HK$ ki 36,055 28,044
RMB AR 89,436 15,813
VND WEE 33,747 9,237
159,370 69,511

CASH AND BANK BALANCES 21 BERBITER

Cash and cash equivalents

(a) RERREEEY

2021
20214

HK$'000
BT

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT I

Cash at bank RITHRS 827,308 586,696
Cash on hand FHERE 672 920
Cash and cash equivalents HeRESZED 827,980 587,616

Note:

Cash and cash equivalents of HK$218,939,000 (2020: HK$175,021,000)
and HK$46,633,000 (2020: HK$89,256,000) are held in the PRC and
Vietnam, respectively as at 31 March 2021. They are subject to local
exchange control regulations, which provide for restrictions on remitting
capital from the country concerned, other than through normal dividends.

ML -

R e MRS S EYB%218,939,0007T (20204 :
7 % 175,021,000 7T ) & /& % 46,633,000 7T
(20204 : j81£89,2566,0007T) 7 Bl 202143 A
NARFBIRBEREE - ZEREH X E N
EEFIEOIRE - ZEEINEEHHEFIRE
HEBRERELESHNRG - MIHBBIEE
DELHEITIRH] o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES (continued) 21 RERBITHEER @
(b) Restricted bank deposits (b) ZPRHIBITHER
As at 31 March 2021, restricted deposits of HK$6,906,000 R2021F3A318 - RIBTTHE X R
(2020: Nil) are held at bank as cash collateral for the FFUE#6,906,0007T(20204F + Z){E
purchase of certain property, plant and equipment. EREETYVE BMEMERENIRS
G e
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and restricted bank REBHBE S RRSEEBYURZR
deposits are denominated in the following currencies: FISRITERA T Y EHEHE -
2021 AOVA)
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT
RMB AR 224,393 175,220
HK$ S 145,433 204,575
US$ ET 414,787 176,463
VND A 42,816 31,143
EUR BL T 7,451 190
Others Hib 6 25
834,886 587,616
22 SHARE CAPITAL 22 A
Number of
shares  Share capital
REEE [
(thousands) HK$'000
(F5) BETT
Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares at US$0.01 each FAXE{EO.01 3= TR LA
As at 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 R2019%F481H « 20204 K&
and 2021 20213 A31H 50,000,000 3,875,000
Issued and fully paid: BERTRAR
Ordinary shares at US$0.01 each ERRE(EO.01F TR L RA
As at 1 April 2019, 31 March 2020 20194818 + 20205 &
and 2021 20213 H31H 1,224,250 95,247
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e RBRRME

23

232

RESERVES

Share
premium

B
HK$'000
T

Statutory
surplus
reserve

(Note)

23 f#fE

Trade
receivables
at Fvocl
reserve
BAYE
AL
2ERAK
BaEN
BHRE
HK$'000
BRI

Insurance
policy
investments
reserve

Exchange
reserve

HERE
HK$'000
BETT

Retained
earnings

REEA
HK$'000
BT

As at 1 April 2019 as originally 20194718
presented (B%273) 1,705,969 64,986 (1,146) 1,719 (100,625 1,158,023 2,828,926
Change in accounting policy SHIRES (BENE
(HKFRS 16) FERAZ16%) - - - - R
As at 1 April 2019 as restated R2019%4 718 (RE5) 1,705,969 64,986 (1,146) 1,719 (100,625 1,155,187 2,826,090
Profit for the year EREHl - - - - - 289953 289,953
Currency translation differences EiaEEE - - - - (203332) - (208332
Fair value gain on insurance policy ~ REREH AT A
investments - - - 5540 - - 5540
Fair value change on trade receivables %A TEEAEMZENA
carried at FVOCI SRR AENENN
LTELE - - e - - - e
Reclassification of trade receivables at R\t E4BRATE AEH
FVOCI reserve to factoring interests — 2EWARIE BEUNER
and charges upon disposals BRETIBERENER
ER - - 30,181 - - - 30,181
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTLTRE - 8,982 - - - (8,982) -
Dividends k& - - - - - 95,492) (95,492)
As at 31 March 2020 R2020£3A31R 1,705,969 73,968 (1,157) 1259 (303957) 1,340,666 2,822,748
Profit for the year EREH = = = = - 125515 125515
Currency translation differences BRHEEE - - - - 66,633 - 66,633
Fair value gain on insurance policy ~ REAEH AT A
investments - - - 831 = = 8377
Fair value change on trade receivables  RAF(EHAERZENA
carried at FVOCI SRR AWM
NIEEE - - (16,506) - = = (16,506)
Reclassification of trade receivables at R HEEEIRATE AL
FVOC reserve to factoring interests ~ 2EWASE S EKES
and charges upon disposals BRENIEZRENSR
R - - 17,311 - - - 1731
Transfer to statutory reserve ERTITRE - 6,067 - - - (6,067) -
Dividends ke - - - - - (48970)  (48970)
As at 31 March 2021 R2021538318 1,705,969 80,035 (352) 15,636 (237,324) 1411144 2,975,108
Note: B 5T

The balance mainly represents statutory surplus reserve. In accordance
with articles of association of certain subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC,
the subsidiaries are required to transfer 10% of the profit after taxation
prepared in accordance with PRC accounting standards to the statutory
reserve until the balance reaches 50% of the registered share capital.
Such reserve can be used to reduce any losses incurred and to increase

share capital.

EHRERIEETBHRFEHE o RENHBEEMAK
SMEETHBARMAMEZMA - MELRR
ARBH B & ERR AR EM10% 8
BEXTERHE  BEEEHETIMBRAN50% 5
b - ZEEARIERDERRMEENEERRA

VASE AR o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 BORROWINGS

e R BRRME

24 &

2021
20214

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Bank borrowings RITER
Non-current IEREH 3,192,407 2,852,437
Current binE2)] 1,176,484 737,568
4,368,891 3,590,005
Borrowings are analysed as follows: BERITT -

2021
20214

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

Non-current FEE)
Portion of term loans due for M E2F R HEENTHER
repayment between 1 and 2 years 2B 2,173,492 1,762,405
Portion of term loans due for R2EbF R HEENTHER
repayment between 2 and 5 years 2B 971,880 1,066,680
Portion of term loans due for SEEEIEEENTEHERL Y
repayment over 5 years 47,035 23,352
3,192,407 2,852,437
Current JE.
Portion of term loans due for M FERNTEEENTHER
repayment within 1 year S 645,001 419,411
Short-term bank loans EERITER 531,483 318,157
________________________________________________________________________________ 1176484 737,568
4,368,891 3,590,005

As at 31 March 2021, bank borrowing of HK$64,266,000
(2020: HK$31,594,000) were secured by the Group's certain
insurance policy investments of HK$66,724,000 (2020:
HK$30,900,000). Other bank borrowings were secured by
corporate guarantees given by the Company and certain
subsidiaries of the Company.

As at 31 March 2021, total undrawn trade and term loan
facilities amounted to approximately HK$2,390,910,000
(2020: HK$2,371,090,000) and HK$222,000 (2020:
HK$200,000,000), respectively.

FEwE2020/21

2021 £33 831 H » BITHE K
7 ¥ 64,266,000 7T ( 2020 4
785 % 31,694,0007T ) AAEEH TR
% & B 166,724,000 7T (2020 FF
75#30,900,0007T ) {EIIF - H A IRFT
BERARARREARARETHEAR
LA A RIER R -

MN2021 38318 » RAIEWME 5
LEHERBRERES RN RS
& 2,390,910,000 7T ( 2020 5 : & #&
2,371,090,000 7T ) K & % 222,000 7T
(20204 : ##200,000,0007T) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

24

25

234

BORROWINGS (Continued)

The carrying amounts of bank borrowings are denominated
in the following currencies:

24

&R ()

RITEFNREERATERE

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

BEET T BT T

HKS ok 3,921,325 3,327,965
us$ T 447,566 262,040
4,368,891 3,590,005

As at 31 March 2021, the Group's borrowings bore floating
rates and the effective interest rate per annum was 2.1%
(2020: 3.9%).

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The net movement on the deferred income tax assets/
(liabilities) is as follows:

25

MR2021FE3A318 - REEWE IR
FEFEFE  MEBERFENER2.1%
(2020%F : 3.9%)

IR FTS B

BEFBHERE /(BB ZFFHEN
T

2021 AOYA)
20214 20204F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
At beginning of the year REF] 2,309 (5,927)
Adjustment on adoption of HKFRS 16 RGBS 15 E 2L
F169 R TR = 782
(Charged)/credited to the consolidated  (¥18), st A& EA Bz E
income statement (Note 11) (PfF&ET1) (7,788) 7,631
Currency translation differences BEmEEE 613 (177
At end of the year RERXR (4,866) 2,309
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current income
tax recoverable against current income tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority on either
the taxable entity or different taxable entities where there is
an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. The offset
amounts are as follows:

e R BRRME

25 EIEFTEH (9

BB ATE A ORI EATTHE N A AT U 1= BD
S RENAMSHABEERE
ELFMEHREERABEAR—HBH
PARZERVERITRERNEE
B ERERAEBEBEIRT
BEELEHERE  UREETHE
HMEERAIE - HHESBWT ¢

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$°000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

Deferred income tax assets LRSI EE 17,296 6,348

Deferred income tax liabilities BEEMBHAs (22,162) (4,039)
Deferred income tax (liabilities)/assets, IEIEFTSH(BE) BEFEE

net (4,866) 2,309

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are to be settled
after more than 12 months.

The movements in gross deferred income tax assets and
liabilities during the year without taking into consideration
of the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction
are as follows:

Deferred income tax liabilities:

BERFAEREERBEREE12(EA
BIER -

FABREMSHEERABREN

B 5 (WA RNE—HREEDERRA
AR T

A 18 B0

Accelerated tax
depreciation

DR B IR I B
HK$'000

BT

As at 1 April 2019 K2019F481H 5,927
Credited to the consolidated income statement SFAZEERR (444)
As at 31 March 2020 7202093 A31H 5,483
As at 1 April 2020 K2020F4H1H 5,483
Charged to the consolidated income statement NEGEERR 17,887
Currency translation differences BERRME =T (15)

As at 31 March 2021

R2021¥3H31H

23,355
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

25 DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued) 25 EIEFRBH (@)

Deferred income tax assets: EEFRESHEE !
Loss
allowance
of trade Lease

receivables liabilities Tax losses Total

B 5 BUR R
EREE
HK$'000
BT

20194818 - - - -

ARAMR
HK$'000
BT

BUARA @it
HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT

As at 1 April 2019

Adjustment on adoption RN E BT SRS

of HKFRS 16 ZERIZE165 R

P - 782 - 782

Credited to the HAGEERE

consolidated income

statement 1,409 158 5,620 7,187
Currency translation iR E s

differences - - (177) (177)
As at 31 March 2020 7202063A31H 1,409 940 5,443 7,792
As at 1 April 2020 F2020F4 A1H 1,409 940 5,443 7,792
(Charged)/credited to (@) EtA

the consolidated SZEEBERER

income statement (215) (351) 10,665 10,099
Currency translation R EEE

differences - - 598 598
As at 31 March 2021 7202143 A31 8 1,194 589 16,706 18,489

FhATRESE B R R E R TS M 23R A
BEMGEMS @ AEREEVIAEER
ERBELFRAEHEE - ARBELHEFL

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carry-forwards to the extent that the realisation of the
related tax benefit through future taxable profits is probable.

236

The Group did not recognise deferred income tax assets of
HK$11,256,000 (2020: HK$2,139,000) in respect of losses
amounting to HK$68,221,000 (2020: HK$12,963,000)
that can be carried forward against future taxable income
indefinitely.

As at 31 March 2021, deferred income tax liabilities of
approximately HK$31,823,000 (2020: HK$30,184,000) have
not been provided for the withholding taxation that would
be payable on the unremitted earnings of subsidiaries
in the PRC of approximately HK$636,457,000 (2020:
HK$603,675,000), as the directors considered that the
timing of the reversal of the related temporary differences
can be controlled and the related temporary difference will
not be reversed and will not be taxable in the foreseeable
future.

] 4 PR BB A4S U LUK 8 SR SR FE R FR A
&5 18 78 % 68,221,000 7T ( 2020 £ :

75 #12,963,000 7T ) HE SR IR IE FT 15 4
& FE B 111,256,000 7T ( 2020 fF ¢

751#£2,139,0007T) °

MR2021F3A31H  HREERA
BEABERSEEENRMA TIE
BIREEESEEEETeRNT R
GREBETERH - BEMER
B 15 4978 % 31,823,000 7T (2020 FF :
75 ¥ 30,184,000 ot ) I K Bt F H
MEBARKELRFEMSENH
49 7 ¥ 636,457,000 7T ( 2020 F
75 #603,675,0007T ) 1E i B -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

26 TRADE PAYABLES 26 EF SR
As at 31 March, the ageing analysis of trade payables based M3A31H ' BSEMERFREZAH
on invoice date were as follows: STERERROTIT

2021
20214

HK$'000
BT T

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT T

0-30 days 208,148 210,788
31-60 days 157,668 120,384
61-90 days 39,950 39,769
Over 90 days 18,992 14,359
424,758 385,300
As at 31 March, the carrying amounts of trade payables are M3A3NE - EFEMBRFHREE N
denominated in the following currencies: THEEEHE

2021 AOYA)
20215 2020%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BB T T
HK$ B 54,397 49,705
US$ ETT 212,497 169,875
RMB AR 40,906 41,247
VND HWEE 101,684 114,817
EUR BT 14,133 9,650
Others Hih 1,141 6
424,758 385,300

The carrying amounts of trade payables approximate their EHRNRFMEERERAE A TEMR

fair values. e
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e RBRRME

27 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES

238

27

Pt B AR BN RIE

2021 AOAN)
20214 20204F
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BT
Non-current portion FRHAE o
Deposits b 1,479 1,487
Other payables H A fEATRUE 22,676 11,305
24,155 12,792
Current portion BPEAER 5
Accruals for wages, salaries, staff TE ¢ BIRMK
welfare and other related costs H A HERER A A ERTE A 217,708 161,797
Payable for factory rent [ 55 10 & T FRIE 5,818 1,637
Payable for purchase of property, plant EZ¥%% - lE&
and equipment HiEE IR 31,772 72,576
Payable for construction in progress TEEITIRENTIE 294,954 341,561
Other payables HAb fERFRIE 52,321 43,631
Accrued utilities expenses FEET R AR 21,080 13,857
Accrued factory overheads and et IEEEERAR
operating expenses R 47,614 20,647
e ofN,207 . 655706
695,422 668,498

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

FERT B R R EL A FE A SRR )RR E B A

THEHFHE

2021 2020

20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT T T IT

HK$ ki 60,844 71,069
RMB AREE 108,316 84,911
uss EV 36,123 31,696
VND WA 486,632 477,183
JPY B 3,507 3,639
695,422 668,498

The carrying amounts of accruals and other payables

approximate their fair values.

FERT B P K EL A FE 5 SR A BRI B 2

HAFEBE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

28 DIVIDENDS 28 |RE

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Interim dividend, paid of HK Nil cents B ER SRR

(2020: HK3.8 cents) per ordinary share  Z#1(20204 : 3.8%1l) = 46,522
Final dividend, proposed, of HK3.3 cents &z R EiA% B G E @A

(2020: HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share 3.3/l (20204 : 4.0/%1{L)

(Note) (Bf3E) 40,400 48,970
Special dividend, proposed, of HK1.5 EEN IR B AR @R
cents (2020: Nil) per ordinary share 1.57811(20204F : =)
(Note) (FfF&E) 18,364 -
58,764 95,492

Note: Bi5E
At a meeting held on 30 June 2021, a final dividend of HK3.3 cents (2020: R2021F6 A0 BT e BHIKN
HK4.0 cents) per ordinary share and a special dividend of HK1.5 cents HZE2021F3A31H L FE AR AR
(2020: Nil) per ordinary share of the Company, totalling approximately B ERE @A (20205 « 4.071lL) &
HK$58,764,000 (2020: HK$48,970,000) for the year ended 31 March 2021 BRI BB B 551 (20204F &) -
are proposed. These consolidated financial statements do not reflect A H£ 457 858,764,000 T (2020 F : B #
these dividend payables. 48,970,0007T) © % Fhra BRI A0 e gk

HZERNBRE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e RBRRME

29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

(a)

cash generated from operations

Reconciliation of profit before income tax to net

29 REXBHRERE

(a)
HEFHEPLR

2021
20214

HK$'000
BT T

BRATISBLAEF R E XK E

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT T

Profit before income tax KR TS BLAT S F 146,700 313,102
Adjustments for: LEFEE
Amortisation of intangible assets B ERE 9,887 9,273
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BEK
equipment BBEITE 446,881 401,035
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (FREEETE 95,395 85,797
Loss/(gain) on disposal of property, HEME - BEK
plant and equipment, net #iEEE(Ma) F88 1,857 (641)
Loss on write-off of fixed assets EE & EMEER 9,640 -
Gain on modification and disposal of BEREEFREEE
right-of-use assets (Buildings) (BF) K las (1,622) (1,008)
Gain on disposal of right-of-use assets H&FREEE(RELME
(Leasehold land and land use rights) b A ) By U ES (691) -
Share of net profit of an associate FREREARD
accounted for using the equity JFEAG — BB & A R AE T
method (2,515) -
Loss allowance of trade receivables B 5 EWBR I E R R 721 6,181
Gain on disposal of insurance policy HERBIZEWR
investments - (80)
Finance income B FS U A (1,826) (2,281)
Finance costs BARSRR AR 123,556 162,819
827,983 974,197
Changes in working capital: LEESEE
Inventories FE (131,193) (242,172)
Trade receivables B 5 EUERK (365,503) 82,432
Deposits, prepayments and other £ BERER
receivables E b fEHGRIE (4,276) (3,750)
Trade payables Z S EMER 36,654 2,205
Accruals and other payables fEEHE B R H A EN R 96,181 (33,150)
Cash generated from operations B HETRFTRIR G 459,846 779,762

240

REGINA MIRACLE INTERNATIONAL (HOLDINGS) LIMITED #ZiBIFR(ZER)ERAA



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 29 REXEBMBRES @)
(Continued)

(b) Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and (b) HEYWXE BMERREWRER
equipment b
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from REERERERT  HEWE K
disposal of property, plant and equipment comprise: B NRIENFTSFUERIE ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204

HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Net book amount of property, plantand 2 H& &iise -
equipment disposed and written-off RE K& R R EFE

(Note 13) (FF5E13) 13,853 1,740
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE - BEREE

plant and equipment, net (Note 7) (B18) s g (HE7) (1,857) 641
Write-off of fixed assets (Note 7) & 7E & A (I EE7) (9,640) -

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BENERED

plant and equipment FriS 58 2,356 2,381
(c) Net debt reconciliation (c) FEBHIER

2021 AOYA)

20215 2020%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BRI

Cash and cash equivalents HERESEEY 827,980 587,616

Lease liabilities — buildings HEBE-—EF (129,544) (132,671)

Lease liabilities — equipment HEBE-#E (13,600) =
Bank borrowings with variable RIZ BN EG B HERITER

interest rates (4,368,891) (3,590,005)

Net debt FEB (3,684,055) (3,135,060)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

29 CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 29 REEKFBREW
(Continued)
(¢) Net debt reconciliation (Continued) (c) BEKEERE

Other
assets — Lease Lease
cash and cash liabilities- liabilities - Bank
equivalents buildings  equipment borrowings

A
RER 8 B8

ResmN AE-8F SE-BE  BOEX

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT  BETR  BETR  BETR

Net debt as at 31 March 2019 R2019%53 A31 BAYFER 466,436 - - (3,024,098)

Recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 ARME B I SRS ER

1B ER - (201,122) - -
Net debt as at 1 April 2019 1201954 A1 B R FER 466,436 (201,122) - (3,024,099
Cash flows Beng 135,181 73,805 - (565,907)
Lease additions HERE - (10,456) - -
Lease disposals HELE - 3,986 - -
Foreign exchange adjustment INE R (14,001) 1,116 - -
Net debt as at 31 March 2020 R2020%3 31 BAYFER 587,616 (132,671) - (3,590,005)
Cash flows RenE 228,760 92,678 88 (778,886)
Lease additions HERE - (80,889) (13,699) -
Lease disposals HELE - 140 - _
Lease modification He# - 1,697 -
Foreign exchange adjustment HNE 392 11,604 (10,399) 11 -
Net debt as at 31 March 2021 20213 31 BE)FER 827,980 (129,544 (13,600)  (4,368,891)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

30 COMMITMENTS

31

Capital commitments

Contracted but not provided for EEEEER T
Property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

EREEE

mE -~ BB REAR

e R BRRME

30 AiE
BRI

2021
20214

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT T

HK$'000
BT T

683,235 341,540

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or
exercise significant influence over the other party in making
financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered
to be related if they are subject to common control or
under control of the close family members of the Group's
controlling shareholder.

Regent Marvel Investment Holdings Limited (incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands) owns 57.83% of the Company’s
shares as at 31 March 2021 and is wholly owned and
controlled by Mr. Hung Yau Lit. In addition, Mr. Hung Yau
Lit directly holds 15.36% of the Company’s shares as at
31 March 2021. The remaining shares are widely held. The
ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. Hung Yau Lit.

Name of related parties

31 BEAFXRS

W= BRENERIEREN ST
S —IEM B R EERKAR
EAFEN  AETHREREH
& o AT R T R HFER SR ANE
B B R AR BAE S - Rl TR
BRARE -

7202143 A31H * Regent Marvel
Investment Holdings Limited ( 7 %
BEZBEESFTMKL) EEARA
57.83% %0 + I EHFE L A E R
G Rz o Lo - 7202143 A318 ¢
AR BERAARRF15.36%
0 TRNAIBZFFE - A5E
BN TT RS A o

Relationship with the Company

BEL AR

Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) Limited

BEEH5(FB)ERARA

Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad Factory
(Shenzhen) Limited

HAEEEBRBRORY)BERAF

Float Limited

ERAR A B) I BA R

Common controlling shareholder
HEERARR

Common controlling shareholder
HEERARR

Under control of a close family member of
the of the controlling shareholder
SRR R BV R AR B 5
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FEMBRRMEE

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 31 BEARF @)

(a) In addition to those disclosed elsewhere in the financial (a) BETBRETEMESIEEEIN
statements, the Group has the following transactions with 7N £ (B B B YT AR S ¢

related parties:

2021 2020
20214 20204F
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT IT
Sales of goods to related parties HEEMTEES
- Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) —BRB S (BEB)ERAR
Limited (Note) (B5E) 27,031 12,569
— Float Limited —Float Limited 498 -
27,529 12,569
Rental expense paid to a related party  [AIRAE S X NHHEE X
— Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad — 4L 2= & 428 CFYI)
Factory (Shenzhen) Limited (Note) ABBRAF () = 15,665
Addition of right-of-use assets NEFERREE
— Red Star Shun Cheong Shoulder Pad  — 4T 21 Elgtam CEYI)
Factory (Shenzhen) Limited (Note) BRAR () 47,813 -
Note: SR
The pricing of these transactions was determined based on mutual R S (B IR AN B RS T AR TR
negotiation and agreement between the Group and the related parties. RiBSET -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

31 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 31 BEAXZ @)

(b) Key management compensation (b) XEEEEHN
2021 AOYA)
20215 20204
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances T& - ¥4 - JE4T K20 27,511 31,719
Retirement benefits costs RIRR R
— defined contribution scheme — EREHIEE 341 389
27,852 32,108
(c) Year-end balances with related parties (c) EHEREFHVFEREEER
2021 AOYA)
20215 2020
HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Trade receivables from: B SRR
— Le Ying Trading (Hong Kong) — BB (BEB)ERARA
Limited (Note) (FfF3E) 8,167 3,090
— Float Limited (Note) —Float Limited (Ff{7%) 105 5
8,272 3,090
Note: The trade receivables due from related parties are unsecured, s : FEURRBIER HB 5 EKER R AEEA -
interest-free and with credit terms of 90 days. RBREEHR0A -
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e RBRRME

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As at 31 March, the Group held the following financial

instruments:

fm %

\

2021
20214

HK$'000
BT T

32 RERSENEMTA

\3A31H ' AEEFE TS/ T

2020
20204
HK$'000
BT T

Financial assets ERMEE
Financial assets carried at FVOCI BAFEFARMERE
WATIBRE € Bt & E
— Trade receivables —E S EIEDR 19 252,946 403,817
Financial assets carried at R SHRCAR T BR B
amortised cost CRVEE
— Trade receivables —E S EIEDR 19 840,076 315,079
— Deposits and other receivables — e hEMEWTIE 20 25,970 20,529
— Restricted bank deposits — ZREIRI TR 21 6,906 -
— Cash and cash equivalents — B RESEEY 21 827,980 587,616
1,953,878 1,327,041
Financial liabilities SHMas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost  iZ#EEAKZANETEH)
TRIEE
- Borrowings — &3 24 4,368,891 3,590,005
— Trade payables — B S EMNER 26 424,758 385,300
— Accruals and other payables —EFEAK
H e ATR0E 27 481,597 494,153
— Lease liabilities —HEaE 14 146,763 162,830
5,422,009 4,632,288
The Group's exposure to various risks associated with AEBEAEESRM T EEANZIA

BB E3. 2 &R o RIREHRA
AEENRXEERRALMEHESE
BENKREE -

the financial instruments is discussed in Note 3.2. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting
period is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets
mentioned above.
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FEMBRRMEE

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 33 ARNFEEABRERE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY SE)
Balance sheet of the Company AAREEEER
2020
20214 20204
HK$°000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset FREBEE
Interest in a subsidiary R—EK B AR M ER 510,724 510,724
Current assets REEE
Deposits, prepayments and other e - BARIER
receivables H i fE Y 38 299 182
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEU B A R R IE 1,357,618 1,346,760
Cash and cash equivalents HEeRBEEEEY 294 330
RO 1358211 1,347,272
Total assets BEHAE 1,868,935 1,857,996
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of EKQATHEE AEML
the Company s
Share capital [N 95,247 95,247
Reserves i (a) 1,771,968 1,760,633
Total equity RSB 1,867,215 1,855,880
LIABILITIES =L
Current liabilities REAE
Accruals and other payables FERTERA K&
HApfEff3RIE 1,618 2,021
Current income tax liabilities BVHAFT B B 102 95
e eeieeieeeocieeieicieecieieccceciceieceoeooo... IR 1720 . 2,116
_Totalliabilities = &f®s® 1720 . 2,116
Total equity and liabilities EnkBEAE 1,868,935 1,857,996
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FEMBRRMEE

33 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE 33 ANREEEBERERE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) = [E))
(a) Reserve movement of the Company (a) AATFEESH
Share premium Retained
(Note) earnings Total
B EE
(Bf=E) REEF #Er
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT
As at 31 March 2019 74201943 H31H 1,705,969 49,811 1,755,780
Profit for the year F X% | - 100,345 100,345
Dividends (Note 28) i 2 (Ff5E28) - (95,492) (95,492)
As at 31 March 2020 7202063H31H 1,705,969 54,664 1,760,633
Profit for the year FERNm - 60,305 60,305
Dividends (Note 28) % 2 (Mi7E28) - (48,970) (48,970)
As at 31 March 2021 "R2021$3AH31H 1,705,969 65,999 1,771,968
Note: BT
The share premium of the Company is available for distribution to the ARRBADEEAMEBRELDIK © A1IEA
shareholders of the Company, provided that immediately following the REREZZDIREE BHE - ARFRAEER
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed the Company BEBBER I HNET -

will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 34 E=R|ZNREZR

The remuneration of every director and the chief executive HZE2021F3A831HILFEGREER
for the year ended 31 March 2021 is set out below: SERITERA B ENE S 0T ¢

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person'’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
HEHATREES(FRARLAIENBAAER EARERNMNE
Employer's
contribution

Discretionary Housing to retirement
Name of Director Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes Total
ESEN
j 4.8 k7 & BfERAa EEZR HE e st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BT BT BETT BT BT

Executive directors BTES
Hung Yau Lit (also knownas YY  SHEBE(X 4
Hung) (Chief Executive Officer) — #i525)

(BEHTTE) = 8,260 - - 54 8,314
Yiu Kar Chun Antony et - 2,842 - - 36 2,878
Sze Shui Ling i34 - 2,165 - - 36 2,201
Liu Zhengiang EIEL - 2,858 - - 29 2,887
Chen Zhiping RET - 2,224 - - 29 2,253
Independent BUkHTES
non-executive directors
Or Ching Fai g’ 359 - - - - 359
Tam Lai Man EEX 302 - - - - 302
To Wong Wing Yue Annie BExE 302 - - - - 302
963 18,349 - - 184 19,496

FEHE2020/21 ANNUAL REPORT 2020/21 249



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FEMBRRMEE

34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 34 EEFERER

(Continued)
The remuneration of every director and the chief executive HZE2020F3A831HILFEGRESER
for the year ended 31 March 2020 is set out below: SERITERA B ENE ST

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking
HREBATEEES( REER)ENSERNME
Employer's
contribution

Discretionary Housing to retirement

Name of Director Fees Salaries bonuses  allowances schemes Total
BEEH

we T ] rrizan FEEE E [ H)

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BT BT BT BT oo BT

Executive directors BES
Hung Yau Lit (also known as YY  JtjifE(X 4
Hung (Chief Executive Officer) — iZE)

(BEHTE) - 9,100 - - 54 9,154
Yiu Kar Chun Antony tht - 3,130 315 - 36 3,481
Sze Shui Ling i3 - 2,384 287 - 36 2,707
Liu Zhengiang 2E% - 3,136 315 - 38 3,489
Chen Zhiping BET - 2,437 289 - 38 2,764
Independent BUFHTES
non-executive directors
Or Ching Fai ey 399 - 120 - - 519
Tam Lai Man EEX 336 - 80 - - 416
To Wong Wing Yue Annie BEKE 336 - 80 - - 416
1,071 20,187 1,486 - 202 22,946
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34 BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(Continued)

No remunerations were paid or receivable in respect of
accepting office as directors during the year ended 31 March
2021 (2020: Nil).

No directors waived any emoluments during the year ended
31 March 2021 (2020: Nil).

No emoluments were paid or receivable in respect of
directors’ other services in connection with the management
of affairs of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking during
the year ended 31 March 2021 (2020: Nil). No consideration
was provided to or receivable by third parties for making
available directors’ services (2020: Nil).

There are no loans, quasi-loans or other dealings in favour
of the directors, their controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities (2020: Nil).

During the year ended 31 March 2021, none of the
directors received or will receive any retirement benefits or
termination benefits during the financial year (2020: Nil).

Except disclosed elsewhere in the financial statements, no
director of the Company had a material interest, directly or
indirectly, in any significant transactions, arrangements and
contracts in relation to the Company's business to which
the Company was or is a party that subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year (2020: Nil).
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION SUMMARY
MBENBE

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the NEEZEARE TS EERRABA AEM
Group for the last five financial years, prepared on the basis as set HWEENEHEES  EERBGEHZHT
out herein, is set out below: T

Year ended 31 March
BE3AMHLEE
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20215 20204 20194 20184 20174
HK$000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
BETT BETT  BETx  BETx  BET

Results £
Revenue WA 5,974,290 6,341,010 6,263,280 5,868,048 4,676,937
Gross profit EF 1,237,953 1,440,731 1,341,945 1,233,923 915,825
Profit attributable to owner of AR FHAE A
the Company FE(REF 125,515 289,953 282,438 240,188 97,635
Adjusted net profit for the FAERHREF| R
year&2 175,253 289,953 282,438 240,188 98,005
Gross profit margin (%) ERE (%) 20.7% 22.7% 21.4% 21.0% 19.6%
Net profit margin (%) T (%) 2.1% 4.6% 4.5% 41% 2.1%
Adjusted net profit AR ER AT FI| R (9 ) 122
margin (%) &2 2.9% 4.6% 45% 4.1% 2.1%
Assets and liabilities BERAE
Total assets EEBE 8,737,036 7,735,028 6,954,505 6,024,210 4,949,937
Total liabilities BESE (5,666,681) (4,817,033) (4,030,332) (3,154,628) (2,329,845)
Total equity b g 3,070,355 2,917,995 2,924,173 2,869,582 2,620,092
Notes: Bf5E
(1) Adjusted net profit for the year is derived by adding restructuring costs (1) FREFHBMFTEBNENLEF IMAEZER
and losses on derivative financial instruments (net of tax impact) on the ARITESMIABRBBRREZE)FES
net profit for the year. e
(2)  This non-GAAP financial data is a supplemental financial measure that is 2) UFEARGTRUNMBBIERERMGEE
not required by, or presented in accordance with HKFRSs and is therefore 1515 - EAVBMELERWEEX - NHAER
referred to as a “non-GAAP" financial measure. It is not a measurement REBPBMEEAZ7] - Bt - BLEREB
of the Group's financial performance under HKFRSs and should not [IEARGFTRA MM SE 21T - IR
be considered as an alternative to profit from operations or any other BEBVERELENGEAEEVBERIANT
performance measures derived in accordance with HKFRSs or as an % TNERERBE B EREEREENHL
alternative to cash flows from operating activities or as a measure of the EanfBEEMAMRRENEREER
Group's liquidity. BEBReRENBEREZTXEEAEE RS

AEHIER -
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